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TRADEMARKS

Qualcomm, Snapdragon, MSM, Adreno, Gobi and WisRsach are trademarks of Qualcomm Incorporatgisteged in the United Stat
and other countries. Pixtronix is a trademark ati@nix, Inc., a subsidiary of Qualcomm Incorporhte

Other products and brand names may be trademarkgistered trademarks of their respective owners.




In this document, the words “Qualcomm,” “we,” “dufpurs” and “us” refer only to QUALCOMM Incorporatl and its subsidiaries and
not any other person or entity. This Annual Regiotluding, but not limited to, the section regaigiManagement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operatiorm)tains forward-looking statements regarding owirtess, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. Words such as “expéatstitipates,” “i plans,” “believes,” “skg,” “estimates” and similar expressions or

” ” o

intends,
variations of such words are intended to identifyMard-looking statements, but are not the excluaieans of identifying forward-looking
statements in this Annual Report. Additionally tetaents concerning future matters such as the algwent of new products, enhancements c
technologies, sales levels, expense levels and stétements regarding matters that are not histioare forward-looking statements.

Although forward-looking statements in this Ann&adport reflect our good faith judgment, such st&ets can only be based on facts anc
factors currently known by us. Consequently, fodvimoking statements are inherently subject tosrisikd uncertainties and actual results anc
outcomes may differ materially from the results antcomes discussed in or anticipated by the fati@oking statements. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences in resuitsoutcomes include without limitation those d&ssd under the heading “Risk Factors”
below, as well as those discussed elsewhere itinsial Report. Readers are urged not to placeaineliance on these forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date ofthisual Report. We undertake no obligation to rewis update any forward-looking
statements in order to reflect any event or cirdanse that may arise after the date of this AnRegdort. Readers are urged to carefully re\
and consider the various disclosures made in thisual Report, which attempt to advise interestatigsaof the risks and factors that may
affect our business, financial condition, resuftserations and prospects.

PART |

Iltem 1. Business

We incorporated in 1985 under the laws of the si&téalifornia. In 1991, we reincorporated in thate of Delaware. We operate and
report using a 52-53 week fiscal year ending ofdbeSunday in September. Our 52-week fiscal yeamsist of four equal fiscal quarters of
13 weeks each, and our 53-week fiscal years coofsibtee 13-week fiscal quarters and onenbkék fiscal quarter. The financial results for
53-week fiscal years and our 14-week fiscal quanahl not be exactly comparable to our 52-weekdisyears and our 13-week fiscal quarters
Both of the fiscal years ended September 28, 26#45ptember 29, 2013 included 52 weeks. The fisza ended September 30, 2012
included 53 weeks.

Overview

We continue to lead the development and commezaiddin of a digital communication technology call@dMA (Code Division Multiple
Access), and we own significant intellectual prapepplicable to products that implement any vargibCDMA, including patents, patent
applications and trade secrets. The mobile comnatinits industry generally recognizes that a comp@aking to develop, manufacture an
sell products that use CDMA technology will requireatent license from us. CDMA is one of the miaghnologies currently used in digital
wireless communications networks (also known agle#s networks). Based on wireless connections, £kl TDMA (Time Division
Multiple Access), of which GSM (Global System fooblle Communications) is the primary commerciahfpare the primary digital
technologies currently used to transmit a wiretbsgce user’s voice or data over radio waves ugipgblic cellular wireless network.

We also continue our significant role in the depab@nt and commercialization of OFDMA (Orthogonaddiiriency Division Multiple
Access) technology for which we own substantialiattual property. Sales of multimode CDMA and L{ihich stands for Long Term
Evolution and is an OFDMA-based standard for catlwlireless communication applications) wirelesd@aks have grown significantly during
the past several years.

We also develop and commercialize several othettd@ynologies used in handsets and tablets thatilwate to end-user demand, and we
own substantial intellectual property related testhtechnologies. Some of these were contributaddare being commercialized as industry
standards, such as certain audio and video cotlecadvanced WLAN (wireless local area networkd)Ve#i) 802.11 functionality and
volatile and non-volatile memory controllers. Otbhechnologies widely used by wireless devicesweahave developed are not related to any
industry standards, such as operating systemsjnisefaces, graphics and camera processing furadtty, integrated circuit packaging
techniques, sensors and sensor fusion algorithohajgplication processor architectures.

In addition to licensing portions of our intelleatyproperty portfolio, which includes certain pataghts essential to and/or useful in the
manufacture and sale of certain wireless produatsjesign, manufacture, have manufactured on dalband market products and services
based on CDMA, OFDMA and other digital communicatidechnologies. Our products principally consishtegrated circuits (also known
chips or chipsets) and system software used inlmdbvices and in wireless networks. We also shkmoproducts and services, which include
integrated circuits for use in wired devices, mattarly broadband gateway equipment, desktop coenpaind streaming media players;
software products and content enablement servizesifeless operators; and products designed imtiplementation of small cells.

1




State of the Mobile Industry

The mobile industry has experienced tremendousthrower the past 20 years, growing from less tiam@lion global connections in
1994 (WCIS+, October 2014) to approximately 7 billiglobal connections in September 2014 (GSMA ligiethce, November 2014). As the
largest technology platform in the world, mobilesimade peoplesives more connected, transforming the way we adewith one another a
with the world. The scale and pace of innovatiomiobile, especially around connectivity and compytapabilities, is impacting industries
beyond wireless.

Extending connectivity3G/4G (third generation/fourth generation) multirmodobile broadband technology has been a key doiviére
growth of mobile, providing users with fast, relabalways-on connectivity. As of September 20hér¢ were approximately 2.8 billion
3G/4G connections globally (CDMA-based, OFDMA-based CDMA/OFDMA multimode) representing nearly 4@%otal mobile
connections, and by 2018, 3G/4G connections aljegirnl to surpass 5 billion globally, with approxzitaly three-quarters of this growth
occurring in emerging regions (GSMA Intelligenceavember 2014).

3G/4G multimode mobile broadband has also emergeaoh amportant platform for extending the reach jaoigntial of the Internet. In
2010, the number of broadband connections usinglentdthnology surpassed those using fixed teclyiedo making mobile networks the
primary method of access to the Internet for maggppe around the world. The impact is further afigaiin emerging regions, where 3G/4G
connections are approximately four times the nunolbéixed Internet connections (GSMA Intelligen®gvember 2014 and WBIS, October
2014). Mobile broadband may be the first, and imyneases only, way that people in these regionssacihe Internet. 3G/4G LTE multimode
services are being rolled out in China, which wpest will encourage competition and growth, bring benefits of 3G/4G LTE multimode to
consumers, encourage consumers to replace 2Gcamdgeneration, (GSM) and 3G devices and enalleopportunities for the industry.

Growth in smartphonesSmartphone adoption is growing worldwide, fueleditiya-fast 3G/4G LTE multimode connectivity, pofugr
application processors (now delivering speeds 8u8Hz) and advanced multimedia and location awapalailities. In 2013, nearly 1 billion
smartphones shipped globally, representing a year-gear increase of more than 40%, and shipmdrasartphones between 2014 and 2018
are projected to reach over 8 billion (Gartner,t8eyber 2014). Much of this growth is happeningrimeeging regions, where smartphones
represented 46% of total handset shipments in 28#i3are expected to reach approximately 89% in 2Ga8tner, September 2014). Declining
costs and the rapid expansion of entry-level srharips have been and are expected to continuekieyti® this growth.

Consumer demand for new types of experiences, cmdbvith the need by mobile operators and deviceufaaturers to provide
differentiated features and services, is drivingttwed innovation within the smartphone. This waiion is happening across multiple
technology dimensions, including connectivity, apgion processors, camera, audio, video, locat@dip frequencies and sensors. As a re
the smartphone has supplanted in many ways themsdrsomputer as the go-to device for email, welwsing, music, gaming, social
networking and more. It is also replacing manyitiadal consumer electronics items due to its adedncapabilities, including digital camer
video cameras, Global Positioning System (GPSkwanitl music players.

Meeting data demandAs more smartphones and other connected devices oalime, data usage is growing rapidly, puttirigeanendous
strain on the capacity of mobile networks. To nthetchallenge resulting from increased demand dita,dnobile operators are looking at a
variety of methods to improve the performance aehcity of their networks, including acquiring atzhial spectrum, using more efficient air-
interface technologies (derived from the continaedlution of 3G/4G and Wi-Fi technologies) and legng both licensed and unlicensed
spectrum. An additional approach is network decaifon, in which very small, lower-power base stagi, known as small cells, are deployed
close to the end user to complement the larger faiaetwork.

Addressing new opportunitie3.he mobile industry is leveraging the same tectmplanovations found in smartphones to extend
advanced connectivity and computing capabilitiés anbroad array of end-devices and access pahish make up the “edge” of the Internet.
With billions of connected devices projected tcaldeled over the coming years, enhancing the capabitif the network will be vital to
improving its scalability and performance as itegatthis new phase of growth. These enhancemeantselping to transform industry segme!
including the connected home, tablets, automotieajth care and wearables, as companies leveralgigemonnectivity and computing
technology to create intelligently connected pragand services and reach new customers.

The proliferation of intelligently connected “thisi(e.g., consumer electronics, appliances ang @enabling new types of user
experiences, as smartphones are able to interticawil control more of the things around us. Thihoilg addition of embedded sensors,
connected things are able to collect and sendadatheir environment, providing users with conteyurelevant information and further
increasing their utility and value. We refer tosthis the Internet of Everything.
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Wireless Technologies

The growth in the use of wireless devices worldwilech as smartphones and tablets, and demandttosédrvices and applications
requires continuous innovation to further improle tiser experience, enable new services and ircnedwork capacity, make use of different
frequency bands and enable dense network deplogniBmimeet these requirements, different wirelessnsunications technologies continue
to evolve. For over two decades, we have investédcantinue to invest heavily in research and dgyaknt of many of these cellular wireless
communication technologies, including CDMA and OFBMs a result, we have developed and acquired ¢antinue to develop and
acquire) significant related intellectual propefiis intellectual property has been incorporated the most widely accepted and deployed
wireless communications technology standards, antiave licensed it to wireless device and infrastme manufacturers (more than 260
licensees, including all leading manufacturers)siMif the cellular wireless technologies can beigedl into three categories.

TDMA-based.TDMA-based technologies are characterized by taiess method allowing several users to shareathe fequency
channel by dividing the signal into different tirslets. Most of these systems are classified as2@nblogy.

The main examples of TDMA-based technologies arb@&ployed worldwide), 1S-136 (deployed in the Ainas) and Personal Digital
Cellular (PDC) (deployed in Japan). Compared toetidier generations of analog technologies, tlégital communications technologies
provided for significantly enhanced efficiency witta fixed spectrum, resulting in increased voiapacity. These technologies also enable
enhanced services, such as SMS (short messageejdenting service, as well as low-speed datasesvGSM has evolved to support mobile
packet data transmission, such as GPRS (GeneriatRadio Service) and EDGE (Enhanced Data RatgSlfibal Evolution).

According to GSMA Intelligence estimates as of Nober 3, 2014, there were approximately 4.2 billi@®M connections worldwide,
representing approximately 60% of total cellulanmections. The transition of wireless devices f@&Ento 3G/4G continued around the world
with 3G/4G connections up 24% year-over-year.

CDMA-based CDMA-based technologies are characterized by #miess method allowing several users to shareathe fequency and
time by allocating different orthogonal codes tdiidual users. Most of the CDMA-based technologiesclassified as 3G technology. We
lead the development of CDMA-based technologies.

There are a number of variants of CDMA-based teldyies deployed around the world, in particular CB2000, EV-DO (Evolution
Data Optimized), WCDMA (Wideband CDMA) and TD-SCDMAime Division-Synchronous CDMA) (deployed exchedy in China).
CDMA-based technologies provide vastly improvedazity for voice and low-rate data services as caep#o analog technologies and
significant improvements over TDMA-based technodsgisuch as GSM. The following are the CDMA-basetinologies and their standards
revisions:

« CDMA2000 revisions A through

* 1xEV-DO revisions A through

»  WCDMA/HSPA releases 4 through
e« TD-SCDMA releases 4 through

To date, these technologies have seen many resjsaon they continue to evolve, progressively affghigher capacity and data rates,
improved user experiences and new applicationssandces. As these technologies continue to evolew, features are being defined in their
relevant standardization bodies, the 3rd Gener&amtnership Project 2 (3GPP2) for CDMA2000 and\:BO and the 3rd Generation
Partnership Project (3GPP) for WCDMA and TD-SCDMA.

For simplicity, the releases of these technologiesoften combined and given “marketing” or “trad@mes that also indicate their
benefits. One example is the 3GPP releases: Reléamed 6 together are called HSPA (High Speedd®#aicess). The releases from 7 to 10
are called HSPA+, indicating that they provide perfance improvements over HSPA. We refer to reked3eand beyond as HSPA+
Advanced, again indicating improvements beyondithes that HSPA+ offers.

The naming convention also applies to the successieases of CDMA2000, which are grouped andmedeio as CDMA2000 1X, 1X
Advanced, as well as to 1XEV-DO successive releadgsh are referred to as EV-DO Revision A, RenisB and DO Advanced.

CDMA technologies ushered in a significant increiasieroadband data services that continue to gepidty. According to GSMA
Intelligence estimates as of November 3, 2014 gthaare approximately 2.4 billion CDMA-based conimtd worldwide, representing
approximately 35% of total cellular connections.dshe fourth quarter of calendar 2014, the fiisases of 1X Advanced and DO Advanced,
as well as up to the eighth release of HSPA+, weremercially launched.

OFDMA-based OFDMA-based technologies are characterized by #esiess method allowing several users to shargatne frequency
band and time by allocating different subcarrierstlividual users. Most of the OFDMA-based teclogis
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are classified as 4G technology. We continue tg plaignificant role in the development of LTE dnkE Advanced, which are the
predominant 4G technologies.

The primary OFDMA-based technology is LTE, whiclinisorporated in 3GPP specifications starting frehease 8. LTE has two modes,
FDD (frequency division duplex) and TDD (time dieis duplex), to support paired and unpaired spettnespectively, and is being develo
by 3GPP. The principal benefit of LTE is its alyilib leverage wide swaths of spectrum (bandwidftOdVIHz or more). LTE is designed to
seamlessly interwork with 3G through 3G/4G multiraatbvices. Currently, most LTE devices rely on 8Gvbice services across the netw
as well as for ubiquitous data services outsidd e coverage area, and on 4G for data servicéddribe coverage area. To date, LI Ebice
solution, VoLTE (voice over LTE), has been commaltgideployed in only a small number of networks.

LTE'’s releases are often combined and given “margebpr “trade” names that also indicate their figseThe name LTE covers releases
8 and 9. Releases 10 and beyond are referredLidEagdvanced. According to GSMA Intelligence estiemas of November 3, 2014, there
were approximately 360 million global 3G/4G multideoconnections worldwide, representing approxingeiéb of total cellular connections.
Carrier aggregation, one of the significant improeats of LTE Advanced, was commercially launchedune 2013. Along with carrier
aggregation, LTE Advanced brings many more enharogsnincluding advanced antenna techniques arwhiaption for small cells. LTE
Advanced continues to evolve; release 12 is exgdotee finalized toward the end of calendar 2@ the work on release 13 has already
started. Apart from improving the performance akgrg networks, these releases also bring newrergments, such as LTE Direct for
proximity-based device-to-device discovery, thdighio use LTE Advanced in unlicensed spectrunplioved LTE broadcast through carrier
aggregation with LTE Advanced in licensed spectand optimizations of machine-type communicatioh$H in unlicensed spectrum can be
commercialized in countries such as the UnitedeStathina and South Korea with the existing reldéisstandard; however, it will need new
standards in many other countries.) The evolutfddld will significantly expand the role of LTE Adwnced in the future of communications.

There also have been ongoing efforts to make tieevilorking between LTE and Wi-Fi more seamless@ndpletely transparent to the
users. The seamless interworking will also endidedievice to use the best possible link or linkzetdeling on conditions of the LTE and Wi-Fi
links as the applications run on devices.

Other (Non-cellular) Wireless Technologie$here are other non-cellular wireless technolotiias have also been broadly adopted in
mobile cellular devices.

Wireless Local Area Networkélireless local area networks (WLAN, also known asRlY link two or more devices wirelessly and usu
provide connectivity through an access point. WLstems have been standardized by the Institui#ectrical and Electronics Engineers
(IEEE) in the 802.11 family of standards. 802.11mlaich includes advanced features, such as multigde multiple in/multiple out (MU
MIMO) and support for large bandwidths and higheteo modulation, primarily targets broadband cotimigg for mobile devices, laptops and
consumer electronics devices using 5 GHz spectB02.11ad provides multi-gigabit data rates for shmmge communication, using 60 GHz
spectrum. 802.11ah, which is still under developnaeid targets sub-GHz spectrum, is envisioned t@ $®lution for “connected home”
applications that require long battery life. Weygld a leading role in the development of 802.1882,11ad and 802.11ah.

Bluetooth Bluetooth is a wireless personal area network ghatides wireless connectivity between devices ahert distances ranging
from a few centimeters to a few meters. Bluetoetthhology provides wireless connectivity to a widiege of fixed or mobile consumer
electronics devices. Bluetooth functionalities standardized by the Bluetooth Special Interest @iowarious versions of the specification
(from 1.0 to 4.0), which include different functalities, such as enhanced data rate or low en&rgyn(n as Bluetooth Smart).

Location Positioning Technologielsocation positioning technologies have evolveddhpin the industry over the past few years in orde
to deliver an enhanced location experience. Im#=, satellite navigation systems were predomiyased to provide the accurate location of
mobile devices. We were a key developer of theasdiGPS (A-GPS) positioning technology used intraeBular handsets today. For uses
requiring the best accuracy for E911 services a@avigational based services, A-GPS provided a lgaddye solution.

The industry has now evolved to support additimalits for improving the location experience. Wevrsupport multiple constellations,
including: GPS, GLONASS (Global Navigation Satell8ystem) and BeiDou; terrestrial-based positionisigg WWAN (Wireless Wide Area
Network) and W-Fi-based inputs; Wi-Fi RSSI (received signal sgiterindication) and RTT (round-trip time) signats fndoor location; and
third-party sensors combined with GNSS (Global gatibn Satellite System) measurements to provitim support for location-based
services in rural areas and indoors, where otlggasinputs may not be available.

Other Significant Technologies used in Cellular andCertain Consumer Electronic Devices and Networks

We have played a leading role in developing manphefother technologies used in cellular and aetansumer electronic devices and
networks, including:




« graphics and display processing functionz

» video coding based on H.264 standards, whictelraady been deployed commercially, and its swsmresl.265, or high-efficiency
video codec, which will be deployed to supportatiigh definition (4K) video content;

e audio coding, including for multimedia use andvoice/speech use (also known as Vocod
» camera and camcorder functic

» system user and interface featu

e security and content protection syste

» volatile (LP-DDR2, 3, 4) and novolatile (eMMC) memory and related controllers;

* power management systems and batte

Operating Segments

We have three reportable segments. We conductdmssprimarily through two reportable segments, @@dalcomm CDMA
Technologies) and QTL (Qualcomm Technology Liceggsiand our QSI (Qualcomm Strategic Initiativeg)aeable segment makes strategic
investments. QSI did not have revenues in any genwesented. Revenues in fiscal 2014 , 2013 abd 20 our reportable segments were as
follows (in millions, except percentage data):

QCT QTL
2014 $ 18,66 $ 7,56¢
As a percent of total 70% 29%
2013 $ 16,718  $ 7,55¢
As a percent of total 67% 3C%
2012 $ 12,14.  $ 6,321
As a percent of total 63% 33%

QCT SegmentQCT is a leading developer and supplier of integgtatircuits and system software based on CDMA, ORQvid other
technologies for use in voice and data communinatiaetworking, application processing, multimeatia global positioning system products.
QCT’s integrated circuit products are sold andytstem software is licensed to manufacturers tbatowr products in wireless devices,
particularly mobile phones, tablets, laptops, datalules, handheld wireless computers and gaminigei&\vaccess points and routers, data
cards and infrastructure equipment, and in wiredods, particularly broadband gateway equipmergkibg computers and streaming media
players. Our Mobile Station Modem (MSM) integrataatuits, which include the Mobile Data Modem, Qaaahm Single Chip and Qualcomm
Snapdragon processors, perform the core basebagiehmimnctionality in wireless devices providing e®iand data communications, as well
as multimedia applications and global positioningdtions. In addition, our Snapdragon processargige advanced application and graphics
processing capabilities. Because of our experigndesigning and developing CDMA- and OFDMA-baseaddoicts, we design both the
baseband integrated circuit and the supportingsysts well, including the RF (Radio Frequency), ®dwer Management) and connectivity
devices. This approach enables us to optimize eénf@pnance of the wireless device with improveddoict features and integration with the
network system. Our portfolio of RF products indsd)FE (Qualcomm Front End) radio front end comptmthat are designed to simplify
RF design for LTE multimode, multiband mobile descreduce power consumption and improve radi@mpegnce. QCT'’s system software
enables the other device components to interfateaur integrated circuit products and is the fatmah software enabling manufacturers to
develop devices utilizing the functionality withiime integrated circuits. We also provide suppoxiuding reference designs and tools, to
enable our customers to reduce the time requireésan their products and bring their producthtoket faster. We plan to add additional
features and capabilities to our integrated cirptiducts to help our customers reduce the cossiaedf their products, to simplify our
customers’ design processes and to enable mortessrdevices and services.

QCT offers a broad portfolio of products, includingth wireless device and infrastructure integraieclits, in support of CDMA2000 1X
and 1xXEV-DO, as well as the ENO Revision A/B evolutions of CDMA 2000 technolodyeveraging our expertise in CDMA, we also dew
and offer integrated circuits supporting the WCDMétsion of 3G for manufacturers of wireless devidésre than 90 device manufacturers
have selected our WCDMA products that support GIRRS, WCDMA, HSDPA (High-Speed Downlink Packet A&esiSUPA (High-
Speed Uplink Packet Access) and HSPA+ for theifadsvy QCT also sells multimode products for the Lsté&dard, which offer seamless
backward compatibility to existing 3G technologi€sir integrated circuit products are included lr@ad range of devices, from low-tier,
entry-level devices for




emerging regions, which may use our Qualcomm Reéer®esign (QRD) products, to premium-tier devitediscal 2014 , QCT shipped
approximately 861 million MSM integrated circuity fwireless devices worldwide, compared to appraxaty 716 million and 590 million in
fiscal 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Our modems are built to work with increasingly cdexmetworks. They support the latest communicatgmhnologies and adapt to
network conditions and user needs in real timentoke delivery of faster, smoother data and voa®ections. Our 3G/4G modem roadmap
delivers the latest network technologies acrosgiptelproduct tiers and devices. This roadmap ésrésult of our years of research into
emerging network standards and the developmertiip$ets that take advantage of these new standanée, maintaining backward
compatibility with existing standards.

Each Snapdragon processor is a highly integratebjlenoptimized system on a chip incorporating @dvanced technologies, including a
high performance central processing unit (CPU)italigignal processor (DSP), graphics processing(@PU) and modem, multimedia
subsystems, including high fidelity audio, highidéfon video and advanced imaging capabilitiebaadware-based security suite and highly
accurate location positioning engines. Our CPU<sare designed to deliver high levels of computéopmance at low power, allowing
manufacturers to design slim and powerful devicik lenger battery life between charges. Our QualecoAdreno GPUs are also designed to
deliver graphics performance for visually rich 3Bnhgjing and user interfaces. The heterogeneous cerapchiitecture of our Snapdragon
processors is designed to ensure that the CPU,an8EPU work efficiently together, each being padenp and utilized only when needed,
which enhances the processing capacity, speedficidrecy of our Snapdragon processors and theebalife of devices using our processors.
Most Snapdragon processors also include our inesdj@Qualcomm Gobi modem technology for power edfitiadvanced mobile broadband.

Our wireless products also consist of integratecuiis and system software for WLAN, Bluetoothgiuency modulation (FM) and near
field communications as well as technologies timaibée location data and services, including GPSDBASS and BeiDou. Our WLAN,
Bluetooth and FM products have been integrated thighQualcomm Snapdragon processor devices todqe@dditional connectivity for
mobile phones, tablets and consumer electronicg. &b offers stand alone WLAN, Bluetooth, Wi-FidaBthernet products for mobile
devices, consumer electronics, computers, homeaagels and other connected devices. Our netwogkioducts include Wi, Powerline an
Ethernet chips, network processors and softwaresd products enable home and business networkgpors the growing number of
connected devices, digital media, data serviceso#tmet smart home applications.

QCT utilizes a fabless production model, which nsegmat we do not own or operate foundries for tteglpction of silicon wafers from
which our integrated circuits are made. Integraiecliits are die cut from silicon wafers that haempleted the package assembly and test
manufacturing processes. The semiconductor packguorts the electrical contacts that connectritegyrated circuit to a circuit board. Die
cut from silicon wafers are the essential companehall of our integrated circuits and a signifitaortion of the total integrated circuit cost.
We employ both turnkey and two-stage manufactumiaglels to purchase our integrated circuits. Turrikeyhen our foundry suppliers are
responsible for delivering fully assembled andddshtegrated circuits. Under the two-stage manufagy model, we purchase die or wafers
from semiconductor manufacturing foundries and i@mtwith separate third-party suppliers for mantifeng services such as wafer bump,
probe, assembly and final test.

We rely on independent third-party suppliers tdqren the manufacturing and assembly, and mostefeahkting, of our integrated circuits
based primarily on our proprietary designs andpgesgrams. Our suppliers also are responsiblehfoptocurement of most of the raw mate
used in the production of our integrated circulise primary foundry suppliers for our various dafjianalog/mixed-signal, RF and PM
integrated circuits are Global Foundries Inc., iméional Business Machines Corporation, Samsuagtiinics Co. Ltd., Semiconductor
Manufacturing International Corporation, Taiwan $Ssmnductor Manufacturing Company and United Miceaglonics Corporation. The
primary semiconductor assembly and test supplieré\dvanced Semiconductor Engineering, Amkor Tebdmg Siliconware Precision
Industries and STATSChipPAC. The majority of ouwnridry and semiconductor assembly and test supglierbcated in the Asia-Pacific
region.

QCT'’s sales are primarily made through standardtmse orders for delivery of products. QCT gengialbws customers to reschedule
delivery dates within a defined time frame anddnazl orders prior to shipment with or without payrof a penalty, depending on when the
order is canceled. The market in which QCT operat@gensely competitive. QCT competes worldwidéhwva number of United States and
international designers and manufacturers of samliectors. As a result of global expansion by fanedgd domestic competitors, technolog
changes, device manufacturer concentrations angdteatial for further industry consolidation, wetiaipate the market to remain very
competitive. We believe that the principal competifactors for our products may include perfornerevel of integration, quality,
compliance with industry standards, price, timertarket, system cost, design and engineering cajxediinew product innovation and
customer support. QCT also competes in both sirgid-dual-mode environments against alternativenmomnications technologies including,
but not limited to, GSM/GPRS/EDGE, TDMA and TD-SCBM




QCT’s current competitors include, but are notiadito, companies such as Broadcom, Ericsson,ieti@ilTechnologies, Intel, Lantiq,
Marvell Technology, Maxim Integrated Products, Mgk, nVidia, Realtek Semiconductor, Samsung Eeats, Spreadtrum
Communications (which is controlled by Tsinghuadgoup), Texas Instruments and VIA Telecom. QCT &ses competition from products
internally developed by our customers, includingieaf our largest customers, and from some eaalyestompanies. Our competitors devote
significant amounts of their financial, technicablaother resources to develop and market competitivducts and, in some cases, to develop
and adopt competitive digital communication or sigorocessing technologies, and those efforts matgnally and adversely affect us.
Although we have attained a significant positiortha industry, many of our current and potentiahpetitors may have advantages over us,
which include, among others: lower cost structubester known brand names; ownership and controlariufacturing facilities and greater
expertise in manufacturing processes; motivatioouloycustomers in certain circumstances to fineratite suppliers or choose alternate
technologies; foreign government support of oteehhologies or our competitors; more extensiveaiogiahips with local distribution and
original equipment manufacturer companies in enmgrgeographic regions (such as China); and/or & mstablished presence in certain
device markets.

QTL SegmentQTL grants licenses or otherwise provides rightsge portions of our intellectual property portiolvhich, among other
rights, includes certain patent rights essentiartd/or useful in the manufacture and sale of wevaeless products, including, without
limitation, products implementing CDMA2000, WCDMADMA TDD (including TD-SCDMA), GSM/GPRS/EDGE and/@FDMA
(including LTE) standards and their derivativesr Geensees manufacture wireless products, suchodsle devices, also known as subscriber
units, which include handsets, other consumer @s\ie.g., tablets, laptops, e-readers, personajataon devices), machine-to-machine
devices (e.g., telematics devices, meter readingels) and plug-in end user data modem cards,icenabedded modules for incorporation
into end user products, the infrastructure equigmesuired to establish and operate a network eguipment to test networks and subscriber
units. QTL licensing revenues are comprised ohiéeefees as well as royalties based on worldwiltes &gy licensees of products incorporating
or using our intellectual property. License feesfated amounts paid in one or more installmentsydRies are generally based upon a
percentage of the wholesale (i.e., licensee’sigefirice of complete licensed products, net ofaierpermissible deductions (e.g., certain
shipping costs, packing costs, VAT, etc.). Revemgereerated from royalties are subject to quarimly annual fluctuations. The vast majority
of QTL revenues have been generated through eendies’ sales of CDMA2000- and WCDMA-based prodscish as feature phones and
smartphones.

Separate and apart from licensing manufacturevdrefess devices and network equipment, we haveredtnto certain arrangements
with competitors of our QCT segment, such as BroagdVediaTek, Texas Instruments and VIA Teleconpriicipal purpose of these
arrangements is to provide our QCT segment anddheterparties certain freedom of operation wigpeet to each party’s integrated circuits
business. In every case, these agreements expressiye the right for QTL to seek royalties frdra tustomers of such integrated circuit
suppliers with respect to such suppliers’ custoisaies of CDMA-, WCDMA- and OFDMA-based wirelesavites into which such suppliers’
integrated circuits are incorporated.

We face competition in the development of intellatproperty for future generations of digital vilies communications technologies and
services. On a worldwide basis, we currently compeimarily with the GSM/GPRS/EDGE digital wirelessmmunications technologies.
GSM has been utilized extensively in Europe, muchsia, other than Japan and South Korea, andinesther countries. To date, GSM has
been more widely adopted than CDMA; however, CDMahnologies have been adopted for all 3G wirelgstems. Most GSM operators
deployed GPRS, a packet data technology, as ai@d@ebtechnology, and a number of GSM operatorsoyeiol EDGE. However, the majority
of GSM operators have already augmented their n&sawweith 3G WCDMA and HSPA. According to the Glolmabbile Suppliers Association
(GSA), as of October 2014, more than 330 wirelgmsators have commercially deployed and other esebperators have started testing |
a multi-carrier transmission technique based on RDRechnology. According to GSA, more than 530 Jéss operators have committed to
deploy LTE networks. We have invested in both tbguésition and development of OFDMA technology améllectual property. Upon the
initial deployment of OFDMA-based networks, the guiots implementing such technologies generallyrarkimode and implement CDMA-
based technologies. The licenses granted undenasting CDMA license agreements generally coveltimode CDMA/OFDMA (3G/4G)
devices, and our licensees are obligated to pagltieg under their CDMA license agreements for silebices. Further, over 115 companies
(including LG, Microsoft, Samsung, Sony Mobile afitE) have royalty-bearing licenses under our papentfolio for use in single-mode
OFDMA products (which do not implement any CDMA-bdsstandards).

Since our founding in 1985, we have focused healyechnology development and innovation. Thefetsfthave resulted in a leading
intellectual property portfolio related to, amonger things, wireless technology. We have an extengortfolio of United States and foreign
patents, and we continue to pursue patent apmitafiround the world. Our patents have broad cgedramany countries, including Brazil,
China, India, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan and casin Europe and elsewhere. A substantial podifosur patents and patent applications
relate to digital wireless communications techn@segincluding patents that are essential or maiynipertant to the commercial
implementation of CDMA2000, WCDMA (UMTS), TD-SCDMA,D-CDMA (Time Division CDMA) and OFDMA products.dgause all
commercially deployed forms of CDMA and their datives require the use of our patents, our patertfghio is the most widely and
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extensively licensed portfolio in the industry witier 260 licensees. Additionally, we have a sutigthpatent portfolio related to key
technologies used in communications and other ds\and/or related services, some of which wereldped in industry standards
development bodies. These include H.264 video ctemology, the next generation video codec teldyyaH.265 or high-efficiency video
codec), advanced WLAN (802.11ac), volatile (LP-DDR24) and non-volatile (eMMC) memory controllesperating systems, user
interfaces, graphics and camera processing, pawkagthniques, sensor and sensor fusion algoritmdspplication processor architectures.
We recently added to our patent portfolio by adggipatents related to mobile device operatingesyst(and other/related technologies) from
Hewlett Packard, formerly patents of Palm, an esmartphone and personal operating system pio@eer. the years, a number of companies
have challenged our patent position, but at thig ficompanies in the mobile communications indugényerally recognize that any company
seeking to develop, manufacture and/or sell subsctinits or infrastructure equipment that use CDaMW/or OFDMA technologies will
require a license or other rights to use our patent

We have licensed or otherwise provided rights ®aws patents to hundreds of companies on indastrgpted terms. Unlike some other
companies in our industry that hold back certaiy eehnologies, we offer companies substantiallyemiire patent portfolio for use in cellular
subscriber devices and cell site infrastructuréggant. Our strategy to make our patented techirddgroadly available has been a catalyst
for industry growth, helping to enable a wide ran§eompanies offering a broad array of wirelessdpcts and features while increasing the
capabilities of and/or driving down average and-kmwd selling prices for 3G handsets and other egsetlevices. By licensing or otherwise
providing rights to use our patents to a wide rasfgequipment manufacturers, encouraging innovamaications, supporting equipment
manufacturers with integrated chipset and softyaoelucts and focusing on improving the efficienéyhe airlink for wireless operators, we
have helped 3G CDMA evolve and grow, and reducetitdepricing, all at a faster pace than the 2G ietgies that preceded it (e.g., GSM).

Standards bodies have been informed that we hadhfsathat might be essential for all 3G stand#érdsare based on CDMA. We have
committed to such standards bodies that we wiraid license our essential patents for these CBkAdards on a fair, reasonable and non-
discriminatory basis. We have also informed stagisliodies that we hold patents that might be eisséort certain standards that are based or
OFDMA technology (e.g., 802.16e, 802.16m and LTl(iding FDD and TDD versions)) and have committedffer to license our essential
patents for these OFDMA standards on a fair, restslerand non-discriminatory basis. We have madéasitommitments with respect to
certain other technologies implemented in industayndards.

Our license agreements generally provide us rightse certain of our licensees’ technology andllidtual property to manufacture and
sell certain components (e.g., Application-Spedifiegrated Circuits) and related software, subgcrunits and/or infrastructure equipment. In
most cases, our use of our licensees’ technolodyrdaallectual property does not require us to papalties based on the sale of our products.
However, under some of the licenses, if we incafcertain of our licensees’ licensed technolagyptellectual property into certain of our
products, we are obligated to pay royalties onstile of such products.

QS| SegmentQSI makes strategic investments that are focusespening new or expanding opportunities for ouhtexdogies and
supporting the design and introduction of new paotsland services (or enhancing existing producsenrices) for voice and data
communications. Many of these strategic investmardsn early-stage companies in a variety of itrikess including, but not limited to, digital
media, e-commerce, energy, healthcare and weadabiees. Investments primarily include norarketable equity instruments, which genel
are recorded using the cost method or the equithade and convertible debt instruments, which aserded at fair value. QSI also holds
wireless spectrum, which at September 28, 2014istad of L-Band spectrum in the United Kingdom.p&st of our strategic investment
activities, we intend to pursue various exit sy#ée for each of our QSI investments in the forabkefuture.

Other Businesseduring the first quarter of fiscal 2014, we reasselsour management reporting as a result of tieeodhe North and
Latin America operations of our Omnitracs divisiamong other reasons. The Omnitracs division wasgipusly aggregated with three other
divisions into the Qualcomm Wireless & Internet (Q\WWeportable segment. Starting in fiscal 2014, @WI| segment was eliminated, and the
former QWI divisions are included in nonreportabégments.

Nonreportable segments include our QMT (QualcomnMBET echnologies), Pixtronix and Small Cells divisscand other wireless
technology and service initiatives. QMT plans telise its next generation IMOD (interferometric matbr) display technology and to focus
on wearable devices. Pixtronix develops and licenkigplay technologies based on MEMS (micro-eleotezhanical-systems) structure
optimized for portable multimedia devices. Smalli€develops and supplies 3G/LTE and Wiproducts designed for implementation of sr
mobile base stations (known as small cells). Otloereportable segments develop and offer produnctsarvices that include, but are not
limited to: software products and content and plestalk enablement services to wireless operattegelopment, other services and related
products to U.S. government agencies and theiractors; device-to-device communication, includsedtware for the connected home; data
center products; medical device connectivity anatee data management; and augmented reality.
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SeasonalityMany of our products or intellectual property aredrporated into consumer wireless devices, whietsabject to seasonality
and other fluctuations in demand. As a result, ®@3 tended historically to have stronger salesrmtee end of the calendar year as
manufacturers prepare for major holiday sellingsees; and because QTL recognizes royalty revenbes woyalties are reported by license
QTL has tended to record higher royalty revenuehérfirst calendar quarter when licensees repeit sales made during the fourth calendar
quarter. We have also experienced fluctuationswemues due to the timing of conversions and expas®f 3G and 3G/4G networks by
wireless operators and the timing of launchesagfghip wireless devices that incorporate our prisdaied/or intellectual property. These tre
may or may not continue in the future.

Acquisitions.During fiscal 2014, we acquired 11 businessesdi@ tash consideration of $775 million. In OctoBei4, we announced
that we had reached agreement with CSR plc oretinestof a recommended cash offer to acquire theedasued and to be issued ordinary
share capital of CSR for £9.00 per ordinary shabéch values the entire issued and to be issuee stapital of CSR at approximately £1.6
billion (approximately $2.5 billion based upon acleange rate of USD: GBP 1.6057). CSR is an inrmnvatthe development of multifunctic
semiconductor platforms and technologies for the,azonsumer and voice and music market segmehésagquisition complements our
current offerings by adding products, channelsamdomers in the growth categories of the Inteofi@verything and automotive
infotainment, accelerating our presence and palgsaibership. The acquisition is subject to a nunatbeonditions, including receipt of United
States and other regulatory approvals and the gppod CSR’s shareholders. Subject to the satigfaaif these conditions, the acquisition is
expected to close by the end of the summer of 20/5expect to continue making strategic investmantsacquisitions, the amounts of which
could vary significantly, to open new opportunitfes our technologies, obtain development resouyrgesv our patent portfolio and/or pursue
new businesses.

Discontinued OperationsOn November 25, 2013, we completed our sale oNitieh and Latin America operations of our Omnitracs
division to a U.S.-based private equity firm foshaonsideration of $788 million (net of cash sok} a result, we recorded a gain in
discontinued operations of $665 million ($430 miflinet of income tax expense) during fiscal 20k flevenues and operating results of the
North and Latin America operations of our Omnitrdasgsion, which comprised substantially all of ddmnitracs division, were not presen
as discontinued operations in any fiscal periochbse they were immaterial.

Additional information regarding our operating segnts is provided in the notes to our consolidaitegnitial statements in this Annual
Report in “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statetsieote 8. Segment Information.”

Corporate Structure

We operate our businesses through our parent comQapALCOMM Incorporated, and multiple direct andlirect subsidiaries. We have
developed our corporate structure in order to astdvarious legal, regulatory, tax, contractual clianpe, operations and other matters.

At the beginning of fiscal 2013, we completed goooate reorganization in which certain assets oAQUOMM Incorporated, as well as
the stock of certain of its direct and indirect sidiaries, were contributed to its wholly-owned sidiary Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. (QTI).
QTL continues to be operated by QUALCOMM Incorpethtwhich continues to own the vast majority of patent portfolio. Substantially all
of our products and services businesses, inclu@i@d@, and substantially all of our engineering, eash and development functions, are
operated by QTI and its subsidiaries. Neither Qdrlany of its subsidiaries has any right, poweathority to grant any licenses or other ri
under or to any patents owned by QUALCOMM Incorpeda

Revenue Concentrations, Significant Customers and édgraphical Information

Consolidated revenues from international custoraedslicensees as a percentage of total revenues988ét , 97% and 95% in fiscal
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively. During fig@l4 , 50% , 23% and 1186 our revenues were from customers and licensagsdin Chin
(including Hong Kong), South Korea and Taiwan, extjvely, compared to 49% , 20% and 11% duringafi2®13 , respectively, and 42% ,
22% and 14% during fiscal 2012 , respectively. \&mort revenues from external customers by courgsgth on the location to which our
products or services are delivered, which for Q€g@enerally the country in which our customers nfacture their products, or for licensing
revenues, the invoiced addresses of our licengees . result, the revenues by country presentedrhare not necessarily indicative of either
the country in which the devices containing ourdaicts and/or intellectual property are ultimatedlldso consumers or the country in which
companies that sell the devices are headquarteoedxample, China revenues could include reverelated to shipments of integrated
circuits to a company that is headquartered ints&otrea but that manufactures devices in Chinaclvbevices are then sold to consumers in
Europe and/or the United States. Additional gedg@mformation is provided in the notes to our solidated financial statements in this
Annual Report in “Notes to Consolidated Financi@t&ments, Note 8. Segment Information.”
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A small number of customers/licensees historidadlye accounted for a significant portion of oursmlitated revenues. In fiscal 2014 ,
2013 and 2012, revenues from Samsung Electront$ian Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd./Foxconas,dffiliates and other suppliers to
Apple Inc. constituted more than 10% of consolida&venues.

Research and Development

The communications industry is characterized bydrégrhnological change, requiring a continuousrétio enhance existing products anc
technologies and to develop new products and tdopims. We have significant engineering resourcesyding engineers with substantial
expertise in CDMA, OFDMA and a broad range of otteehnologies. Using these engineering resourcegxpect to continue to invest in
research and development in a variety of ways iaftort to extend the demand for our products amgises, including continuing the
development of CDMA, OFDMA and other technologigsyeloping alternative technologies for certaincigdezed applications, participating
in the formulation of new voice and data commuri@astandards and technologies and assisting ilogieg digital voice and data
communications networks around the world. Our neteand development team has a demonstrated taokd of innovation in voice and d
communication technologies and application proaetsimhnology, among others. Our research and denednt expenditures in fiscal 2014 ,
2013 and 2012 totaled approximately $5.5 billi&5.0 billion and $3.9 billion , respectively.

We develop, commercialize and actively support 3BVid-based technologies, including CDMA2000 1X, 10, EV-DO Revision
A, EV-DO Revision B, 1X Advanced, WCDMA, HSDPA, HB4 and HSPA+, TD-SCDMA, as well as OFDMA-based Lf€Ehnologies,
products and network operations, to grow our rgyaftd integrated circuit and related software reesn\We also make acquisitions to meet
certain technology needs, to obtain developmewiuregs or to pursue new business opportunities.

We make investments to provide our integrated @ticustomers with chipsets designed on leading-¢elgenology nodes that combine
multiple technologies for use in consumer devieeg.( smartphones, tablets, laptops), consumetrehécs and other products (e.g., access
points and routers, data cards and infrastructyugppenent). In addition to 3G and 4G LTE technolggieur chipsets support other wireless an
wired connectivity technologies, including WLAN,tooth, Ethernet, GPS, GLONASS, BeiDou and Pomedommunication. Our
integrated chipsets often include multiple techgis, including advanced multimode modems, apptingirocessors and graphics engines, a
well as the tools to connect these diverse teclgiedo We continue to support Android, Windows atiteomobile client software
environments in our chipsets.

We develop on our own, and with our partners, imtions that are integrated into our product podftd further expand the opportunity
for wireless communications and enhance the valoeioproducts and services. These innovationggpected to enable our customers to
improve the performance or value of their exisiegvices, offer these services more affordablyiatrdduce revenue-generating broadband
data services ahead of their competition.

We have research and development centers in vddoasons throughout the world that support owbal development activities and
ongoing efforts to advance CDMA, OFDMA and a broadige of other technologies. We continue to usesobstantial engineering resources
and expertise to develop new technologies, apitsitand services and make them available to lesen® help grow the communications
industry and generate new or expanded licensingroyppities.

We make investments across a broad spectrum oftypities that leverage our existing technical Andiness expertise to deploy new
business models and enter into new industry segmsmth as new display technologies and technaldgiaddress: the growth of mobile data
traffic, including products and software designedthe implementation of small cells, which canused by carriers to extend the capacity of
licensed and unlicensed wireless spectrum; thdestge of meeting the increased demand for datagdheected home and the Internet of
Everything; data centers; automotive; very highesbeonnectivity; mobile health; wireless chargiagg machine learning, including robotics.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing activities of our operatingrsengts are discussed under Operating Segments. @#rketing activities include public
relations, advertising, web-marketing, participatio technical conferences and trade shows, deneapof business cases and white papers,
competitive analyses, industry intelligence andceptharketing programs, such as marketing developfoads with our customers. Our
Corporate Marketing department provides companyrination on our Internet site and through otherimegharding our products, strategies
and technology to industry analysts and for pulibces.
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Competition

Competition faced by our operating segments isudised under Operating Segments. Competition indhenunications industry
throughout the world continues to increase at arppce as consumers, businesses and governmalige tee potential of wireless
communications products and services. We havadttgeitl competition in the wireless communicatiarduistry by licensing our technologies
to, and therefore enabling, a large number of matufers. Although we have attained a significargifon in the industry, many of our
current and potential competitors may have advastager us, which include, among others: lower swattures; better known brand names;
ownership and control of manufacturing facilitiexlayreater expertise in manufacturing processetivation by our customers in certain
circumstances to find alternate suppliers or chadteenate technologies; foreign government supgioother technologies or our competitors;
more extensive relationships with local distribatend original equipment manufacturer companiesnerging geographic regions (such as
China); and/or a more established presence inicatévice markets. These relationships may affastarners’ decisions to purchase products
or license technology from us. Accordingly, new @atitors or alliances among competitors could emeartd rapidly acquire significant
market positions to our detriment.

We expect competition to increase as our currempetitors expand their product offerings and intielnew technologies and services ir
the future and as additional companies compete auittproducts or services based on 3G, 4G or edohnologies. Although we intend to
continue to make substantial investments in dewedppew products and technologies and improvingteg products and technologies, our
competitors may introduce alternative productsyises or technologies that threaten our businéssalso possible that the prices we charge
for our products and services may continue to dedis competition continues to intensify.

Corporate Responsibility

We strive to better our local and global commusitierough ethical business practices, socially emepimg technology applications,
educational and environmental programs and empldivegsity and volunteerism.

* Our GovernanceWe aim to demonstrate accountability, transpareimtggrity and ethical business practices througloou
operations and interactions with our stakeholders.

» Our ProductsWe strive to meet or exceed industry standardprfoduct responsibility and supplier managen

«  Our WorkplaceWe endeavor to provide a safe and healthy workrenment where diversity is embraced and variouodppities
for training, growth and advancement are stronglyoeiraged for all employees.

e Our CommunityWe have strategic relationships with a wide ranfgeceal organizations and programs that developsarehgthen
communities worldwide.

e Our EnvironmentWe aim to expand our operations while minimizing carbon footprint, conserving water and reduciragts

» Wireless ReachlVe invest in strategic projects that foster eneapurship, aid in public safety, enhance delivédyealth care, enrich
teaching and learning and improve environmentabsusbility through the use of advanced wirelesttelogies.

Employees

At September 28, 2014 , we employed approximatg|g@® full-time, part-time and temporary employd@sring fiscal 2014 the numbe
of employees increased by approximately 300, pilyndue to increases in engineering resourcesighigroffset by decreases in general and
administrative resources.

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.qualcomm.com. Therenake available, free of charge, our annual repofarm 10K, quarterly reports @
Form 10-Q, current reports on FornkK8nd any amendments to those reports, as so@aasnably practicable after we electronically Sileh
material with, or furnish it to, the Securities aixichange Commission (SEC). We also make availableur Internet site public financial
information for which a report is not required ® filed with or furnished to the SEC. Our SEC répand other financial information can be
accessed through the investor relations secti@muofnternet site. The information found on ourehmiet site is not part of this or any other
report we file with or furnish to the SEC.
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Executive Officers
Our executive officers (and their ages at Septer28e2014 ) are as follows:

Paul E. Jacobs, age 51, has served as Executiver@hasince March 2014. He has served as Chairftredoard of Directors since
March 2009 and as a director since June 2005. Wedas Chief Executive Officer from July 2005 tafgh 2014 and as Group President of
Qualcomm Wireless & Internet from July 2001 to J@085. In addition, he served as Executive Vicesigient from February 2000 to
June 2005. Dr. Jacobs holds a B.S. degree in alcEngineering and Computer Science, an M.S.afenr Electrical Engineering and a Pt
degree in Electrical Engineering and Computer S&drom the University of California, Berkeley.

Steven M. Mollenkopf, age 45, has served as ChietHtive Officer since March 2014 and as a diresiioce December 2013. He served
as Chief Executive Officer-elect and President fidetember 2013 to March 2014. He served as PrasadenChief Operating Officer from
November 2011 to December 2013. In addition, heeskas Executive Vice President and Group Presfdemt September 2010 to Novemt
2011, as Executive Vice President and Preside®@@F from August 2008 to September 2010, as Exeetice President, QCT Product
Management from May 2008 to August 2008, as Sevie President, Engineering and Product Managefnemt July 2006 to May 2008 and
as Vice President, Engineering from April 2002 wity 2006. Mr. Mollenkopf joined Qualcomm in 1994 &s engineer and throughout his
tenure at Qualcomm held several other technicaleadkrship roles. Mr. Mollenkopf holds a B.S. dagin Electrical Engineering from
Virginia Tech and an M.S. degree in Electrical Eregiring from the University of Michigan.

Derek K. Aberle, age 44, has served as Presidec¢ 8ilarch 2014. He served as Executive Vice Presaled Group President from
November 2011 to March 2014, as President of QdmmfEeptember 2008 to November 2011 and as SenterRfiesident and Gene
Manager of QTL from October 2006 to September 2008 Aberle joined Qualcomm in December 2000 aridro October 2006 held
positions ranging from Legal Counsel to Vice Presidand General Manager of QTL. Mr. Aberle holds A. degree in Business Economics
from the University of California, Santa BarbaralanJ.D. degree from the University of San Diego.

Cristiano R. Amon, age 44, has served as ExecViive President, Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. (aisidry of Qualcomm Incorporate
and Co-President of QCT since October 2012. Heesemg Senior Vice President, Qualcomm IncorporatedCo-President of QCT from June
2012 to October 2012, as Senior Vice President, @@Huct Management from October 2007 to June 20#2as Vice President, QCT
Product Management from September 2005 to Octdi@r.2Mr. Amon joined Qualcomm in 1995 as an engiaeel throughout his tenure at
Qualcomm held several other technical and leadersihés. Mr. Amon holds a B.S. degree in Electrieagineering from UNICAMP, the State
University of Campinas, Brazil.

George S. Davis, age 57, has served as Executoe=Rfiesident and Chief Financial Officer since M&013. Prior to joining Qualcomm,
Mr. Davis was Chief Financial Officer of Applied Kaials, Inc., a provider of manufacturing equipmeervices and software to the
semiconductor, flat panel display, solar photovoléand related industries, from November 2006 tad1&2013. Mr. Davis held several other
leadership roles at Applied Materials from Novemb@®9 to November 2006. Prior to joining Appliedtistdals, Mr. Davis served 19 years
with Atlantic Richfield Company in a number of fimee and other corporate positions. Mr. Davis hal@sA. degree in Economics and
Political Science from Claremont McKenna Collegd an M.B.A. degree from the University of CalifaanlLos Angeles.

Matthew S. Grob, age 48, has served as Executive Niesident, Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. and Aréehnology Officer since
October 2012. He served as Executive Vice Presidamlcomm Incorporated and Chief Technology Officem July 2011 to October 2012
and as Senior Vice President, Engineering from 2086 to July 2011. Mr. Grob joined Qualcomm in Asg1991 as an engineer and
throughout his tenure at Qualcomm held severalrddwhnical and leadership roles. Mr. Grob hol@ % degree in Electrical Engineering
from Bradley University and an M.S. degree in Hieel Engineering from Stanford University.

Venkata S.M. “Murthy” Renduchintala, age 49, havee as Executive Vice President, Qualcomm Teclgie) Inc. and Co-President of
QCT since October 2012. He served as Senior Viesidknt, Qualcomm Incorporated and Co-Preside@@¥ from June 2012 to October
2012, as Senior Vice President, QCT Engineeringpf@actober 2007 to June 2012 and as Vice PresiQ&it, Engineering from April 2004 to
October 2007. Dr. Renduchintala holds a B.E. degrédectrical Engineering, an M.B.A. degree arf@haD. degree in Digital Communication
from the University of Bradford, United Kingdom.

Donald J. Rosenberg, age 63, has served as Exedlitie President, General Counsel and Corporateteg since October 2007. He
served as Senior Vice President, General CounseCanporate Secretary of Apple Inc. from Decemii¥y&2to October 2007. From May 1975
to November 2006, Mr. Rosenberg held numerousipasitit IBM Corporation, including Senior Vice Hoent and General Counsel.

Mr. Rosenberg holds a B.S. degree in Mathemat@@s the State University of New York at Stony Braoid a J.D. degree from St. John’s
University School of Law.
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Daniel L. Sullivan, age 63, has served as Execitice President of Human Resources since August.286 served as Senior Vice
President of Human Resources from February 19961§02001. Dr. Sullivan holds a B.S. degree in Camization from lllinois State
University, an M.A. degree in Communication from $¥/¥irginia University and a Ph.D. degree in Comimation from the University of
Nebraska

James H. Thompson, age 50, has served as Exevlitiwéresident, Engineering for Qualcomm Techna@sginc. since October 2012.
served as Senior Vice President, Engineering fal€@mm Incorporated from July 1998 to October 2@r2. Thompson joined Qualcomm in
1992 as a senior engineer and throughout his textu@eialcomm held several other technical and Isaderoles. Dr. Thompson holds B.S.,
M.S. and Ph.D. degrees in Electrical Engineeringnfthe University of Wisconsin.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should consider each of the following factagsagll as the other information in this Annual Repo evaluating our business and our
prospects. The risks and uncertainties describkxviere not the only ones we face. Additional riaksl uncertainties not presently known to
us or that we currently consider immaterial may atspair our business operations. If any of théfeing risks actually occur, our business
and financial results could be harmed. In that céeetrading price of our common stock could dexzliYou should also refer to the other
information set forth in this Annual Report, incing our financial statements and the related notes.

Risks Related to Our Businesses

Our revenues depend on commercial network deploytagaexpansions and upgrades of CDMA, OFDMA and atlmemmunications
technologies, our customers’ and licensees’ saléproducts and services based on these technologiesour ability to drive our customers’
demand for our products and services.

We develop, patent and commercialize technologypoducts based on CDMA, OFDMA and other commuinvosttechnologies, which
are primarily wireless. We depend on our custonarslicensees and operators of wireless netwarkse these technologies in their adoptiot
of our products and services into their devicesrastd/orks and on the timing of their deployments@iv products and services. We also
depend on our customers and licensees to devetalugls and services with value-added featuresite donsumer demand for new 3G,
3G/4G multimode and 4G devices, as well as thingglirices for such devices. Further, our rateeeEnue growth may depend on third partie
incorporating our technology, products and/or smwiinto new device types used in industries beyauitional cellular communications. Our
revenues and/or growth in revenues could be neggtimpacted, our business may be harmed and dstantial investments in these
technologies may not provide us an adequate refurn,

» wireless operators and industries beyond traditioeéular communications deploy alternative tedogees

» wireless operators delay 3G and 3G/4G multimodevort deployments, expansions or upgrades and/aydebving 2G customers
3G, 3G/4G multimode or 4G wireless devices;

 LTE, an OFDMAbased 4G wireless technology, is not more wideplalged or further commercial deployment is dela

e government regulators delay making sufficierdcdpum available for 3G and/or 3G/4G networks, ebgrrestricting the expansion of
3G/4G wireless connectivity to keep pace with comsudemand;

» wireless operators are unable to drive improvemian®& or 3G/4G multimode network performance andapacity

e our customers’ and licensees’ revenues and sal@®ducts, particularly premiutier products, and services using these technalg
do not grow or do not grow as quickly as anticigattue to, for example, the maturity of smartphpesetration in developed regions
(where premium-tier products are common); and/or

e we are unable to drive the adoption of our patsiand services into networks and devices bas&DMA, OFDMA and other
communications technologies.

Our industry is subject to competition in an envitment of rapid technological change that could rdsin decreased demand and/or
declining average selling prices for our productacthose of our customers and/or licensees andisult in placing new specifications or
requirements on our products, each of which couldgatively affect our revenues and operating results

Our products, services and technologies face sigmf competition, and the revenues they generatfathe timing of such revenues,
which depend on deployments and/or actions by stmeay not meet expectations. We expect competitiamcrease as our current
competitors expand their product offerings andeag apportunities develop, putting continued pressur the pricing of our products and
services. Competition in wireless communicatiorafiected by various factors that include, amorge: device manufacturer concentrations
growth in emerging geographic regions; governmetervention; evolving
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industry standards and business models; evolvirthads of transmission of voice and data commurdoatiincreasing data traffic and
densification of wireless networks; convergenceafismission platforms (including Wi-Fi and smalldnfrastructures), which is also
described as the consolidation of access poirtteeatdge of the Internet; networking and connegtivends (including cloud services);
evolving nature of computing (including demanddéways on, always connected capabilities); the djpé¢echnological change (including t
transition to smaller geometry process technoldgiedue-added features that drive selling pricessall as consumer demand for new 3G,
3G/4G multimode and 4G devices; turnkey, integrpiedlucts that incorporate hardware, software, ugerface, applications and reference
designs; rapid growth in mobile data consumptiaajability; and the ability of the system techngldg meet customers’ immediate and future
network requirements. We anticipate that additi@mmhpetitors will introduce products as a resulg@wth opportunities in wireless
communications, the trend toward global expansipfobeign and domestic competitors, technological public policy changes and relatively
low barriers to entry in certain segments of thadustry.

Our future success will depend on, among othepfacbur ability to:

» develop innovative, differentiated integrated cirguoducts and technologies across multiple pregland features (e.g., modem, re
frequency front end, central, graphics and/or offtecessors and connectivity) and with smaller getoyprocess technologies;

» develop and offer integrated circuit products@npetitive cost and price points to effectivebwer both emerging and developed
geographic regions and multiple device tiers (@gmium- and low-tier smartphones);

e continue to drive the adoption of our integrat@duit products into the most popular device nisdad across a broad spectrum of
devices, such as smartphones, tablets and otheectud devices, and infrastructure products;

e maintain and/or accelerate demand for our iatiegk circuit products at the premium device tidrilevincreasing the adoption of our
products in lowtier devices and in the turnkey product channepart by strengthening our integrated circuit paidoadmap for, an
developing channel relationships in, emerging gapigic regions, such as China and India, and byigiray turnkey products, which
incorporate our integrated circuits, for low- anitiftier smartphones and tablets;

e continue to be a leader in 4G technology evolutincluding expansion of our OFDMA-based singledm licensing program, and
continue to innovate and introduce 4G turnkey,graged products and services that differentiatars our competition;

» be aleader serving original equipment manufact high level operating systems (HLOS) provideperators and other industry
participants as competitors, new industry entrantsother factors continue to affect the indusandkcape;

» be a preferred partner (and sustain preferdatisaships) providing integrated circuit produtiat support multiple operating system
and infrastructure platforms to industry particifgatiat effectively commercialize new devices ushgge platforms;

* increase and/or accelerate demand for our véirebwireless connectivity products, including netdrg products for consumers,
carriers and enterprise equipment and connectedetev

* become a leading supplier of small cell modems ¢tvienable inexpensive cell sites deployed by userennect to traditional cellul
networks through wired internet connections) aralipcts that enable Wi-Fi access to support sigmifimetwork capacity expansion
that will be needed to meet anticipated growth obite data traffic;

» identify potential acquisition targets that wglow or sustain our business or address strateggids, reach agreement on terms
acceptable to us and effectively integrate thesemesinesses and/or technologies;

» create stand-alone value and/or contributeecstitcess of our existing businesses through atguogsand other investments (and/or
by developing customer, licensee and/or vendotiogiships) in new industry segments and/or disugptiechnologies, products and
services (such as the connected home and the éntgfrEverything, automotive products, new disglghnologies, mobile health,
machine learning, including robotics and wireldsarging, among others; and/or

» continue to develop brand recognition to effeslif compete against better known companies in la@oimputing and other consumer
driven segments and to deepen our presence iffisagmiemerging geographic regions.

Competition in any or all product tiers, customeneentration and/or growth in sales of low-tiergwots, particularly relative to premium-
tier products, may reduce average selling pricestio chipset products and the products of ouracusts and licensees. Certain of these
dynamics are particularly pronounced in emergingggaphic regions (e.g. China). Reductions in theraye selling prices of our chipset
products, without a corresponding increase in velsimvould negatively impact our revenues, and witlcorresponding decreases in average
unit costs, would negatively impact our marginsadidition,
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reductions in the average selling prices of owrlgees’ products, unless offset by an increaselimes, would generally decrease total
royalties payable to us, negatively impacting éeerising revenues.

Companies that promote standards that are neitb&A: nor OFDMA-based (e.g., GSM, Wi-Fi) as well @smpanies that design
integrated circuits based on CDMA, OFDMA or thedridatives are generally competitors or potentimhpetitors. Examples (some of which
are strategic partners of ours in other areasydecBroadcom, Ericsson, HiSilicon Technologieslintantig, Marvell Technology, Maxim
Integrated Products, MediaTek, nVidia, Realtek Semiuctor, Samsung Electronics, Spreadtrum Commatiaits (which is controlled by
Tsinghua Unigroup), Texas Instruments and VIA TetecSome of these current and potential competitave advantages over us that
include, among others: lower cost structures; b&ttewn brand names; ownership and control of maetufing facilities and greater expertise
in manufacturing processes; motivation by our augis in certain circumstances to find alternatebers or chose alternative technologies;
foreign government support of other technologiesampetitors; more extensive relationships wittalatistribution companies and original
equipment manufacturers in emerging geographionsgisuch as China); and/or a more establishe@mpredn certain device markets.

Certain of our software and our suppliers’ softwaigy contain or may be derived from “open souradtvgare, and we have seen, and
believe we will continue to see, an increase iniausrs requesting that we develop products, inoydbftware associated with our integrated
circuit products, that incorporate open sourcevami elements and operate in an open source eménain which, under certain open source
licenses, may offer accessibility to a portion @iraduct’'s source code and may expose relatedentedl property to adverse licensing
conditions. Licensing of such software may imposeain obligations on us if we were to distributgidative works of the open source
software. For example, these obligations may requérto make source code for the derivative wovkdable to our customers in a manner
allows them to make such source code availabledio tustomers, or license such derivative worldeura particular type of license that is
different than what we customarily use to licengesoftware. Developing open source products, wddlequately protecting the intellectual
property rights upon which our licensing businesgahds, may prove burdensome and time-consumirgy @edain circumstances, thereby
placing us at a competitive disadvantage. Also,userand our customers’ use of open source softwayesubject our products and our
customers’ products to governmental scrutiny andyden product certification, which could causestamers to view our products as less
desirable than our competitors’ products. Whilebeéeve we have taken appropriate steps and engpleguate controls to protect our
intellectual property rights, our use of open sewcftware presents risks that could have an agheffsct on these rights and on our business

We derive a significant portion of our consolidatedvenues from a small number of customers and tisees. If revenues derived from the
customers or licensees decrease or the timing ahstevenues fluctuates, our operating results coldd negatively affected.

Our QCT segment derives a significant portion ekraies from a small number of customers, and weatthis trend to continue in the
foreseeable future. Our industry is experiencing iy continue to experience an increasing conagortr of device share among a few
companies contributing to this trend. In additione of our integrated circuit competitors is pdra @onglomerate that includes one of our
largest integrated circuit customers. The losswgf@ne of our significant customers, a reductiothispurchases of our products by such
customers or cancelation of significant purchasas fany of these customers would reduce our re\eeané could harm our ability to achieve
or sustain expected operating results, and a délsignificant purchases, even if only temporarguid reduce our revenues in the period o
delay. Further, concentration of device share ansofegv companies, and the corresponding purchgesingr of these companies, may result
in lower prices for our products which, if not aogeanied by a sufficient increase in the volumewthpases of our products, could have an
adverse effect on our revenues and margins. Irtiaddthe timing and size of purchases by our $igant customers may be impacted by the
timing of such customers’ new or next generatiardpct introductions, over which we have little a@rcontrol, and the timing of such
introductions may cause our operating resultsuctdiate. Accordingly, if current industry dynamarsd concentrations continue, our QCT
segment’s revenues will continue to depend largplyn, and be impacted by, future purchases antintireg and size of any such future
purchases by these significant customers.

Further, companies that develop HLOS for deviaeduding leading technology companies, have entdredevice market. If we fail to
effectively partner or continue partnering withgeeompanies, or with their partners or custonikey, may decide not to purchase (either
directly or through their contract manufactureos)to reduce or discontinue their purchases ofjmtegrated circuit products.

In addition, there has been and continues to igatibn among certain of our customers and othawsiry participants, and the potential
outcomes of such litigation, including but not lted to injunctions against devices that incorpooateproducts and/or intellectual property or
rulings on certain patent law or patent licenssggues that create new legal precedent, could ingpadiusiness, particularly if such action
impacts one of our larger customers.

Although we have more than 260 CDMA-based license@sQTL segment derives a significant portiotia#nsing revenues from a
limited number of licensees. In the event that @nmore of our significant licensees fail to mdwit
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reporting and/or payment requirements or we ardlerta renew one or more of such license agreemeuatsevenues, operating results and
cash flows would be adversely impacted. Moreoves fiture growth and success of our core licenbirginess will depend in part on the
ability of our licensees to develop, introduce detiver high-volume products that achieve and $ustastomer acceptance. We have little or
no control over the product development, sales&ffar pricing of products by our licensees, andlimensees might not be successful.
Reductions in the average selling prices of wirelsvices sold by our major licensees, withoutficéent increase in the volumes of such
devices sold, would generally have an adverse teffeour licensing revenues.

The continued and future success of our licensingpbgrams can be impacted by the deployment of otieehnologies in place of
technologies based on CDMA, OFDMA and their deriiags; the need to extend certain existing licenggeements that are expiring and/or
to cover additional later patents; and/or the susseof our licensing programs for 4G single mode guzts and emerging industry segments.

Although we own a very strong portfolio of issuadigpending patents related to GSM, GPRS, EDGE, OFODRDMA, WLAN, MIMO
and other technologies, our patent portfolio liGeggprogram in these areas is less establishednégitt not be as successful in generating
licensing revenues as our CDMA licensing programanilwireless operators are investigating, havectsdeor have deployed OFDMA-based
LTE as their next-generation 4G technology in éxgs{or future if not yet deployed) wireless spantrbands as complementary to their
existing CDMAbased networks. While 3G/4G multimode productsgareerally covered by our existing 3G licensing agrents, products th
implement 4G that do not also implement 3G are gdlyenot covered by these agreements. Althouglblieve that our patented technology
is essential and useful to implementation of th& lifdustry standards and have granted royalty-bgdiéenses to more than 115 companies
(including LG, Microsoft, Samsung, Sony Mobile afitE) that have realized that they need a licensleuaur patents to make and sell
products implementing 4G standards but not impldingr8G standards, it may be difficult to agreenoaterial terms and/or conditions of new
license agreements that are acceptable to us witipanies that are currently unlicensed, particyliariChina. Further, the royalty rates for
single mode 4G products are generally lower tharrayalty rates for 3G and 3G/4G multimode produatsd therefore, we might not achieve
the same licensing revenues on such LTE produais 86 and 3G/4G multimode products. In additie@wmonnectivity and other services
are emerging that rely on devices that may or nzybe used on traditional cellular networks, sull@vices used in the connected home or
the Internet of Everything. We also seek to divigrand broaden our technology licensing programsetw industry segments in which we can
leverage our technology leadership, such as wsealkarging, display and other technologies. Stalsd@ven de facto standards, that develop
as these technologies mature, in particular thosedo not include a base level of interoperabitityay impact our ability to obtain royalties t
are equivalent to those that we receive for 3G3BMG multimode products used in cellular commutivee. Although we believe that our
patented technology is essential and useful tadn@mercialization of such services, the royaltiesraceive may be lower than those we
receive from our current licensing program.

Over the long-term, we need to continue to evolvepatent portfolio. If we do not maintain a strqmartfolio that is applicable to current
and/or future products and/or services, our fuligensing revenues could be negatively impacted.

The licenses granted to and from us under a nugfbmur license agreements include only patentsateeither filed or issued prior to a
certain date and, in a small number of agreemenysjties are payable on those patents for a 9pddiime period. As a result, there are
agreements with some licensees where later paaentsot licensed by or to us and/or royalties ateowed to us under such license agreen
after the specified time period. In order to licems to obtain a license to such later patent) oeceive royalties after the specified time
period, we will need to extend or modify such liseragreements or enter into new license agreeméhtsuch licensees. We might not be
able to modify those license agreements, or enterriew license agreements, in the future withéfecing the material terms and conditions
of our license agreements with such licenseessaold modifications or new agreements may negatingbact our revenues. If there is a de
in renewing a license agreement prior to its exjoing there would be a delay in our ability to rgnize revenues related to that licensee’s
product sales. Further, if we are unable to regchaanent on such modifications or new agreementepid result in patent infringement
litigation with such companies.

Efforts by some communications equipment manufaats or their customers to avoid paying fair and szmable royalties for the use
our intellectual property may require the investmiesf substantial management time and financial regges and may result in legal
decisions and/or actions by governments, courtgulators or agencies, Standards Development Orgatians (SDOs) or other industry
organizations that harm our business.

From time to time, companies initiate various s#s to attempt to renegotiate, mitigate andiarieate their need to pay royalties to us
for the use of our intellectual property. Thesatstgies have included: (i) litigation, often alleginfringement of patents held by such
companies, patent misuse, patent exhaustion, patelidity and/or unenforceability of our pateatsd/or licenses, or some form of unfair
competition; (ii) taking positions contrary to aumderstanding of their contracts with us; (iii) ep[s to governmental authorities; (iv) collec
action, including working with wireless operatastandards bodies, other like-minded companies #rat organizations, on both formal and
informal bases, to adopt intellectual
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property policies and practices that could haveefffiect of limiting returns on intellectual propgrhnovations; (v) lobbying governmental
regulators and elected officials for the purposea®king the imposition of some form of compuldargnsing and/or to weaken a patent
holder’s ability to enforce its rights or obtaiffiadr return for such rights; and (vi) licenseesngsvarious strategies in attempts to shift their
royalty obligation to their suppliers. In additiqugrticularly in China, certain licensees have disg or underreported royalties owed to us
under their license agreements with us, and cectaimpanies have yet to enter into or delayed ergenito license agreements with us for their
use of our intellectual property, and such licessa®d/or companies may continue to do so in thedut

We are currently subject to litigation and varigesernmental investigations and/or proceedings.esohwhich may arise out of the
strategies described above. Certain legal matterdescribed more fully in the notes to our comd#d financial statements. See “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 7 - Comenitsiand Contingencies.” The unfavorable resolutfoone or more of these matters
could have a material adverse effect on our busjmesults of operations, financial condition and@sh flows. Depending on the type of
matter, various remedies that could result fronu@afiavorable resolution include, among others, iofioms, monetary damages or fines or o
orders to pay money and the issuance of ordersaseccertain conduct and/or modify our businessipes.

In addition, in connection with our participatioan$DOs, we, like other patent owners, generallyelraade contractual commitments to
such organizations to license those of our pathatswould necessarily be infringed by standard4gitant products (standaressential patent
on terms that are fair, reasonable and nondiscaitoig (FRAND). Some manufacturers and users ofdstalkcompliant products advance
interpretations of these FRAND commitments thatagheerse to our licensing business, including pregations that would limit the amount of
royalties that we could collect on the licensingof patent portfolio.

Further, some companies or entities have propdgedisant changes to existing intellectual progepblicies for implementation by SD¢
and other industry organizations with the goalighiicantly devaluing standard-essential patefts. example, some have put forth proposals
which would require a maximum aggregate intellelgwaperty royalty rate for the use of all standasgential patents owned by all of the
member companies to be applied to the selling i@y product implementing the relevant standa@hey have further proposed that such
maximum aggregate royalty rate be apportioned ¢tb @ember company with standard-essential patastscbupon the number of standard-
essential patents held by such company. Othersgrap®sed that injunctions not be an available oyrier infringement of standard-essential
patents and/or have made proposals that couldedguenit damage awards and other remedies by sdartpatent infringement (e.g., by
severely limiting the base upon which the royakygentage may be applied). A number of these giest@re purportedly based on
interpretations of the policies of certain SDOsa@ming the licensing of patents that are or magdsential to industry standards and on our
(and/or other companies’) alleged failure to aliigehese policies.

Some courts and governmental agencies have adaptechay in the future adopt some or all of theserjmetations or proposals in a
manner adverse to our interests, and SDOs may adoptinterpretations or proposals as so-calladficitions or amendments to their
intellectual property policies.

We expect that such proposals, interpretationsstnatiegies will continue in the future, and if sessful, our business model would be
harmed, either by limiting or eliminating our ahjlto collect royalties on all or a portion of quattent portfolio, limiting our return on
investment with respect to new technologies, lingitour ability to seek injunctions against infringef our standard-essential patents,
constraining our ability to make licensing commititsewhen submitting our technology for inclusiorfuture standards (which could make
technology less likely to be included in such stadd) or forcing us to work outside of SDOs or othdustry groups to promote our new
technologies, and our results of operations coalddpatively impacted. In addition, the legal atiteocosts associated with asserting or
defending our positions have been and continue tsignificant. We assume that such challengesrd&zss of their merits, will continue into
the foreseeable future and may require the invagtofesubstantial management time and financiausses.

The enforcement and protection of our intellectuptoperty rights may be expensive, could fail to yeat misappropriation or unauthorized
use of our proprietary intellectual property rightgould result in the loss of our ability to enfoecone or more patents, or could be adversely
affected by changes in patent laws, by laws in agrtforeign jurisdictions that may not effectivelgrotect our intellectual property rights or
by ineffective enforcement of laws in such juristians.

We rely primarily on patent, copyright, trademariddrade secret laws, as well as nondisclosureanfidentiality agreements,
international treaties and other methods, to ptaiec proprietary information, technologies andgasses, including our patent portfolio.
Policing unauthorized use of our products, techgieand proprietary information is difficult ariche consuming. We cannot be certain that
the steps we have taken, or may take in the fututieprevent the misappropriation or unauthorizes of our proprietary information and
technologies, particularly in foreign countries wééhe laws may not protect our proprietary intli@l property rights as fully or as readily as
United States laws or where the enforcement of fawwh may be lacking or ineffective. Some indugtayticipants who have a vested interest
in devaluing patents in general, or standard-egdeydtents in particular, have mounted attackseartain patent systems, increasing the
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likelihood of changes to established patent lawshé United States, there is continued discusgigarding potential patent law changes. The
laws in certain foreign countries in which our puots are or may be manufactured or sold, includertain countries in Asia, may not protect
our intellectual property rights to the same extenthe laws in the United States. We expect thtitd next few years the European Union will
adopt a unitary patent system that may broadly anhat region’s patent regime. We cannot predith wertainty the long-term effects of any
potential changes. In addition, we cannot be aettat the laws and policies of any country orglectices of any standards bodies, foreign or
domestic, with respect to intellectual propertyagoément or licensing or the adoption of standasdlsnot be changed in the future in a way
detrimental to our licensing program or to the salese of our products or technology.

We have had and may in the future have difficultgértain circumstances in protecting or enfor@ogintellectual property rights and/or
contracts, including collecting royalties for udeoar patent portfolio in particular foreign juristions due to, among others: policies of foreigr
governments; challenges to our licensing practiceter such jurisdictions’ competition laws; adoptaf mandatory licensing provisions by
foreign jurisdictions (either with controlled/regtgd royalties or royalty free); failure of foreigourts to recognize and enforce judgments of
contract breach and damages issued by courts ldritied States; and/or challenges pending befaridn competition agencies to the pricing
and integration of additional features and funciidy into our chipset products. Although our liseragreements provide us with the right to
audit the books and records of licensees, auditbeaxpensive, time consuming, incomplete ancestibp dispute. Particularly in China,
certain licensees have disputed or underreportglties owed to us under their license agreemeittsug, and certain companies have yet to
enter into or delayed entering into license agregsr their use of our intellectual property, anueth licensees and/or companies may
continue to do so in the future.

We may need to litigate in the United States oswlsere in the world to enforce our contract anditellectual property rights, protect our
trade secrets or determine the validity and scdpeaprietary rights of others. As a result of augh litigation, we could lose our ability to
enforce one or more patents, portions of our lieaagreements could be determined to be invalicheniorceable and/or we could incur
substantial unexpected operating costs. Any aet@make to enforce our contract or intellectualpemy rights could be costly and could
absorb significant management time and attentidmchy in turn, could negatively impact our opergtiesults. Further, even a positive
resolution to our enforcement efforts may take timeonclude, which may reduce our revenues irp#red prior to conclusion.

We are subject to government regulations and p@giOur business may suffer as a result of new loarged laws, regulations or policies,
our failure or inability to comply with laws, regaltions or policies or adverse rulings in enforcentesr other proceedings.

Our business, products and services, and thosgrafustomers and licensees, are subject to valdeussand regulations globally, as well
as government policies and the specifications tefrirational, national and regional communicatidasdards bodies. The adoption of new
laws, regulations or policies, changes in the prigation of existing laws, regulations or poligieBanges in the regulation of our activities |
government or standards body and/or adverse ruiingsurt, regulatory, administrative or other predings relating to such laws, regulations
or policies, including, among others, those affegticensing practices, competitive business prastithe use of our technology or products,
protection of intellectual property, trade, foreignestments or loans, spectrum availability acdrse issuance, adoption of standards, the
provision of device subsidies by wireless operatotheir customers, taxation, environmental priddacor employment, could have an adverse
effect on our business.

We are currently subject to various governmentatstigations and/or proceedings, and certain nsaétier described more fully in the
notes to our consolidated financial statements.“Retes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Not€ommitments and Contingencies.”
The unfavorable resolution of one or more of thesdters could have a material adverse effect omosiness, results of operations, financial
condition and/or cash flows. Depending on the typmatter, various remedies that could result fammunfavorable resolution include, among
others, injunctions, monetary damages or fineglogrcorders to pay money, and the issuance of ®tderease certain conduct and/or modify
our business practices.

Delays in government approvals or other governnetivities that could result from, among othersiecrease in or a lack of funding for
certain agencies or branches of the governmenbapdlitical changes, could result in our incurrimgher costs, could negatively impact our
ability to timely consummate strategic transactiand/or could have other negative impacts on oginess and the businesses of our custc
and licensees.

National, state and local environmental laws amgilaions affect our operations around the worliege laws may make it more
expensive to manufacture, have manufactured ahgreelucts, and our costs could increase if oudees (e.g., third-party manufacturers or
utility companies) pass on their costs to us.

Regulations in the United States require that vierdg@ne whether certain materials used in our pctejueferred to as conflict minerals,
originated in the Democratic Republic of the Congan adjoining country, or were from recycled arap sources. The verification and
reporting requirements, in addition to customer aeds for conflict free sourcing, impose additiooasts on us and on our suppliers, and may
limit the sources or increase the prices of matetiaed in our products.
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Further, if we are unable to determine that oudpots are “conflict free,” we may face challengéthwur customers that place us at a
competitive disadvantage, and our reputation malyasmed. Laws, regulations and standards relatimgtporate governance, business
conduct, public disclosure and health care are texrgnd changing and may create uncertainty reggrethmpliance. Laws, regulations and
standards are subject to varying interpretatiomaany cases, and their application in practice majve over time. As a result, our efforts to
comply may fail, particularly if there is ambiguifg to how they should be applied in practice. Nems, regulations and standards or evolving
interpretations of legal requirements may caus® urscur higher costs as we revise current prastipelicies and/or procedures and may diver
management time and attention to compliance aietivit

Our research, development and other investmentaénw technologies, products and services may notegate operating income or
contribute to future operating results that meet oexpectations.

Our industry is subject to rapid technological dmrevolving industry standards and frequent nemdyoet introductions, and we must
make substantial research, development and othestiments, such as acquisitions, in new produetsices and technologies to compete
successfully. Technological innovations generadiyuire significant research and development eftmefsre they are commercially viable. We
intend to continue to make substantial investmenteveloping new products, services and techneitiiat we believe can create stand-alon
value and/or contribute to the success of our iexjdiusinesses. However, it is possible that ti@datives will not be successful and/or will
not result in meaningful revenues or generate dipgrancome that meets expectations. While we comtito focus our development efforts
primarily in support of 3G CDMA- and 4G OFDMA-basexthnologies, we innovate across a broad speaifuopportunities to deploy new
business models and enter into new industry segnignieveraging our existing technical and busimeg®rtise and/or through acquisitions.
Our recent investment initiatives relate to, amotiters, networking, mobile computing, small cetliierology and addressing the challenge of
meeting the increased demand for data; producthéconnected home and the Internet of Everyttangymotive; very high speed
connectivity; new display technologies; data centarobile health; wireless charging; and machiaenieag, including robotics.

Our research, development and other investmemtsvintechnologies, products or services may notemetdue to, among others:
improvements in alternate technologies in ways tbdtice the advantages we anticipate from our imasgs; competitorgroducts or service
being more cost effective, having more capabilitiefewer limitations or being brought to markedtéx than our new products and services;
and competitors having longer operating histomeimdustry segments that are new to us. We mayualderestimate the costs of or
overestimate the future operating income and/oginarthat could result from these investments;thede investments may not, or may take
many years to, generate material returns. If owr t@ehnologies, products or services are not sgfue®r are not successful in the time frame
we anticipate, we may incur significant costs and&set impairments, our business may not growiac@ated, our revenues and/or margins
may be negatively impacted and/or our reputatiog beaharmed.

Claims by other companies that we infringe theirt@llectual property could adversely affect our bosss.

From time to time, companies have asserted, andagay assert, patent, copyright and other intielld@roperty rights against our
products or products using our technologies orragaghnologies used in our industry. These claimselresulted and may again result in our
involvement in litigation. We may not prevail incdulitigation given, among other factors, the coexpechnical issues and inherent
uncertainties in intellectual property litigatidhany of our products or services were found foifige on another company’s intellectual
property rights, we could be subject to an injumtdr be required to redesign our products or sesyiwhich could be costly, or to license sucl
rights and/or pay damages or other compensatisadb other company. If we are unable to redesigmmducts or services, license such
intellectual property rights used in our produatservices or otherwise distribute our productstigh a licensed supplier, we could be
prohibited from making and selling such productpmviding such services. In any potential dispot@lving other companies’ patents or
other intellectual property, our chipset foundrssmiconductor assembly and test providers andmgss could also become the targets of
litigation. We are contingently liable under cemta@roduct sales, services, license and other agnesno indemnify certain customers against
certain types of liability and/or damages arisiranpf qualifying claims of patent infringement by guzts or services sold or provided by us.
Reimbursements under indemnification arrangememtkichave an adverse effect on our results of djpeie Furthermore, any such litigation
could severely disrupt the supply of our producid the businesses of our chipset customers anddirsiomers, which in turn could hurt our
relationships with them and could result in a dexin our chipset sales and/or reductions in @@nkees’ sales, causing a corresponding
decline in our chipset and/or licensing revenuas; &laims, regardless of their merit, could be teoasuming to address, result in costly
litigation, divert the efforts of our technical anthnagement personnel or cause product releadéponent delays, any of which could have an
adverse effect on our operating results.

We expect that we may continue to be involvedtigdition and may have to appear in front of adntiats/e bodies (such as the United
States International Trade Commission) to deferadrag patent assertions against our products byaaoias, some of whom are attempting to
gain competitive advantage or leverage in licensiegotiations. We may not be successful in suchgadings, and if we are not, the range of
possible outcomes is very broad and may includegxtample, monetary
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damages, royalty payments and/or an injunctiorherstle of certain of our integrated circuit pradyand on the sale of our customers’
devices using such products). Any imposition ofalty payments might make purchases of our prodastseconomical for our customers and
could have an adverse effect on our operating teesiinegative outcome in any such proceeding cselerely disrupt the business of our
chipset customers and their wireless operator ousts, which in turn could harm our relationshipwthem and could result in a decline in
our share of worldwide chipset sales and/or a riéglu@n our licensees’ sales to wireless operaiassing corresponding declines in our
chipset and/or licensing revenues.

A number of other companies have claimed to owematapplicable to products implementing variousM@Dstandards, GSM standards
and OFDMA standards. In addition, existing standar@htinue to evolve, and new standards, inclutlinge applicable to new industry
segments, continue to be developed. If future stafsddiminish, or fail to include, a base leveintéroperability, our business may be harmed
and our investments in these new segments mayunoésd. If we are required to obtain additionariges and/or pay royalties to one or more
of such other patent holders, this could have aetag effect on the commercial implementation afpproducts and technologies and our
results of operations.

We may engage in acquisitions or strategic transacs or make strategic investments that could acedy affect our financial results or fail
to enhance stockholder value.

We engage in acquisitions and strategic transacton make strategic investments, which are impbttaour business strategy, with the
goal of maximizing stockholder value. We acquirsibasses and other assets, including patents,deciyn wireless spectrum and other
intangible assets, enter into joint ventures oep#trategic transactions and purchase minorityteqierests in or make loans to companies
that may be private and early-stage. Our stratedfivities are generally focused on opening newxmanding opportunities for our
technologies and supporting the design and intibaluof new products and services (or enhancingtieg products or services) for voice and
data communications. Many of our acquisitions mategic investments entail a high degree of risk rguire the use of domestic and/or
foreign capital, and investments may not becomédidpr several years after the date of the investimif at all. Our acquisitions or strategic
investments may not generate financial returngsult in increased adoption or continued use otethinologies, products or services. In s
cases, we may be required to consolidate or remardhare of the earnings or losses of companiedich we have acquired ownership
interests. In addition, we may record impairmergrges related to our acquisitions or strategicstments. Any losses or impairment charges
that we incur related to strategic investmentstbeotransactions will have a negative impact onfimancial results, and we may continue to
incur new or additional losses related to strategi&ets or investments that we have not fully ingpldr exited.

Achieving the anticipated benefits of business &itijons depends in part upon our ability to ineggrthe acquired businesses in an
efficient and effective manner. The integratiorcoimpanies that have previously operated indepelydeiaty result in significant challenges,
including, among others: retaining key employeastcessfully integrating new employees, businesesysand technology; retaining
customers and suppliers of the acquired businesspotidating research and development and/or sugg@yations; minimizing the diversion of
management’s attention from ongoing business nsatéd consolidating corporate and administrati@structures. We may not derive any
commercial value from acquired technologies or potsl or from future technologies or products basethe acquired technologies, and we
may be subject to liabilities that are not covdmgdndemnification protection that we may obtainw@ may become subject to litigation.
Additionally, we may not be successful in expandintg geographic regions and/or categories of pctlserved by or adjacent to an acquired
business or in addressing potential new opporemitiat may arise out of the combination. In pag t our inexperience with technologies
and/or products of and/or geographic regions selbyeatcquired businesses, we may underestimateoiise and/or overestimate the benefits,
including product and other synergies and growtboofunities that we expect to realize, and we natyachieve them. If we do not achieve the
anticipated benefits of business acquisitions,results of operations may be adversely affected véamay not enhance stockholder value by
engaging in these transactions.

We depend on a limited number of third-party supgt for the procurement, manufacture and testingair products. If we fail to execute
supply strategies that provide supply assuranceht®logy leadership and low cost, our operating ués and our business may be harme

Our QCT segment purchases wafers, die and fullgrabked and tested integrated circuits from thirtdypsemiconductor manufacturing
foundries, primarily located in Asia. We also caetrwith third-party suppliers for assembly, tesd ather services related to the manufacture
of our products. The following could have an adee¥ffect on our ability to meet customer demandgamegatively impact our revenues,
business operations, profitability and/or cash #ow

» areduction, interruption, delay or limitation inrgoroduct supply source
» afailure by our suppliers to procure raw materialto provide or allocate adequate manufacturinigst capacity for our produc

» our suppliersinability to react to shifts in product demand ariacrease in raw material or component pr
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» the loss of a supplier or the inability of a supplio meet performance or quality specificationdealivery schedules; and

e additional expense and/or production delaysm&salt of qualifying a new supplier and commenaimfume production or testing in
the event of a loss of or a decision to add or ghansupplier.

While we have established alternate suppliersdatam technologies that we consider critical, g bn sole- or limited-source suppliers
for some products, subjecting us to significarkgjsncluding: possible shortages of raw mategalmanufacturing capacity; poor product
performance; and reduced control over delivery doles, manufacturing capability and yields, quadisgurance, quantity and costs. To the
extent we have established alternate suppliersetbeppliers may require significant levels of supfo bring complex technologies to
production. As a result, we may invest a signifteamount of effort and resources and incur higlestto support and maintain such alternate
suppliers. Further, any future consolidation ofrfdty suppliers could increase our vulnerabilitystde- or limited-source arrangements. Our
arrangements with our suppliers may obligate usdor costs to manufacture and test our produetisdh not decrease at the same rate as
decreases in pricing to our customers. Our ab#ity] that of our suppliers, to develop or mainteading process technologies, including
transitions to smaller geometry process technotyg@ird to effectively compete with the manufacipnocesses and performance of our
competitors, could impact our ability to introdutew products and meet customer demand, could isem@ar costs (possibly decreasing our
margins) and could subject us to the risk of exaassntories. Our inability to meet customer demend to sole- or limitedourcing and/or tt
additional costs that we incur because of thesshmr supply constraints or because of the needpport alternate suppliers could negatively
impact our business, our revenues and our resulfgarations.

Although we have long-term contracts with our sigpl many of these contracts do not provide fogterm capacity commitments. To
the extent that we do not have firm commitmentsfiaur suppliers over a specific time period, ordny specific quantity, our suppliers may
allocate, and in the past have allocated, capszitiye production and testing of products for tteéfrer customers while reducing or limiting
capacity to manufacture or test our products. Adioglly, capacity for our products may not be avd#éavhen we need it or at reasonable
prices. To the extent we do obtain long-term capadmmitments, we may incur additional costs edlab those commitments and/or make
non-refundable payments for capacity commitmerdasdhe not used.

One or more of our suppliers or potential alterrsafepliers may manufacture CDMA- or OFDMA-base@gnated circuits that compete
with our products. In this event, the supplier coellect to allocate raw materials and manufactucaqacity to their own products and reduc
limit deliveries to us to our detriment. In additjove may not receive reasonable pricing, manufegflor delivery terms. We cannot guarar
that the actions of our suppliers will not caussruptions in our operations that could harm oulitglio meet our delivery obligations to our
customers or increase our cost of sales.

Our stock price and earnings are subject to subgtaihquarterly and annual fluctuations and to markelownturns.

Our stock price and earnings have fluctuated irptist and are likely to fluctuate in the futurecteas that may have a significant impact
on the market price of our stock and/or earninghitfe those identified throughout this “Risk Fastaection, volatility of the stock market in
general and technology-based companies in partjca@ouncements concerning us, our suppliersc@mpetitors or our customers and
variations between our actual results and expectsif securities analysts, among others. Furthergased volatility in the financial markets
and/or overall economic conditions may reduce theumts that we realize in the future on our cashivedents and/or marketable securities
and may reduce our earnings as a result of anyiimpat charges that we record to reduce recordeesaf marketable securities to their fair
values.

In the past, securities class action litigatiorenfhas been brought against a company followingpgeof volatility in the market price of
its securities. Due to changes in our stock praemay be the target of securities litigation ia thture. Securities litigation could result in
substantial uninsured costs and divert managemattéstion and resources.

We may not be able to attract and retain qualifiethployees.

Our future success depends largely upon the cardisarvice of our executive officers and other keynagement and technical personnel
and on our ability to continue to identify, attratain and motivate them. Implementing our bussrerategy requires specialized engineering
and other talent, as our revenues are highly dep#ruh technological and product innovations. Tlaeket for employees in our industry is
extremely competitive. Further, existing immigratiaws make it more difficult for us to recruit aretain highly skilled foreign national
graduates of universities in the United States,intathe pool of available talent even smaller. V@atmue to anticipate increases in human
resource needs, particularly in engineering. Ifaneunable to attract and retain qualified empleyear business may be harmed.

Global economic conditions that impact the mobilenrsmunications industry could negatively affect tilemand for our products and
services and our custome’ or licensees’ products and services, which mayagvely affect our revenues.
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A decline in global economic conditions or a sldewn in economic growth, particularly in geograptggions with high concentrations
wireless voice and data users, could have adweide;ranging effects on demand for our productsfanthe products and services of our
customers or licensees, particularly equipment rizenturers or others in the wireless communicatiodsistry who buy their products, such as
wireless operators. Any prolonged economic downinay result in a decrease in demand for our predurctechnologies; the insolvency of
key suppliers; delays in reporting and/or paymémts our licensees and/or customers; failures hynterparties; and negative effects on
wireless device inventories. In addition, our costes’ ability to purchase or pay for our produatd gervices and network operators’ ability to
upgrade their wireless networks could be advers##cted by economic conditions, leading to a réida¢ cancelation or delay of orders for
our products or services.

Currency fluctuations could negatively affect futarproduct sales or royalty revenues, harm our ayikio collect receivables or increase the
U.S. dollar cost of our products or the activitie$ our foreign subsidiaries and strategic investnten

Our customers sell their products throughout thddvio various currencies. Our consolidated reverfoem international customers as a
percentage of our total revenues were greater3@@mduring each of the last three fiscal years.eksl® movements in currency exchange rate
may negatively affect our business and our opeagatisults due to a number of factors, includingpagothers:

»  Our products and those of our customers andseees that are sold outside the United States ewonte less priceempetitive, whicl
may result in reduced demand for those productébaddwnward pressure on average selling prices;

»  Certain of our revenues, such as royalties,ahatderived from licensee or customer sales dematad in foreign currencies could
decrease;

»  Our foreign suppliers may raise their pricethdy are impacted by currency fluctuations, resglth higher than expected costs and
lower margins; and/or

» Foreign exchange hedging transactions that \yagmin to reduce the impact of currency fluctusimay require the payment of
structuring fees, limit the U.S. dollar value ofadties from licensees’ sales that are denominatéoreign currencies, cause earnings
volatility if the hedges do not qualify for hedgecaunting and expose us to counterparty risk ifcienterparty fails to perform.

Failures in our products or services or in the prodts or services of our customers or licensees|uding those resulting from security
vulnerabilities, defects or errors, could harm obusiness.

The use of devices containing our products to acaausted content creates a risk of exposingybtem software in those devices to
viral or malicious attacks. While we continue tadis on this issue and are taking measures to safégur products from cybersecurity thre
device capabilities continue to evolve, enablingemiata and processes, such as mobile computidgnareasing the risk of security failures.
Further, our products are inherently complex ang owatain defects or errors that are detected whign the products are in use. As our
chipset product complexities increase, we are regud migrate to integrated circuit technologiethwmaller geometric feature sizes. The
design process interface in new domains of teclyyal® complex and adds risk to manufacturing yieldd reliability. Further, manufacturing,
testing, marketing and use of our products andetled®ur customers and licensees entail the rigkaduct liability. Because our products and
services are responsible for critical functionsim customers’ products and/or networks, secuaitiyifes, defects or errors in our products and
services could have an adverse impact on us, ooustomers and on the end users of our customerdupts. Such adverse impact could
include product liability claims or recalls, writdfs of the recorded values of our inventories anditangible assets; a shift of business to our
competitors; a decrease in demand for connecteideteand wireless services, damage to our repatatid to our customer relationships and
other financial liability or harm to our business.

Our business and operations could suffer in the avef security breaches.

Attempts by others to gain unauthorized accessitanformation technology systems are increasimgiye sophisticated. These attempts,
which might be related to industrial or other espige, include covertly introducing malware to oomputers and networks and impersonating
authorized users, among others. We seek to detddhaestigate all security incidents and to préxtkair recurrence, but in some cases, we
might be unaware of an incident or its magnitude effiects. While we have identified several incigenf unauthorized access, to date none
have caused material damage to our business. &fteuhauthorized use or publication of our inteilel property and/or confidential business
information could harm our competitive positionduee the value of our investment in research andldpment and other strategic initiatives
and/or otherwise adversely affect our businesgh&aextent that any security breach results inpnagriate disclosure of our customers’ or
licensees’ confidential information, we may inciability. We expect to continue to devote additibresources to the security of our
information technology systems.
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Potential tax liabilities could adversely affect ouesults of operations

We are subject to income taxes in the United Setesnumerous foreign jurisdictions, including $ipgre where our QCT segments’ non
United States headquarters is located. Signifipatgment is required in determining our provision income taxes. Although we believe that
our tax estimates are reasonable, the final detatinoin of tax audits and any related litigation Idomaterially differ from amounts reflected in
our historical income tax provisions and accrussuch case, our income tax provision and regifilgperations in the period or periods in
which that determination is made could be negatiaéfected.

We have tax incentives in Singapore provided tratwveet specified employment and incentive critenl as a result of expiration of
these incentives, our Singapore tax rate is exgdotecrease in fiscal 2017 and again in fisc&d20f we do not meet the criteria required to
retain such incentives, our Singapore tax rateccmdrease prior to those dates, and our resultgefations could be adversely affected.

Tax rules may change in a manner that adversedgtafbur future reported financial results or ttaywwe conduct our business. For
example, we consider the operating earnings oéirenon-United States subsidiaries to be indefiniteinvested outside the United States
based on our current needs for those earnings teifeested offshore as well as estimates thatdéudomestic cash generated from operations
and/or borrowings will be sufficient to meet fututemestic cash needs for the foreseeable futurgrbdidsion has been made for United State
federal, state or foreign taxes that may resufnffoture remittances of the undistributed earniofghese foreign subsidiaries. Our future
financial results and liquidity may be adverselffeafed if tax rules regarding unrepatriated earsicigange, if domestic cash needs require
repatriate foreign earnings, if the shares of tliessgn subsidiaries were sold or otherwise tramsfl or if the United States international tax
rules change as part of comprehensive tax reforathar tax legislation. If our effective tax ratesre to increase, particularly in the United
States or Singapore, our operating results, cas¥sfand/or financial condition could be adversédlgaed.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

At September 28, 2014 , we occupied the indicatiedu®e footage in the owned or leased facilitiesdesd below (square footage in
thousands):

Number Total
of Square
Buildings Location Status Footage Primary Use Primary Segment(s)

37 United States Owned 4,687 Executive and administrative offices, research and All
development, sales and marketing, service functions
manufacturing and network management hub.

54 United States Leased 2,01¢  Administrative offices, research and developmealgsand All
marketing, service functions and network managerneht

2 Taiwan Owned 1,82¢ Administrative offices, research and development, QMT
manufacturing and sales and marketing.

12 India Leased 83¢  Administrative offices, research and developmentsales QCT
and marketing.

15 China Leased 39¢ Administrative offices, research and developmeaigssanc All
marketing, service functions and network operatiegters.

5 Israel Leased 13¢ Administrative offices, research and development sales QCT
and marketing.

6 Taiwan Leased 13t Administrative offices, research and developmentsales QMT, QCT
and marketing.

2 India Owned 131 Administrative offices, research and development sales QCT
and marketing.

2 South Korea Leased 112 Administrative offices, research and developmentsales QCT
and marketing.

5 Canada Leased 98 Administrative offices, research and development sales QCT
and marketing.

2 Singapore Leased 74  Administrative offices, research and development sales QCT
and marketing.

4 England Leased 55  Administrative offices, research and development sales QCT, QTL
and marketing.

6 Germany Leased 51 Administrative offices, research and developmentsales QCT, QTL
and marketing.

46 Other Leased 20€  Administrative offices, research and development sales All

International and marketing.
Total square footage 10,76¢

In connection with our plan to accelerate the titaorsto licensing our next generation IMOD dispkaghnology, our manufacturing
facilities in Taiwan were classified as held folesat September 28, 2014.

In addition to the facilities above, we own or keapproximately 68,000 square feet of propertiasdhe leased or subleased to third
parties. Our facility leases expire at varying dateough 2029, not including renewals that wowddabour option. Several owned and leased
facilities are under construction totaling approately 1,062,000 additional square feet to meeteljairements projected in our long-term
business plan.

We believe that our facilities will be suitable aaiequate for the present purposes and that tideigtiee capacity in facilities that are not
under construction is substantially utilized. le fature, we may need to purchase, build or leddé@ianal facilities to meet the requirements
projected in our long-term business plan.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

ParkerVision, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporate®n July 20, 2011, ParkerVision filed a complaighinst us in the United States District
Court for the Middle District of Florida allegingat certain of our products infringe seven of asepts alleged to cover direct dowonversior
receivers. ParkerVision’s complaint sought damagesinjunctive and other relief. Subsequently, Barision narrowed its allegations to
assert only four patents. On October 17, 2013jutyereturned a verdict finding all asserted claiofishe four at-issue patents to be infringed
and finding that none of the asserted claims aralich. On October 24, 2013, the jury returned aasaie verdict assessing total past damag
approximately $173 milliomnd finding that our infringement was not willfile recorded the verdict amount in fiscal 2013 akage in othe
expenses. Post-verdict motions, including our nmstifor judgment as a matter of law and a new tnginvalidity and non-infringement and
ParkerVision’s motions for injunctive relief andgwing royalties, were filed by January 24, 201hearing on these motions was held on Ma
1, 2014. On June 20, 2014, the court granted otiomto overturn the infringement verdict, deniad motion to overturn the invalidity
verdict, and denied the remaining motions as mbiwt. court then entered judgment in our favor. Assalt of the court’s judgment, we are not
liable for any damages to ParkerVision, and theefae reversed all recorded amounts related tddheages verdict in fiscal 2014. On June
25, 2014, ParkerVision filed a notice of appeahwite court. On May 1, 2014, ParkerVision filed t@o complaint against us in the United
States District Court for the Middle District ofdfida alleging patent infringement. On August 20142, ParkerVision amended the complaint,
now captionedParkerVision, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporated, Quatem Atheros, Inc., HTC Corporation, HTC America,. [lBamsung
Electronics Co., LTD., Samsung Electronics Ametiice,, and Samsung Telecommunications America, broadening the allegations.
ParkerVision now alleges that we infringe 11 addisil patents and seeks damages and injunctivethadrelief. We were served with the
complaint in this second action on August 28, 284d have not yet responded.

Nvidia Corporation v. Qualcomm Incorporate®n September 4, 2014, Nvidia filed a complainthi@ United States District Court for the
District of Delaware and also with the United Ssditgternational Trade Commission (ITC) pursuaréation 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930
against us, Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., and @amsung entities, alleging infringement of sepatents related to graphics processing. In
the ITC complaint, Nvidia seeks an exclusion otokring the importation of our consumer electrorind display device products that
infringe, induce infringement and/or contributetie infringement of at least one of the seven ésdgraphics processing patents as well as 8
cease and desist order preventing us from cargingommercial activities within the United Statekted to such products. In the District of
Delaware complaint, Nvidia is seeking an awardarhdges for the infringement of the asserted patariisding that such infringement is
willful and treble damages for such willful infrirgnent, and an order permanently enjoining us frafnniging the asserted patents. The ITC
instituted an investigation into Nvidia’s allegat®on October 6, 2014. The evidentiary hearindtferinvestigation is set for June 8 to June 1&
2015. The Initial Determination of the AdministragiLaw Judge is due October 9, 2015, and the taajetfor completion of the investigation
by the Commission is set for February 10, 2016. dik#ict court case was stayed on October 23, 2@hling completion of the ITC
investigation including appeals.

Icera Complaint to the European Commission (Comiongs On June 7, 2010, the Commission notified and ipexi/us with a redacted
copy of a complaint filed with the Commission byta, Inc. (subsequently acquired by Nvidia Corporgtalleging that we had engaged in
anticompetitive activity. We were asked by the Cdssion to submit a preliminary response to theipost of the complaint disclosed to us,
and we submitted our response in July 2010. Sulesglyuwe have provided and continue to provideitamithl documents and information as
requested by the Commission. We continue to cotpéully with the Commission’s preliminary invesditipn.

European Commission Investigatio®n October 15, 2014, the Commission notifiedhas it is conducting an investigation of us relgtin
to Article 101 and/or 102 of the Treaty on the Rioning of the European Union (TFEU) and Article &3d/or 54 of the Agreement for the
European Economic Area (EEA Agreement). We undedsthat the investigation concerns primarily thie send/or marketing of our baseband
chipsets, including alleged conditions relatinghe provision by us of rebates and/or other finalicicentives. If a violation is found, a broad
range of remedies is potentially available to tleenission, including imposing a fine and/or injunetrelief prohibiting or restricting certain
business practices. Given that this investigatson its early stages, it is difficult to predibetoutcome or what remedies, if any, may be
imposed by the Commission. We continue to coopavitethe Commission as it conducts its investigati

Korea Fair Trade Commission (KFTC) Complair®n January 4, 2010, the KFTC issued a writtens@tat finding that we had violated
South Korean law by offering certain discounts esfthtes for purchases of our CDMA chips and foluiiog in certain agreements language
requiring the continued payment of royalties aftitticensed patents have expired. The KFTC leadithe, which we paid and recorded as an
expense in fiscal 2010. We appealed to the Seah Bourt, and on June 19, 2013, the Seoul High tGdfirmed the KFTC'’s decision. On
July 4, 2013, we filed an appeal with the Korear8aope Court. There have been no material develomweittt respect to this matter.

Japan Fair Trade Commission (JFTC) Complaiithe JFTC received unspecified complaints alledfiray our business practices are, in
some way, a violation of Japanese law. On Septe@he2009, the JFTC issued a cease and desistaodeluding that our Japanese licensee
were forced to cross-license patents to us on atsefree basis and were forced
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to accept a provision under which they agreed massert their essential patents against our btemsees who made a similar commitment in
their license agreements with us. The cease arist deder seeks to require us to modify our exgstiobense agreements with Japanese
companies to eliminate these provisions while pxéisg the license of our patents to those companNissdisagree with the conclusions that
we forced our Japanese licensees to agree to awigion in the parties’ agreements and that thoseigions violate the Japanese
Antimonopoly Act. We have invoked our right undapdnese law to an administrative hearing befordffieC. In February 2010, the Tokyo
High Court granted our motion and issued a stap®tease and desist order pending the adminigragaring before the JFTC. The JFTC
held hearings on 24 different dates, with the mexdring scheduled for December 8, 2014.

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) FormaéQutiPrivate Investigation and Department of Jestinvestigation On Septembe
8, 2010, we were notified by the SEC’s Los Ang&tegional office of a formal order of private invgstion. We understand that the
investigation arose from a “whistleblower’s” allé¢igams made in December 2009 to the audit commdferir Board of Directors and to the
SEC. In 2010, the audit committee completed anniafereview of the allegations with the assistasicmdependent counsel and independent
forensic accountants. This internal review intohastleblower’s allegations and related accounpragtices did not identify any errors in our
financial statements. On January 27, 2012, we éshtinat the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the SouthBiistrict of California/Department of
Justice (collectively, DOJ) had begun an investigategarding our compliance with the Foreign Cptraractices Act (FCPA). The audit
committee conducted an internal review of our caamae with the FCPA and its related policies aretpdures with the assistance of
independent counsel and independent forensic atmotsn The audit committee has completed this ceh®sive review, made findings
consistent with our findings described below angigasted enhancements to our overall FCPA complipragram. In part as a result of the
audit committee’s review, we have made and continueake enhancements to our FCPA compliance pmagrecluding implementation of
the audit committee’s recommendations.

As previously disclosed, we discovered, and agtagb@ur cooperation with these investigation®mied the SEC and the DOJ of,
instances in which special hiring consideratioftsgir other benefits (collectively, benefits) werevided to several individuals associated
with Chinese statewned companies or agencies. Based on the facentiyrknown, we believe the aggregate monetaryevaf the benefits
guestion to be less than $250,000, excluding enmpémy compensation.

On March 13, 2014, we received a Wells Notice ftbmmSEC’s Los Angeles Regional Office indicatingttthe staff has made a
preliminary determination to recommend that the $ilBCan enforcement action against us for violasiof the anti-bribery, books and records
and internal control provisions of the FCPA. Thibéry allegations relate to benefits offered onvidled to individuals associated with Chinese
state-owned companies or agencies. The Wells Nimiieated that the recommendation could involwivd injunctive action and could seek
remedies that include disgorgement of profits,rétention of an independent compliance monitoetoaw our FCPA policies and procedures,
an injunction, civil monetary penalties and prejondt interest.

A Wells Notice is not a formal allegation or findiby the SEC of wrongdoing or violation of law. Rait, the purpose of a Wells Notice is
to give the recipient an opportunity to make a “l&/eubmission” setting forth reasons why the pregasnforcement action should not be filec
and/or bringing additional facts to the SEC’s ditanbefore any decision is made by the SEC ashetler to commence a proceeding. On
April 4, 2014 and May 29, 2014, we made Wells susions to the staff of the Los Angeles Regionald®@féxplaining why we believe we
have not violated the FCPA and therefore enforcémetion is not warranted.

We are continuing to cooperate with the SEC andi®d, but are unable to predict the outcome of theestigations or any action that
the SEC may decide to file.

China National Development and Reform Commissi@R®N) Investigation In November 2013, the NDRC notified us that ittha
commenced an investigation of us relating to than€e Anti-Monopoly Law (AML). We understand thhgétinvestigation concerns primarily
our licensing business and certain interactiongéet our licensing business and our chipset busimeduding how royalties are calculated in
our patent licenses, the value exchanged for diomsses to patents of our licensees, whether Weffér license agreements limited to pate
essential to certain standards, whether royaltesaught for our expired patents, our policy difirsg chipsets only to our patent licensees, the
alleged refusal of us to grant patent licensehipset manufacturers, and certain other terms anditions in our patent license and chipset
sale agreements. A broad range of remedies wiffect$o business practices deemed to violate thé BNpotentially available to the NDRC,
including but not limited to issuing an order t@se conduct deemed illegal, confiscating gains édealiegally obtained, imposing a fine in-
range of 1% to 10% of the prior year's revenuesraqairing modifications to business practices.gBithe limited precedent of enforcement
actions and penalties under the AML, it is diffictd predict the outcome of this matter or whatedies may be imposed by the NDRC. We
continue to cooperate with the NDRC as it conditstmvestigation.
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Federal Trade Commission (FTC) Investigatidbn September 17, 2014, the FTC notified us thiatdonducting an investigation of us
relating to Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commisgict. We understand that the investigation came@rimarily our licensing business,
including potential breach of FRAND commitmentsa ¥iolation of Section 5 is found, a broad ranfjeemedies is potentially available to the
FTC, including imposing a fine or requiring modé#tons to our licensing practices. Given that thigstigation is in its early stages, it is
difficult to predict the outcome of this matterwhat remedies, if any, may be imposed by the FT€.céhtinue to cooperate with the FTC ¢
conducts its investigation.

We will continue to vigorously defend ourselveghe foregoing matters. However, litigation and istigations are inherently uncertain.
Accordingly, we cannot predict the outcome of thesdters. We have not recorded any accrual at 8éyae28, 2014 for contingent losses
associated with these matters based on its bhi¢fwith the exception of the NDRC matter, lossés|e possible, are not probable. Further,
any possible range of loss cannot be reasonabiyiasd at this time. Regarding the NDRC matterpefeve that a loss is probable but that
any possible range of loss cannot be reasonabiyiasd at this time. The unfavorable resolutioom@é or more of these matters could have a
material adverse effect on our business, resulbgpefations, financial condition or cash flows. We engaged in numerous other legal action:
not described above arising in the ordinary coofsaur business and, while there can be no asseyarebelieve that the ultimate outcome of
these other legal actions will not have a matexiblerse effect on our business, results of operstimancial condition or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market Information and Dividends

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globaé8eMarket under the symbol “QCOMThe following table sets forth the range of h
and low sales prices of our common stock, as regdsy NASDAQ, and cash dividends announced peestfasommon stock for the fiscal
periods presented. Quotations of our stock pripessent inter-dealer prices without retail markuprkdown or commission and may not
necessarily represent actual transactions.

High ($) Low ($) Dividends ($)

2013

First quarter 64.72 57.29 0.25

Second quarter 68.50 60.22 0.25

Third quarter 67.66 59.46 0.35

Fourth quarter 70.37 59.02 0.35
2014

First quarter 74.19 65.47 0.35

Second quarter 79.72 70.98 0.35

Third quarter 81.66 76.77 0.42

Fourth quarter 81.97 71.82 0.42

At November 3, 2014 , there were 7,938 holdergobrd of our common stock. On November 3, 2014 Jdkt sale price reported on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market for our common stocksv&8.24 per share. (October 16, 2014 , we announced a cash divide$0.dP per
share of common stock, payable on December 18, #04tbckholders of record as of December 1, 204/4 intend to continue to pay
quarterly dividends subject to capital availabibtyd our view that cash dividends are in the bestésts of our stockholders. Future dividends
may be affected by, among other items, our viewpaiential future capital requirements, includihgde relating to research and developmen
creation and expansion of sales distribution chisraued investments and acquisitions, legal risk&ksrepurchase programs, debt issuance,
changes in federal and state income tax law andggsato our business model.

Share-Based Compensation

We primarily issue restricted stock units under eguity compensation plans, which are part of atoased, longerm retention prograi
that is intended to attract and retain talentedleyges and directors and align stockholder and eyag! interests.

Our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2006 Plan) pdesifor the grant of both incentive and non-quadifstock options, restricted stock
units, stock appreciation rights, restricted stqakformance units and shares and other sbhasled awards. Restricted stock units generally
over periods of three years from the date of grattick options vest over periods not exceedingyfe@rs and are exercisable for up to 10 yeal
from the grant date. The Board of Directors maynteate the 2006 Plan at any time.

Additional information regarding our share-basethpensation plans and plan activity for fiscal 202013 and 2012 is provided in the
notes to our consolidated financial statementki;Annual Report in “Notes to Consolidated FinahStatements, Note 6. Employee Benefit
Plans” and in our 2015 Proxy Statement under tlagling “Equity Compensation Plan Information.”
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Issuer purchases of equity securities during thetfioquarter of fiscal 2014 were:

Total Number of Shares  Approximate Dollar Value of

Average Price Purchased as Part of Shares that May Yet Be
Total Number of Paid Per Share  Publicly Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans or
Shares Purchased Q) or Programs (2) Programs (2)
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In millions)
June 30, 2014, to July 27, 2014 4,05. $ 79.71 4,05 $ 6,127
July 28, 2014 to August 24, 2014 5,95¢ 74.5% 5,95¢ 5,68
August 25, 2014 to September 28, 2014 5,63¢ 75.9:¢ 5,63¢ 5,25¢
Total 1564 g 76.3¢ 1564 g 5,25¢

(1) Average Price Paid Per Share excludes cash paafomission:

(2) On March 4, 2014 , we announced a new repurchagggm authorizing us to repurchase up to $7.8hilif our common stock. This stock repurchase
program replaced the previous $5 billion stock repase program announced on September 11, 201September 28, 2014 , $5.3 billion remained
available for repurchase. The stock repurchaseranodpas no expiration date. Since September 28, 2@& repurchased and retired 8,595,000 shares of
common stock for $638 million .
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following data should be read in conjunctiotivihe annual consolidated financial statementatee notes and other financial
information appearing elsewhere herein.

Years Ended (1)

September 28, September 29, September 30, September 25, September 26,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(In millions, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues $ 26,48° $ 24,86¢ $ 19,12: $ 14957 $ 10,98:
Operating income 7,55( 7,23( 5,68: 5,02¢ 3,721
Income from continuing operations 7,53¢ 6,84¢ 5,28: 4,55t 3,52(
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes 43( — 77¢€ (319 (279
Net income attributable to Qualcomm 7,967 6,85 6,10¢ 4,26( 3,247

Per Share Data:
Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to

Qualcomm:
Continuing operations $ 4.4¢ 3 3.9¢ % 312 % 27¢ % 2.1
Discontinued operations 0.2 — 0.4% (0.19 (0.19)
Net income 4.7: 3.9¢ 3.5¢ 2.57 1.9¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to
Qualcomm:
Continuing operations 4.4C 3.91 3.0¢ 2.7C 2.12
Discontinued operations 0.2 — 0.4t (0.1¢) (0.1¢)
Net income 4.6 3.91 3.51 2.52 1.9¢
Dividends per share announced 1.5¢ 1.2C 0.9¢ 0.81 0.72

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities $ 32,02: $ 29,40t $ 26,837 $ 20,91: $ 18,40:
Total assets 48,57« 45,51¢ 43,01: 36,42 30,57
Loans and debentures (2) — — 1,06¢ 994 1,08¢
Long-term liabilities (3) 42¢ 55C 42¢ 62C 761
Total stockholders’ equity 39,16¢ 36,08" 33,54¢ 26,97 20,85¢

(1) Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in Septeriibe fiscal years ended September 28, 2014 e8uatr 29, 2013, September 25, 2011 and Septembe
26, 2010 each included 52 weeks. The fiscal yede@iSeptember 30, 2012 included 53 weeks.

(2) Loans and debentures were included in liabilitiels fior sale in the consolidated balance sheef Sggtember 30, 201
(3) Long-+term liabilities in this balance sheet data excludearned revenu
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Item 7. Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

In addition to historical information, the followgndiscussion contains forwatdeking statements that are subject to risks ameuainties
Actual results may differ materially from thoseewgd to herein due to a number of factors, indgdiut not limited to risks described in the
section entitled Risk Factors and elsewhere inAhisual Report.

Overview

Fiscal 2014 Overview

The transition of wireless networks and device3@4G (CDMA-based, OFDMA-based and CDMA/OFDMA muitide) continued
around the world. 3G/4G connections increased pocgimately 2.8 billion, up 24% year-over-year, aegresent approximately 40% of total
cellular connections, up from 34% at the end afdi2013®

Revenues were $26.5 billion , an increase of 7%paoed to fiscal 2013, with net income attributabl®ualcomm of $8.0 billion , an
increase of 16% compared to fiscal 2013.

We shipped approximately 861 million Mobile Statidlodem (MSM) integrated circuits for CDMA- and OFvbased wireless
devices, an increase of 20% , compared to apprdglynd16 million MSM integrated circuits in fiscaD13 , largely driven by the adoption of
4G LTE, particularly in China. Growth in fiscal 20Was largely driven by shipments to key custorf@rdoth 3G and 3G/4G multimode
mobile devices in emerging regions. In particutam, LTE leadership position contributed to growtbnfi regions adopting 3G/4G LTE
multimode.

Total reported device sal@y licensees were approximately $243.6 billionigedl 2014, an increase of approximately 5% , cosgbto
approximately $231.2 billion in fiscal 2013 . Oigdal 2014 results were favorably impacted by iasesl 3G/4G device shipments by licensee
as a result of the continued adoption of smartpho@eir results were negatively impacted by thelehgks we are facing in China. Our
business practices continue to be the subject ofastigation by the China National Developmerd &eform Commission (NDRC). We also
believe that certain licensees in China currentiyreot fully complying with their contractual obéitions to report their sales of licensed
products to us (which includes certain licenseefewmeporting a portion of their 3G/4G device saled a dispute with a licensee) and that
unlicensed companies may seek to delay executiorwflicenses while the NDRC investigation is omgolWe are taking steps to address
these matters, although the nature and timing pfr@solution is uncertain.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014 , we annoe our intention of returning 75% of our free cflstv ®to stockholders through stock
repurchases and dividends over the foreseeableefutthere free cash flow is defined as net cashighed by operating activities less capital
expenditures. In fiscal 2014 , we returned $7.ldil, or 93% of free cash flow, to stockholdersluding $4.5 billion through repurchases of
60.3 million shares of common stock and $2.6 hillj@r $1.54 per share, of cash dividends. Sharetamding decreased to 1.67 billion at
September 28, 2014 from 1.69 billion at Septem8e£P13 due to share repurchases, partially offgetet shares issued under our employee
benefit plans.

(1) According to GSMA Intelligence estimates as of Nober 3, 2014 for the quarter ended September 308} @stimates excluded Wireless Local Lo

(2) Total reported device sales is the sum ofegdbrted sales in U.S. dollars (as reported to usubyicensees) of all licensed CDMA-based, OFDMaséd
and CDMA/OFDMA multimode subscriber devices (inéhglhandsets, modules, modem cards and other sidasdevices) by our licensees during a
particular period (collectively, 3G/4G devices).tNdl licensees report sales the same way (e.medicensees report sales net of permitted dedstio
including transportation, insurance, packing casis other items, while other licensees report satesthen identify the amount of permitted dedungim
their reports), and the way in which licensees repach information may change from time to timreaddition, certain licensees may not report (& th
quarter in which they are contractually obligatedeport) their sales of certain types of subscrilvéts, which (as a result of audits, legal acdion for
other reasons) may be reported in a subsequertequaccordingly, total reported device sales f@aaticular period may include prior period actihat
was not reported by the licensee until such pddiqueriod.

(3) Free cash flow is a non-GAAP financial meas&ee “Non-GAAP Financial Information.”
Our Business and Operating Segments

We design, manufacture, have manufactured on dwalband market digital communications products seivices based on CDMA,
OFDMA and other technologies. We derive revenuascjpally from sales of integrated circuit produatsd licensing our intellectual property,
including patents, software and other rights.

We have three reportable segments. We conductdmssprimarily through two reportable segments, @Qdalcomm CDMA
Technologies) and QTL (Qualcomm Technology Licegsiand our QSI (Qualcomm Strategic Initiativeg)aeable segment makes strategic
investments. Our reportable segments are opergt€@UALCOMM Incorporated and its direct and indirscibsidiaries. Following our
corporate reorganization at the beginning of fig@l3, substantially all of our products
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and services businesses, including QCT, and suiatamll of our engineering, research and develept functions, are operated by
Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. (QTI), a wholly-ownedsidiary of QUALCOMM Incorporated, and QTI's sutlisiries. QTL continues to be
operated by QUALCOMM Incorporated, which contint@®wn the vast majority of our patent portfoliceither QTI nor any of its
subsidiaries has any right, power or authorityremgiany licenses or other rights under or to aatems owned by QUALCOMM Incorporated.

QCT is a leading developer and supplier of integtaiircuits and system software based on CDMA, ORDvid other technologies for
use in voice and data communications, networkipglieation processing, multimedia and global posiitig system products. QCT’s
integrated circuit products and system softwaresal@ to or licensed to manufacturers that usepoaducts in wireless devices, particularly
mobile phones, tablets, laptops, data modules,edddvireless computers and gaming devices, age#sts and routers, data cards and
infrastructure equipment, and in wired devicestipalarly broadband gateway equipment, desktop adgerp and streaming media players.
MSM integrated circuits, which include the Mobil@ata Modem, Qualcomm Single Chip and Qualcomm Saajuar processors, perform the
core baseband modem functionality in wireless devjaroviding voice and data communications, as agethultimedia applications and global
positioning functions. In addition, our Snapdragoacessors provide advanced application and graginacessing capabilities. QCT’s system
software enables the other device componentsedaue with the integrated circuit products anthesfoundation software enabling
manufacturers to develop devices utilizing the fiomality within the integrated circuits. QCT rewess comprised 70% , 67% and 63% of tota
consolidated revenues in fiscal 2014 , 2013 an@ 20é&spectively.

QCT utilizes a fabless production business modeickvmeans that we do not own or operate foundoiethe production of silicon wafe
from which our integrated circuits are made. In&gd circuits are die cut from silicon wafers thave completed the package assembly and
test manufacturing processes. We rely on indepéntid-party suppliers to perform the manufactgrand assembly, and most of the testing
of our integrated circuits based primarily on otoprietary designs and test programs. Our suppdierslso responsible for the procurement o
most of the raw materials used in the productioawfintegrated circuits. We employ both turnkey amo-stage manufacturing models to
purchase our integrated circuits. Turnkey is whenfoundry suppliers are responsible for deliverfimty assembled and tested integrated
circuits. Under the two-stage manufacturing moael purchase die or wafers from semiconductor mamurfilmg foundries and contract with
separate third-party suppliers for manufacturingises, such as wafer bump, probe, assembly aatitést.

QTL grants licenses or otherwise provides rightsge portions of our intellectual property portiolvhich, among other rights, includes
certain patent rights essential to and/or usefthéhmanufacture and sale of certain wireless misdincluding, without limitation, products
implementing CDMA2000, WCDMA, CDMA TDD (includingD-SCDMA), GSM/GPRS/EDGE and/or OFDMA standards #rair
derivatives. QTL licensing revenues are compridditense fees as well as royalties based on &gldisensees of products incorporating or
using our intellectual property. License fees ated amounts paid in one or more installments. Ri@gare generally based upon a percentac
of the wholesale (i.e., licensee’s) selling pri€eamplete licensed products, net of certain pesibis deductions (including transportation,
insurance, packing costs and other items). QTLgeizes royalty revenues based on royalties repdyditensees during the quarter and w
other revenue recognition criteria are met. Licess@owever, do not report and pay royalties oweddles in any given quarter until after the
conclusion of that quarter. QTL revenues compri2@¥ , 30% and 33% of total consolidated revenudiséal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 ,
respectively. The vast majority of such revenuesevgenerated through our licensees’ sales of CDMIA2@nd WCDMA-based products,
such as feature phones and smartphones.

QS| makes strategic investments that are focusexpening new or expanding opportunities for ouhiexogies and supporting the des
and introduction of new products and services (ra@cing existing products or services) for voied data communications. Many of these
strategic investments are in early-stage compamiasariety of industries, including, but not lied to, digital media, e-commerce, energy,
healthcare and wearable devices. Investments phnmraclude non-marketable equity instruments, vwhigenerally are recorded using the cost
method or the equity method, and convertible destrauments, which are recorded at fair value. Q&I holds wireless spectrum, which at
September 28, 2014, consisted of L-Band spectrutimeitdnited Kingdom. As part of our strategic inwesnt activities, we intend to pursue
various exit strategies for each of our QSI invesita in the foreseeable future. During fiscal 2018 deconsolidated subsidiaries reported in
QsSI that were established to operate a wirelesgarktin India (the former BWA subsidiaries), antiaflour remaining interest was sold in
fiscal 2014.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014 , we reassal our management reporting as a result of theothe North and Latin America
operations of our Omnitracs division, among otleasons. The Omnitracs division was previously agagesl with three other divisions into
Qualcomm Wireless & Internet (QWI) reportable segtm8tarting in fiscal 2014 , the QWI segment wiamieated, and the former QWI
divisions are included in nonreportable segments.

Nonreportable segments include our QMT (QualcomnWBET echnologies), Pixtronix and Small Cells divisscand other wireless
technology and service initiatives. QMT plans telise its next generation IMOD (interferometric matbr) display technology and to focus
on wearable devices. Pixtronix develops and licenligplay technologies based on MEMS (micro-eleatezhanical-systems) structure
optimized for portable multimedia devices. Smalli€develops and supplies
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3G/LTE and Wi-Fi products designed for implememtatdbf small mobile base stations (known as smél)céther nonreportable segments
develop and offer products and services that irglbdt are not limited to: software products andtent and push-to-talk enablement services
to wireless operators; development, other senacelsrelated products to U.S. government agencieshamir contractors; device-to-device
communication, including software for the connedtedhe; data center products; medical device coivitycand related data management;
augmented reality.

During fiscal 2014 , we updated QMT’s business pland related internal forecasts to reflect deeeasexpected cash flows. As a result
of these updates, we tested the QMT division’s {lived assets and goodwill for impairment and releortotal charges of $607 milliom othe:
expenses in fiscal 2014.

Discontinued Operations

On November 25, 2013, we completed the sale oRthr¢h and Latin America operations of our Omnitrdission to a U.S.-based private
equity firm for cash consideration of $788 milligmet of cash sold). As a result, we recorded a medliscontinued operations of $665 million
( $430 million net of income tax expense) durirggél 2014. Total assets and total liabilities weduced by $150 million and $45 million
respectively. The revenues and operating resultiseoNorth and Latin America operations of the Gnaiess division, which comprised
substantially all of the Omnitracs division, werd presented as discontinued operations in anglfigeriod because they were immaterial. Th
related assets (included in other current asset®#rer noncurrent assets) and liabilities (inctugteother current liabilities and other
noncurrent liabilities) of $139 million and $43 fwh , respectively, were classified as held fdes# September 29, 2013.

On March 27, 2011, the FLO TV business and netwagrie shut down. On December 27, 2011 , we comptetedale of substantially all
of our 700 MHz spectrum for $1.9 billion , and asault, we recognized a gain in discontinued dpera of $1.2 billion during fiscal 2012 .
Accordingly, the results of operations of the FL® Business were presented as discontinued opesatictcome (loss) from discontinued
operations included share-based compensation ahadex certain general corporate expenses allotatde FLO TV business during the
periods presented. Discontinued operations inlfd@42 were $1.2 billion ( $776 million net of inoe tax expense).

Looking Forward

We expect continued growth in the coming yearsoimsamer demand for 3G, 3G/4G multimode and 4G mtsdand services around the
world, driven primarily by smartphones. We alsoectmgrowth in new device categories and industdesen by the expanding adoption of
certain technologies that are already commonly irssthartphones. As we look forward to the nexesalmonths, we expect our business to
be impacted by the following key items:

*  Further expansion of 3G and 3G/4G multimodenrerging regions, particularly in China. We expéetttthe increased availability of
low-tier 3G/4G smartphone products will help enahieh expansion.

*  We expect that 3G/4G device prices will contito@ary broadly due to the increased penetratfan@artphones combined with
competition throughout the world at all price tiedslditionally, varying rates of economic growth kggion, and stronger growth of
device shipments in emerging regions as comparddueloped regions, are expected to continue tadnjhe average and range of
selling prices of 3G/4G devices.

» China continues to present significant opportusif@ us, particularly with the rollout of 3G/4G ETmultimode. We expect the rollc
of 4G services in China will encourage competitiond growth, bring the benefits of 3G/4G LTE multoledo consumers, encourage
consumers to replace 2G (GSM) and 3G devices amolenew opportunities (e.g., machine-to-machioejie industry.

» China also presents significant challengesuadaosiness practices continue to be the subjesmh dfivestigation by the China National
Development and Reform Commission (NDRC). We aleete that certain licensees in China currentéyraot fully complying with
their contractual obligations to report their sadéficensed products to us (which includes ceriaensees underreporting a portion of
their 3G/4G device sales and a dispute with a §eepand that unlicensed companies may seek tp eledgution of new licenses
while the NDRC investigation is ongoing. Litigatiand/or other actions may be necessary to compseétlicensees to report such
sales and pay the required royalties for such saldsunlicensed companies to execute new liceRsether, our success in China is in
part dependent upon the rate of commercializatfetL TE products in China.

*  We continue to invest significant resources talsdvancements in 3G, 3G/4G multimode and 4G LarEGFDMA-based standard)
technologies, audio and video codecs, wirelessdaaskbchips, our converged computing/communicat{@nspdragon) chips,
graphics, connectivity, multimedia products, softevand services. We are also investing acrossadtgpectrum of opportunities that
leverage our existing technical and business eigpeid deploy new business models and enter intoimgustry segments, such as
products designed for implementation of small cafid addressing the challenge of meeting the isetedemand for data; products
for the connected home and the

33




Internet of Everything; automotive; very high speetnectivity; new display technologies; data centmobile health; wireless
charging; and machine learning, including robotics.

e In October 2014, we announced that we had rebabeement with CSR plc on the terms of a recondieticash offer to acquire the
entire issued and to be issued ordinary shareatafiCSR for £.00 per ordinary share, which values the entsead and to be issu
share capital of CSR at approximately £1.6 billl@approximately $2.5 billion based upon an exchaage of USD: GBP 1.6057).
CSR is an innovator in the development of multifiost semiconductor platforms and technologies lierauto, consumer and voice
and music market segments. The acquisition compi&syaur current offerings by adding products, cledsmand customers in the
growth categories of the Internet of Everything antbmotive infotainment, accelerating our presearatpath to leadership. The
acquisition is subject to a number of conditionsjuding receipt of United States and other regujapprovals and the approval of
CSR'’s shareholders. Subject to the satisfactidhede conditions, the acquisition is expecteddsecby the end of the summer of
2015.

In addition to the foregoing business and marksebanatters, we continue to devote resources tkimgowith and educating participants
and governments in the wireless value chain asddeénefits of our business model and our externistfaology investments in promoting a
highly competitive and innovative wireless industipwever, we expect that certain companies mayiruoa to be dissatisfied with the neec
pay reasonable royalties for the use of our tedugyoand not welcome the success of our businesglnrodnabling new, highly cost-effective
competitors to their products. We expect that starhpanies and/or governments or regulators wiltinae to challenge our business model in
various forums throughout the world.

Further discussion of risks related to our businegsesented in the Risk Factors included in Arisual Report.
Critical Accounting Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our results of dpera and liquidity and capital resources are basedur consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordgititaccounting principles generally accepted i tmited States. The preparation of thes
financial statements requires us to make estinsatdgudgments that affect the reported amountsséts, liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilittss an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimatggualgments, including those related to
valuation of goodwill, other indefinite-lived asseind londived assets, valuation of marketable securitissoiine taxes and litigation. We b
our estimates on historical and anticipated resultstrends and on various other assumptions thdtelieve are reasonable under the
circumstances, including assumptions as to futueats. These estimates form the basis for makidgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparem other sources. By their nature, estimatessabject to an inherent degree of uncertainty.
Although we believe that our estimates and therapfons supporting our assessments are reasoabla) results that differ from our
estimates could have a significant adverse effeduw operating results and financial position. Mééeve that the following significant
accounting estimates may involve a higher degrgedgiment and complexity than others.

Valuation of Goodwill, Other Indefinite-Lived Assetand Long-Lived Asset©ur business acquisitions typically result in teearding of
goodwill, other intangible assets and propertynpénd equipment and the recorded values of themetsamay become impaired in the future.
We also acquire intangible assets in other typesaokactions. At September 28, 2014 , our goodatiller intangible assets, net of
accumulated amortization, and property, plant andgment, net of depreciation, were $4.5 billig2,6 billion and $2.5 billion , respectively.
The determination of the value of intangible assetyuired in a business combination requires manageto make estimates and assumption
that affect our consolidated financial statemefke estimated fair values of such intangible assetsised to establish their recorded values.
For intangible assets acquired in a non-monetach@xge, the estimated fair values of the assetisfeed (or the estimated fair values of the
assets received, if more clearly evident) are ta@stablish their recorded values, unless theegadd neither the assets received nor the asse
transferred are determinable within reasonabledinm which case the assets received are meabassd on the carrying values of the assets
transferred. Valuation techniques consistent wWithrharket approach, income approach and/or cosbagp are used to measure fair value. Al
estimate of fair value can be affected by manyragsions that require significant judgment. For epénthe income approach generally
requires assumptions related to the appropriat;éss model to be used to estimate cash flowd,ddthessable market, pricing and share
forecasts, competition, technology obsolescendarduax rates and discount rates. Our estimatieeofair value of certain assets may differ
materially from that determined by others who uidieint assumptions or utilize different businessdels. New information may arise in the
future that affects our fair value estimates anadl¢oesult in adjustments to our estimates in therg, which could have an adverse impact on
our results of operations.

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible atsare tested annually for impairment and in imeperiods if certain events occur
indicating that the carrying amounts may be imphiteng-lived assets, such as property, plant guipenent and intangible assets subject to
amortization, are reviewed for impairment when ¢hisrevidence that events or changes in
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circumstances indicate that the carrying amouinodisset or asset group may not be recoverablgu@gments regarding the existence of
impairment indicators and future cash flows relatedoodwill, other indefinite-lived intangible @&is and long-lived assets may be based on
operational performance of our businesses, madkeditions, expected selling price and/or otherdextAlthough there are inherent
uncertainties in this assessment process, theagsirand assumptions we use, including estimatesuwé cash flows, volumes, market
penetration and discount rates, are consistentauitiinternal planning, when appropriate. If thesémates or their related assumptions chanc
in the future, we may be required to record an immpant charge on a portion or all of our goodwaliher indefinite-lived intangible assets and
long-lived assets. Furthermore, we cannot predebccurrence of future impairment-triggering esamdr the impact such events might have
on our reported asset values. Future events cauwiskecus to conclude that impairment indicatorst @xid that goodwill or other intangible
assets associated with our acquired businessémaaged. Any resulting impairment loss could haveadverse impact on our financial
position and results of operations. During fisd@al2 , 2013 and 2012 , we recorded $607 million585illion and $54 million , respectively,
in impairment charges for goodwill and lotiged assets resulting from updates to our estimate¢he expected cash flows of our QMT divis
as we transition to a licensing model. Goodwilhofhreportable segments that was at risk of fasiregp one of the goodwill impairment test
was not material at September 28, 2014.

Valuation of Marketable SecuritiesVe hold investments in marketable securities, ididlg U.S. Treasury and government-related
securities, corporate bonds and notes, mortgagkasset-backed securities, auction rate securtti@smon and preferred stock and equity an
debt funds. The fair value of these investments¢dt$24.1 billion at September 28, 2014 , withréases and decreases in fair value generall
recorded through stockholders’ equity as other aefmgnsive income or loss. We record impairmentgdsathrough the statement of
operations when we believe an investment has exqperd a decline that is other than temporary. Bterchination that a decline is other than
temporary is subjective and influenced by manydiectAdverse changes in market conditions or pperating results of investees could re
in losses or an inability to recover the carryimdue of the investments, thereby requiring impaihoharges. When assessing these
investments for an other-than-temporary declineaine, we consider such factors as, among othegshthe significance of the decline in
value as compared to the cost basis; underlyingifacontributing to a decline in the prices ofsées in a single asset class; how long the
market value of the security has been less thato#sbasis; the security’s relative performanasu®its peers, sector or asset class; expecte
market volatility; the market and economy in gehexaalyst recommendations and price targets; viglexternal investment managers; news
or financial information that has been releasedifipdo the investee; and the outlook for the @leindustry in which the investee operates, a
applicable. If we determine that a security prieelohe is other than temporary, we record an inmpeitt loss, which could have an adverse
impact on our results of operations. During fis2@l4 , 2013 and 2012 , we recorded $156 million2, &iillion and $71 million , respectively,
in impairment losses on our investments in marketabcurities.

Income TaxesOur income tax returns are based on calculatiodsaaaumptions that are subject to examination éyrtternal Revenue
Service (IRS) and other tax authorities. In additithe calculation of our tax liabilities involvescertainties in the application of complex tax
regulations. We recognize liabilities for uncerttm positions based on a two-step process. Tsiesfiep is to evaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining if the weight of avaiklevidence indicates that it is more likely thar that the position will be sustained on au
including resolution of related appeals or litigatiprocesses, if any. The second step is to me#tstax benefit as the largest amount that is
more than 50% likely of being realized upon setdaimWhile we believe we have appropriate supporttfe positions taken on our tax retu
we regularly assess the potential outcomes of exainins by taxing authorities in determining the@uhcy of our provision for income taxes.
We continually assess the likelihood and amoumiodéntial adjustments and adjust the income taxigian, income taxes payable and
deferred taxes in the period in which the facts ¢fine rise to a revision become known. We areigp#ting in the IRS Compliance Assurance
Process program whereby we endeavor to agree hatlRS on the treatment of all issues prior to§jlour federal return. A benefit of
participation in this program is that post-filindjastments by the IRS are less likely to occur.

Our QCT segment’s non-United States headquartéosased in Singapore. We obtained tax incentimeSingapore that commenced in
March 2012, including a tax exemption for the fiirge years, provided that we meet specified emplent and incentive criteriand as a rest
of expiration of these incentives, our Singaporergde will increase in fiscal 2017 and again stél 2027.

We consider the operating earnings of certain naited States subsidiaries to be indefinitely regsted outside the United States based o
our plans for use and/or investment outside ofthited States and our belief that our sources s @ad liquidity in the United States will be
sufficient to meet future domestic cash needs. @uyalar basis, we consider projected cash needarfiong other things, investments in our
existing businesses, future research and develdppaential acquisitions and capital transactiemsuding repurchases of our common stocl
and debt repayments. We estimate the amount ofarasther liquidity that is available or neededhe jurisdictions where these investments
are expected, as well as our ability to generath gathose jurisdictions and our access to capitakets. This analysis enables us to concluds
whether or not we will indefinitely reinvest theroent period’s foreign earnings. We have not reedrd deferred tax liability of approximately
$9.1 billion related to the United States federal atate income taxes and foreign withholding tates
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approximately $25.7 billion of undistributed eamgsnof certain non-United States subsidiaries imitefly reinvested outside the United States.
Should we decide to no longer indefinitely reinv@sth earnings outside the United States, we woaNe to adjust the income tax provision in
the period we make such determination.

Legal ProceedingsWe are currently involved in certain legal procegdi, and we intend to continue to vigorously defeaelves.
However, the unfavorable resolution of one or nadrthese proceedings could have a material adwdfset on our business, results of
operations, financial condition and/or cash floAdroad range of remedies with respect to our lassirpractices that are deemed to violate
applicable laws are potentially available. Thesee#ies may include, among others, injunctions, rresgelamages or fines or other orders to
pay money and the issuance of orders to ceasérceotaduct and/or to modify our business practi¥¥és.record our best estimate of a loss
related to pending legal proceedings when theifosensidered probable and the amount can be rablyoastimated. Where a range of loss
can be reasonably estimated with no best estimateirange, we record the minimum estimated ligbihs additional information becomes
available, we assess the potential liability relatepending legal proceedings and revise our estisn Revisions in our estimates of the
potential liability could materially impact our rdss of operations. Regarding the NDRC matter, eigele that a loss is probable but that any
possible range of loss cannot be reasonably estthatthis time.

Results of Operations

Revenues (in millions) Year Ended
September 28, September 29, September 30, 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
2014 2013 2012 Change Change
Equipment and services $ 18,628 $ 16,98¢ $ 12,46 $ 1,631 $ 4,527
Licensing 7,86: 7,87¢ 6,65¢ (16) 1,22
$ 26,487 $ 24,86¢ $ 19,12: $ 1,621 $ 5,74t

The increases in equipment and services revendesa 2014 and 2013 were primarily due to incesais QCT revenues of $1.94 billion
and $4.58 billion, respectively. The increase inipment and services revenues in fiscal 2014 wesapg offset by a decrease of $305 million
as a result of the sale of our Omnitracs divisiarirdy fiscal 2014. The decrease in our licensingeneies in fiscal 2014 was primarily due to a
decrease in a nonreportable segment'’s revenueg2ahndlion, partially offset by an increase in QTévenues of $15 million. The increase in
our licensing revenues in fiscal 2013 was primadile to an increase in QTL revenues of $1.23 hillio

QCT and QTL segment revenues related to the prediicdamsung Electronics and Hon Hai PrecisionstrigilCo., Ltd/Foxconn, its
affiliates and other suppliers to Apple Inc. compd 49%, 43% and 38% of total consolidated reveimuiéscal 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Revenues from customers in China, South Korea andah comprised 50% , 23% and 11% , respectivéligtal consolidated revenues
for fiscal 2014 , compared to 49% , 20% , and 1¥@&spectively, for fiscal 2013 , and 42% , 22% a4éb , respectively, for fiscal 2012 . We
report revenues from external customers by courdsed on the location to which our products orisesvare delivered, which for QCT is
generally the country in which our customers maciuii@ their products, or for licensing revenues,ittvoiced addresses of our licensees. As
result, the revenues by country presented hereim@irnecessarily indicative of either the couimrwhich the devices containing our products
and/or intellectual property are ultimately soldctmsumers or the country in which the companiasgéll the devices are headquartered. For
example, China revenues would include revenuetecktta shipments of integrated circuits to a congglat is headquartered in South Korea
but that manufactures devices in China, which des/are then sold to consumers in Europe and/ddrited States.

Costs and Expenses (in millions) Year Ended
September 28, September 29, September 30, 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
2014 2013 2012 Change Change
Cost of equipment and services (E&S) revenues  $ 10,68¢ $ 9,82( $ 7,09 $ 86€ $ 2,72¢
Cost as % of E&S revenues 57% 58% 57%
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The increase in margin percentage in fiscal 2014 pvamarily attributable to a net decrease in groasgin losses incurred by our
nonreportable segments, partially offset by a desgen QCT's gross margin. The decrease in masgiceptage in fiscal 2013 was primarily
attributable to a decrease in QCT gross margingmage. Our margin percentage may continue toufidetin future periods depending on the
mix of products sold and services provided, contipetpricing, new product introduction costs andestfactors.

Year Ended
September 28, September 29, September 30, 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
2014 2013 2012 Change Change

Research and development $ 5477 $ 4967 $ 3,91t $ 51C $ 1,052
% of revenues 21% 20% 20%
Selling, general, and administrative $ 229C $ 251¢ % 227C % (22¢) $ 24¢
% of revenues 9% 10% 12%
Other $ 484 $ 331 $ 15¢ $ 15¢ % 17e

The dollar increases in research and developmgrareses in fiscal 2014 and 2013 were primarilylaitable to increases of $395 million
and $904 million, respectively, in costs relateth® development of CDMA-based 3G, OFDMA-based 4 land other technologies for
integrated circuit products and to expand our iedslial property portfolio and increases of $29iomland $97 million, respectively, in share-
based compensation. Remaining dollar increases kated to research and development of other medugt and licensing initiatives.

The dollar decrease in selling, general and adinatige expenses in fiscal 2014 was primarily btttable to decreases of $59 million in
costs related to litigation and other legal maft8&3 million in share-based compensation, $53ionilin selling and marketing expenses and
$22 million in employee-related expenses. The deerén employee-related expenses and a portidreafdcrease in shabased compensati
in fiscal 2014 were due to the sale of our Omngtrdiwision during fiscal 2014. The dollar incre@seselling, general and administrative
expenses in fiscal 2013 was primarily attributabla $113 million increase in employee-related esps, a $56 million increase in selling and
marketing expenses, a $40 million increase in patdated expenses and a $29 million increase megéation and amortization expense,
partially offset by a decrease of $23 million irastitbased compensation.

Other expenses in fiscal 2014 were comprised of $6illion in long-lived asset and goodwill impairmecharges and $19 million in
restructuring-related costs incurred by our QMTigion, a $16 million goodwill impairment chargeatdd to our former QRS (Qualcomm
Retail Solutions) division and a $15 million legektlement, partially offset by the reversal ofl@$ million expense accrual recorded in fiscal
2013 related to the ParkerVision verdict againsQiker expenses in fiscal 2013 were comprisetd®ftl73 millionParkerVision charge and
$158 million impairment charge related to certaing-lived assets of our QMT division. Other expansefiscal 2012 were comprised of an
$81 million charge related to the former BWA sulmmigs, a $54 million impairment charge relatedectain long-lived assets of our QMT
division and $23 million in goodwill impairment atuges related to our former QRS division.

Net Investment Income (in millions) Year Ended
September 28, September 29, September 30, 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
2014 2013 2012 Change Change

Interest and dividend income $ 58¢ $ 697 $ 60 % (111 $ 88
Interest expense (5) (23 (90) 18 67
Net realized gains on marketable securities 77C 317 342 452 (25
Net realized gains on other investments 5€ 52 27 4 25

Impairment losses on marketable securities and othe
investments (180 (85) (83 (95) 2
Net gains on derivative instruments 5 — 84 5 (84
Equity in net losses of investees (20 (6) (9) (4) 3
Net gains on deconsolidation of subsidiaries 6 12 — (6) 12
$ 1,22¢  $ 964 $ 88C ¢ 264 % 84

In fiscal 2014, we rebalanced our marketable sgeamortfolio, which resulted in lower interestadividend income, due to lower inter
rates, and higher net realized gains on marketauearities, compared to fiscal 2013. The increasmpairment losses on marketable secui
and other investments in fiscal 2014 was primatilg to an increase in our recognition of unrealipesdes on marketable debt securities that
we intended to sell or that we more likely than would sell
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before recovery, which was also impacted by outfpliw rebalancing. We have completed the majasitpur rebalancing, and as a result, we
expect to earn lower interest and dividend incomeracord lower realized gains in fiscal 2015, canep to fiscal 2014.

The increase in interest and dividend income icali?013 resulted from higher average balanceasii,accash equivalents and marketable
securities in fiscal 2013, compared to fiscal 200f2e decrease in interest expense in fiscal 20di8texl from capitalizing a portion of interest
starting in fiscal 2012 related to the former BWibsidiaries, which were deconsolidated in fiscall2Net gains on derivative instruments in
fiscal 2012 primarily resulted from changes in thie value of put options sold in connection witlir gtock repurchase program that expired ir
fiscal 2012.

Income Tax Expense (in millions) Year Ended
September 28, September 29,  September 30, 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
2014 2013 2012 Change Change
Income tax expense $ 1,24¢  $ 1,34¢  $ 1,27¢ $ (105) $ 70
Effective tax rate 14% 16% 19% 2% (3%)

The following table summarizes the primary factivat caused our annual effective tax rates to $®tlean the United States federal
statutory rate:

Year Ended
September 28, September 29, September 30,
2014 2013 2012
Expected income tax provision at federal statutaxyrate 35% 35% 35%
Benefits from foreign income taxed at other tha8.Uates (20%) (17%) (16%)
Benefits related to the research and developmgraréalits (1%) (2%) (1%)
Change in valuation allowance —% —% 1%
Effective tax rate 14% 16% 19%

The effective tax rate for our state income taxwijwion, net of federal benefit, was negligible &ryears presented. The effective tax rate
for fiscal 2014reflected a tax benefit of $66 million related ichl 2013 resulting from an agreement reached théHnternal Revenue Serv
on components of our fiscal 2013 tax return. Additilly, the effective tax rate for fiscal 2014 asnpared to fiscal 2013 reflected increased
foreign earnings taxed at less than the UnitedeStideral rate. The effective tax rate for fit2l3 reflected a tax benefit of $64 million
related to fiscal 2012 resulting from the retroaetextension of the United States research andaf@went tax credit. Additionally, the
effective tax rate for fiscal 2013 as comparedgodl 2012 reflected increased foreign earningsdaat less than the United States federal rate
The effective tax rate for fiscal 2012 reflectekduction in our effective state tax rate as alt@§iCalifornia tax legislation previously
enacted, partially offset by increased earningsdaat the United States tax rate. The annual éféetdx rate for fiscal 2012 only reflected the
United States federal research and developmenit gekrated through December 31, 2011, the datehich the credit expired.

Our Segment Results (in millions)

The following should be read in conjunction witte tliscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 financial resultssfmch reporting segment. Seédotes tc
Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 8. Segimémmation.”
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QCT QTL Qsl

2014
Revenues 18,668 $ 7,56¢ $ —
EBT (1) 3,807 6,59( (7)
EBT as a % of revenues 20% 87%

2013
Revenues 16,718 $ 7,55¢ % —
EBT (1) 3,18¢ 6,59( 56
EBT as a % of revenues 19% 87%

2012
Revenues 12,14:  $ 6,321 $ —
EBT (1) 2,29¢ 5,58¢ 70
EBT as a % of revenues 19% 88%

(1) Earnings (loss) before tax

QCT SegmentThe increases in QCT revenues in fiscal 2014 ad® 20 $1.95 billion and $4.57 billion , respectiyelvere primarily due
to increases in equipment and services revenuespiagnt and services revenues, mostly relatedlés & MSM and accompanying RF and
PM integrated circuits, were $18.43 billion, $16b#8ion and $11.91 billion in fiscal 2014 , 2018ck2012 , respectively. The increase in
equipment and services revenues in 2014 resultedhply from increases of $2.66 billion relatedhigher MSM and accompanying RF and
PM unit shipments and $203 million related to salesonnectivity products, partially offset by at wecrease of $1.08 billion resulting from
lower average selling prices offset by higher-piipeoduct mix. The increase in equipment and sesvievenues in 2013 resulted primarily
from a net increase of $2.09 billion resulting frbigherpriced product mix offset by lower average sellmges and increases of $2.05 bill
related to higher MSM and accompanying RF and PMsainpments and $212 million related to salesasfrectivity products. Approximately
861 million , 716 million and 590 million MSM integted circuits were sold during fiscal 2014 , 2@h8 2012 , respectively.

QCT EBT as a percentage of revenues increaseddal 2014, compared to fiscal 2013. During fis€l4 QCT revenues increased 12%
relative to a combined increase of 5% in reseanchdevelopment expenses and selling, general anthadrative expenses, whereas gross
margin percentage decreased as a result of loveeag® selling prices and lower-margin product mpattially offset by lower average unit
costs. QCT EBT as a percentage of revenues rem#ated fiscal 2013, compared to fiscal 2012. Dgrifiscal 2013, QCT revenues increased
38% relative to a combined increase of 26% in neteand development expenses and selling, genedaddministrative expenses, whereas
QCT gross margin percentage decreased as a réfuliey average selling prices and lower-margindoie mix, partially offset by lower
average unit costs.

QCT inventories increased by 12% in fiscal 2014i%1.30 billion to $1.46 billion primarily due tmancrease in work-in-process and
finished goods related to the growth of the busines

QTL SegmentThe increases in QTL revenues in fiscal 2014 ariB820 $15 million and $1.23 billion , respectivelyere primarily due to
increases in sales of CDMA-based products, inctydiltimode products that also implement OFDMA Jibgnsees, partially offset by
decreases in revenues per unit. QTL EBT as a pegenf revenues remained flat in fiscal 2014, carag to fiscal 2013. During fiscal 2014,
QTL revenues increased slightly relative to andase of 2% in costs and expenses. QTL revenueBBifdor fiscal 2014 were impacted by
units that we believe are being underreported Ioiaicelicensees, a dispute with a licensee and sHleertain unlicensed products in China.
The decrease in QTL EBT as a percentage of revaturagy fiscal 2013 was attributable to an increafs&9% in revenues relative to an
increase of 29% in costs and expenses primarilytairecreased allocation of patent expenses ineotion with the corporate reorganization
and increased research and development expenses.

QSI Segment The decrease in QS| EBT in fiscal 2014 of $63iarilwas primarily due to a decrease of $39 milliomet realized gains
on investments and an increase of $35 million ipairment losses on investments, partially offsealtecrease of $16 million in interest
expense related to the former BWA subsidiaries. €2Sts and expenses for fiscal 2012 included $8iomrelated to the former BWA
subsidiaries; the increase in QSI EBT in fiscal201$145 million, excluding the impact of thisde 2012 expense, was primarily due to an
increase of $67 million in net realized gains ovestments and a decrease of $60 million in intexegénse incurred by the former BWA
subsidiaries.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are our existicash, cash equivalents and marketable secudtish, generated from operations and
proceeds from the issuance of common stock undestouk option and employee stock purchase plaash(ash equivalents and marketable
securities were $32.0 billion at September 28, 28 increase of $2.6 billion from September 8,2. This increase included $1.4 billion in
proceeds from the issuance of common stock undesauity compensation plans and $788 million inpreceeds from the sale of the North
and Latin America operations of our Omnitracs doris Our cash, cash equivalents and marketableaiteswat September 28, 2014 consisted
of $5.8 hillion held by United States-based ergii@d $26.2 billion held by foreign entities. Mo§bur cash, cash equivalents and marketabls
securities held by foreign entities is indefiniteginvested and would be subject to material téecés if repatriated. However, we believe that
our United States sources of cash and liquiditysafficient to meet our business needs in the driiteates and do not expect that we will neec
to repatriate the funds. Total cash provided byrajigg activities increased to $8.9 billion durifigcal 2014 , compared to $8.8 billion during
fiscal 2013 .

Accounts receivable increased 13% during fiscal20Rays sales outstanding, on a consolidated basie 32 days at September 28,
2014 , compared to 30 days at September 29, 2088 increase in accounts receivable was primatity/td the effects of increased revenues
related to integrated circuits and a receivablateel to a dispute with a licensee. The increaskays sales outstanding was primarily due to a
receivable related to a dispute with a licensee.

During fiscal 2014 , we repurchased and retire@®®,000 shares of common stock for $4.5 billioefpbe commissions. On March 4,
2014 , we announced that we had been authorizegptochase up to $7.8 billion of our common stdukSeptember 28, 2014 , approximately
$5.3 billion remained available for repurchase uraie stock repurchase program. Since Septembe&t(8, , we repurchased and retired
8,595,000 shares of common stock for $638 milligvie. continue to evaluate repurchases as a meaatuafing capital to stockholders,
subject to our periodic determinations that repasels are in the best interests of our stockholders.

We paid cash dividends totaling $2.6 billion andi#{illion , or $1.54 and $1.20 per common shaueing fiscal 2014 and 2013 ,
respectively. On March 4, 2014 , we announced arease in our quarterly dividend from $0.35 to $(oér share of common stock. On
October 16, 2014 , we announced a cash divide®0.dR per share on our common stock, payable oereer 18, 2014 to stockholders of
record as of the close of business on Decembdyl¥ 2We intend to continue to use cash dividesds means of returning capital to
stockholders, subject to capital availability and wiew that cash dividends are in the best intsreSour stockholders.

We intend to return 75% of our free cash flow tackholders through stock repurchases and dividewdsthe foreseeable future, where
free cash flow is defined as net cash providedg®rating activities less capital expenditures. Teetrthis goal, we expect to use existing cast
and marketable securities held by, and cash flavegged from, United States-based entities, andntieipate that we will supplement this by
borrowing additional funds in fiscal 2015. The regment for and timing of such borrowing is subjeca number of factors, including the c
flow generated by United States-based entitiegjiaittpns and strategic investments, acceptabérast rates and changes in corporate incom
tax law, among other factors.

Subject to the foregoing paragraph, we believecaarent cash, cash equivalents and marketableieswand our expected cash flow
generated from operations will satisfy our workamy other capital requirements over the next figeat and beyond based on our current
business plans. Recent and expected working ard odpital requirements also include:

» Ourresearch and development expenditures weeketillion and $5.0 billion in fiscal 2014 and Z1lrespectively, and we expect to
continue to invest heavily in research and develagror new technologies, applications and senvioesoice and data
communications, primarily in the wireless industry.

»  Cash outflows for capital expenditures were $llibn and $1.0 billion in fiscal 2014 and 2018spectively. We expect to continue
to incur capital expenditures in the future to suppur business, including research and developawivities. Future capital
expenditures may be impacted by transactions teatwarently not forecasted.

» Our purchase obligations for fiscal 2015 , sahehich relate to research and development aigs/éind capital expenditures, totaled
$3.4 billion at September 28, 2014 .

* In October 2014, we announced that we had rebabeeement with CSR plc on the terms of a recondeicash offer to acquire the
entire issued and to be issued ordinary shareataiCSR for £.00 per ordinary share, which values the entgedd and to be issu
share capital of CSR at approximately £1.6 bilf@pproximately $2.5 billion based upon an exchamagee of USD: GBP 1.6057). We
expect to use existing cash resources to funddfeisition. The acquisition is subject to a numisieconditions, including receipt of
United States and other regulatory approvals aa@dgproval of CSR' shareholders. Subject to the satisfaction oktleesditions, th
acquisition is expected to close by the end oftiramer of 2015.
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*  We expect to continue making strategic investsiand acquisitions, the amounts of which could gignificantly, to open new
opportunities for our technologies, obtain develepiiresources, grow our patent portfolio and/ospemew businesses.

Contractual Obligations / Off-Balance Sheet Arrangenents

We have no significant contractual obligations fadlyy recorded on our consolidated balance sheetslly disclosed in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements. We have no niahtEff-balance sheet arrangements as definedKn3B3(a)(4)(ii).

The following table summarizes the payments dudoal period for our outstanding contractual otigns at September 28, 2014 (in
millions):

No
Beyond Expiration
Total 2015 2016-2017 2018-2019 2019 Date
Purchase obligations (1) $ 3,607 $ 3,421 % 121 % 36 $ 2¢ 3 —
Operating lease obligations 304 91 137 51 25 —
Equity funding and financing commitments (2) 78 22 52 — — 4
Other long-term liabilities (3)(4) 53 1 23 14 8 7
Total contractual obligations $ 4,04: $ 3,53t $ 33t $ 101 $ 62 $ 11

(1) Total purchase obligations include $2.8 billiorcommitments to purchase integrated circuit produatntories. Integrated circuit product inventory
obligations represent purchase commitments for mwatke, finished goods and manufacturing servisesh as wafer bump, probe, assembly and final tes
Under our manufacturing relationships with our fognsuppliers and assembly and test service prosjidancelation of outstanding purchase orders is
generally allowed but requires payment of all castsirred through the date of cancelation.

(2) Certain of these commitments do not have fixed fumdates and are subject to certain conditionsafBitments represent the maximum amounts to be
funded under these arrangements; actual fundingbmayy lesser amounts or not at all.

(3) Certain long-term liabilities reflected on our bata sheet, such as unearned revenues, are natteckgethis table because they do not require cash
settlement in the future. Other long-term liakdiitias presented in this table include the relaie@mt portions.

(4) Our consolidated balance sheet at September 28,i86tuded $76 million in noncurrent liabilitiesrfancertain tax positions, some of which may result
cash payment. The future payments related to waindex positions have not been presented in thle &ove due to the uncertainty of the amounts and
timing of cash settlement with the taxing authesti

Additional information regarding our financial coriiments at September 28, 2014 is provided in thestw our consolidated financial
statements. See “Notes to Consolidated FinancidéBtents, Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies.”

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@assued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No4209, “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers,” which outlines a compretive revenue recognition model and supersedesamaent revenue recognition
guidance. The new standard requires a companygégmnize revenue upon transfer of goods or sert@ascustomer at an amount that reflects
the expected consideration to be received in exgdhéor those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 definfége-step approach for recognizing
revenue which may require a company to use mogneat and make more estimates than under the tguaance. This ASU will be
effective for us starting in the first quarter &fdal 2018. The new standard allows for two methafdsdoption: (a) full retrospective adoption,
meaning the standard is applied to all periodseprtesi, or (b) modified retrospective adoption, nieguthe cumulative effect of applying the
new standard is recognized as an adjustment tiistsd 2018 opening retained earnings balance. #eénahe process of determining the
adoption method as well as the effects the adoptidhave on our consolidated financial statements

Non-GAAP Financial Information

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fiielr€ondition and Results of Operations includdsnences to free cash flow and
return of capital to stockholders as a percented tash flow. These are financial measures thag m@ prepared in accordance with GAAP.
We define “free cash flow” as net cash providedpgrating activities less capital expenditures‘aeatlirn of capital to stockholders” as cash
paid to repurchase shares of our common stock astd dividends paid.

The nonGAAP financial information presented should be édeied in addition to, not as a substitute forsgperior to, financial measu
calculated in accordance with GAAP. In additiorgrGAAP” is not a term defined by GAAP, and as sutg our measure of non-GAAP
results might be different than similarly titled aseires used by other companies.
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We use free cash flow to facilitate an understagadinthe amount of cash flow generated that islalba to grow our business and to cri
long-term stockholder value. We believe returnagfital to stockholders as a percentage of free fhaatprovides insight into our cash-
generating activities relative to the amount ofitzdpeturned to stockholders. These non-GAAP messsare supplemental to the comparable
GAAP measures. The following is a reconciliatiomEen GAAP and non-GAAP results for fiscal 2014li@s in millions):

Net cash provided by operating activities (GAAP) $ 8,881
Capital expenditures (2,185
Free cash flow (non-GAAP) $ 7,70z
Cash paid to repurchase shares of our common @gtefdre commissions) $ 4,54¢
Cash dividends paid 2,58¢
Total return of capital to stockholders $ 7,13¢
Total return of capital to stockholders as a peiags of net cash provided by operating activitie@AAP) 80%
Total return of capital to stockholders as a petags of free cash flow (non-GAAP) 93%

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures &out Market Risk

Interest Rate RiskWe invest a portion of our cash in a number of diifed fixed and floating rate securities, corisigtof cash
equivalents, marketable debt securities, debt fandisderivative instruments (including interesé rsivaps) that are subject to interest rate risk
Changes in the general level of interest ratesaffact the fair value of our investment portfolibinterest rates in the general economy were t
rise, our holdings could lose value. We providemsgivity analysis that shows the effect of aruassd 100 basis point adverse movement in
interest rates across the entire yield curve. At&aber 28, 2014 , a hypothetical increase in ésterates of 100 basis points on our holdings
would have resulted in decreases of $12 million $3@0 million in the fair values of our holdingsssified as trading (including derivative
instruments) and our remaining holdings, respelgtive

Equity Price Risk.We hold a diversified marketable securities poitfthat includes equity securities and fund sh#lrasare subject to
equity price risk. We have made investments in mtatide equity securities of companies of varyirrg sstyle, industry and geography, and
changes in investment allocations may affect tieeprolatility of our investments. A 10% decreaséhe market price of our marketable eq
securities and fund shares at September 28, 20litlaave caused a decrease in the carrying amoftitiisse securities of $234 million. At
September 28, 2014 , gross unrealized losses ohatketable equity securities and fund shares wegdgible. Although we consider the
unrealized losses to be temporary, there is ahiskwe may incur other-than-temporary impairmérarges or realized losses on the values of
these securities if they do not recover in valuthinia reasonable period.

Foreign Exchange RiskWe manage our exposure to foreign exchange masket when deemed appropriate, through the use of
derivative financial instruments, including foreigarrency forward and option contracts with finahciounterparties. We utilize such
derivative financial instruments for hedging okrimanagement purposes rather than for speculatigropes. Counterparties to our derivative
contracts are all major banking institutions. Ia #vent of the financial insolvency or distresg @bunterparty to our derivative financial
instruments, we may be unable to settle transactidhe counterparty does not provide us withisight collateral to secure its net settlement
obligations to us, which could have a negative iohpa our results. See “Notes to Consolidated RirzuStatements, Note 1. The Company
and Its Significant Accounting Policies” for a déption of our foreign currency accounting policies

At September 28, 2014our net asset related to foreign currency optimmtracts designated as hedges of foreign curnésicyon royaltie:
earned from certain licensees on their sales of @Eildsed devices) were negligible. If our forecastylty revenues for currencies in which
we hedge were to decline by 20% and foreign exohaates were to change unfavorably by 20% in odgée foreign currency, we would not
incur a loss as our hedge positions would contiouge fully effective.

At September 28, 2014our net asset related to foreign currency forwafatures, options and swaps in our marketablergess portfolios
that were not designated as hedging instruments megligible. If the foreign exchange rates relévarthese contracts were to change
unfavorably by 10% and we do not have an offsedifpr currency exposure relating to debt instrumbatd in our marketable securities
portfolios classified as trading, we would incunegligible loss.

Financial assets and liabilities held by consolidegubsidiaries that are not denominated in thetifmmal currency of those entities are
subject to the effects of currency fluctuations aval affect reported earnings. As a global compayface exposure to adverse movemer
foreign currency exchange rates. We may hedgermeyrexposures associated with certain
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assets and liabilities denominated in nonfunctiauatencies and certain anticipated nonfunctionalency transactions. As a result, we could
experience unanticipated gains or losses on aatmipforeign currency cash flows, as well as econdwss with respect to the recoverability
investments. While we may hedge certain transagtigth non-United States customers, declines irecualy values in certain regions may, if
not reversed, adversely affect future product sagesiuse our products may become more expenspugdbase in the countries of the affectec
currencies.

Our analysis methods used to assess and mitigatisks discussed above should not be consideogépions of future risks.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements at Septe@®e2014 and September 29, 2013 and the ReporiagvitaterhouseCoopers LLP,
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,iackided in this Annual Report on Form 10-K on pagel through F-33.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosarControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disctestontrols and procedures, as such terms areedefinder Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as astk(ttie Exchange Act). Based on this evaluationpdacipal executive officer and our
principal financial officer concluded that our dizgure controls and procedures were effective dlseoénd of the period covered by this
Annual Report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@@orting, as such term is definet
Exchange Act Rule 1345(f). Under the supervision and with the partitigra of our management, including our principal @xéve officer anc
principal financial officer, we conducted an evaion of the effectiveness of our internal contreéofinancial reporting based on the
framework inlnternal Control — Integrated Framework (1998%ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission. Based on our evaluation under this éwaark, our management concluded that our interowadrol over financial reporting was
effective as of September 28, 2014 .

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent registiblic accounting firm that audited the cordstied financial statements included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has also autiitee effectiveness of our internal control oveaficial reporting as of September 28, 2014
as stated in its report which appears on page F-1.

Inherent Limitations over Internal Controls

Our internal control over financial reporting isstined to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated financial statemémt external purposes in accordance with geneaaltepted accounting principles. Our
internal control over financial reporting includd®se policies and procedures that:

i. pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions of
our assets;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactimnsecorded as necessary to permit preparatioorsolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepteouating principles, and that our receipts and egfiares are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of our mamagnt and directors; and

iii.  provide reasonable assurance regarding ptéveor timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on thediolated financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannobyide absolute assurance of achieving financiadmém objectives because of its inher
limitations, including the possibility of human errand circumvention by collusion or overridingaaintrols. Accordingly, even an effective
internal control system may not prevent or deteatemal misstatements on a timely basis. Also,qutapns of any evaluation of effectivenes
future periods are subject to the risk that costrohy become inadequate because of changes irtioosdir that the degree of compliance \
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control dvwancial reporting during the fourth quarter cfdal 2014 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, aternal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this item regardingediors is incorporated by reference to our DefirifProxy Statement to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission in connectioim edr 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the2@toxy Statement) under the
headings “Nominees for Election” and “Section 1&ajeficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.” Certaiformation required by this item
regarding executive officers is set forth in IterafPart | of this Report under the caption “Exé@oeiOfficers,” and certain information is
incorporated by reference to the 2015 Proxy Stat¢mmeder the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Owhipp Reporting Compliance.” The
information required by this item regarding corgergovernance is incorporated by reference to @& Proxy Statement under the headings
“Code of Ethics and Corporate Governance PrincighesPractices,” “Director Nominations” and “Boadvigetings, Committees and
Attendance.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the 2015 Proxy Statement uheenéadings “Executive
Compensation and Related Information,” “Compensatiables and Narrative Disclosures,” “Director C@mgation,” “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation ion@hbensation Decisions” and “Compensation CommReport.”
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the 2015 Proxy Statement uhe@enéadings “Equity Compensation
Plan Information” and “Stock Ownership of Certaiarficial Owners and Management.”
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the 2015 Proxy Statement uhéenéadings “Certain Relationships
and Related-Person Transactions” and “Directorpeddence.”
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorpadby reference to the 2015 Proxy Statement uheenéading “Fees for Professional
Services” and “Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Appabef Audit and Non-Audit Services of Independenblit Accountants.”
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
The following documents are filed as part of tiepart:

(a) Financial Statements:

Page
Number
(1) Report of Independent Registered Public AcdogrEirm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 28, 2@ll8eptember 29, 2013 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for Fisca#i20013 and 2012 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomEisoal 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Fisca#20013 and 2012 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquityHiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7
(2) Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-1

Financial statement schedules other than thosallEbove have been omitted because they are piihezquired, not applicable or the
information is otherwise included in the noteshe tonsolidated financial statements.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Rule 2.7 Announcement, Recommended Cashigitign of CSR plc by Qualcomm Global Trading Rital. (1)

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, meaded. (2)

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws. (3)

4.1 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated aspdéi®@ber 26, 2005 between the Company and Compater$rust
Company, N.A., as successor Rights Agent to Comgludee Investor Services LLC. (4)

4.2 Amendment dated as of December 7, 2006 to the Aeteadd Restated Rights Agreement dated as of Sket&tfi, 2005
between the Company and Computershare Trust CompiAy, as successor Rights Agent to Computersimaestor
Services LLC. (5)

10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement between thenfany, each director and certain officers. (6)(7)

10.40 Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and&gmnent under the 2001 Stock Option Plan. (6)(8)

10.43 Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and égnent under the 2001 Non-Employee Directors’ S@gton Plan. (6)(9)

10.55 2001 Stock Option Plan, as amended.@p)(1

10.66 2001 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Optian, as amended. (6)(11)

10.84 Form of Grant Notice and Stock Optionéggnent under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plarf12j)

10.86 Form of Grant Notice and Market StocktWgreement under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Rl@)y{13)

10.94 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amemraedrestated. (6)(14)

10.95 Amended and Restated QUALCOMM Incorpar@@01 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (6)(14)

10.96 Atheros Communications, Inc. 2004 Staoaehtive Plan, as amended. (6)(15)

10.99 Third Amended and Restated Intellon Catdan 2000 Employee Incentive Plan. (6)(15)

10.100 Intellon Corporation 2007 Equity InceatPlan. (6)(15)

10.101 Resolutions Amending Atheros Commurecesj Inc. Equity Plans. (6)(15)

10.102 Executive Retirement Matching Contribution Planeaigted and restated generally effective Januar@1ll,2as subsequently
amended by Amendment Number 1 and Amendment Nughl{&)(16)

10.103 Amendment to the 2006 Long-Term Incenklan, as amended and restated. (6)(16)
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Exhibit
Number
10.104

10.105

10.106

10.107

10.108

10.110

10.111

10.112
10.113
10.114
10.115

10.116

10.117

10.118

10.119

10.120
10.121
10.122

10.123

10.124

21

23.1
31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

101.INS
101.SCH

Description
Form of Grant Notices and Global Empéo$tock Option Agreement under the 2006 Long-Teroemtive Plan. (6)(16)
Form of Grant Notices and Global EmptoRestricted Stock Unit Agreement under the 2006gkberm Incentive Plan. (6)
(16)
Form of Grant Notice and Performance Stock Unitesgnent under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive PlathfeiNovember 1,
2010 to October 31, 2013 performance periods. §)(1

Form of Grant Notices and Performance Stock Unite&gents under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plathi® September
26, 2011 to September 26, 2014 performance pefiodsding variation of forms for employee in thaitéd Kingdom. (6)
(16)

Form of Performance Unit Agreements for the Anrash Incentive Plan under the 2006 Long-Term Irneerlan for the
fiscal 2012 performance period. (6)(16)

Executive Retirement Matching Contribution Plan aded and restated generally effective January 11,28s subsequently
amended by Amendment Number 1, Amendment Numbad2aendment Number 3. (6)(17)

Form of Performance Unit Agreements for the Anrtiash Incentive Plan under the 2006 Long-Term IrigerRlan for the
fiscal 2013 performance period. (6)(17)

2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as ameaahel restated. (6)(18)
Amended and Restated QUALCOMM Incorpat&001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (6)(18)
Form of Aircraft Time Sharing Agreemd6)(19)

Form of Executive Grant Notices and Executive Rerfnce Stock Unit Agreements under the 2006 LongaTlacentive
Plan for the September 30, 2013 to September 25 @érformance periods. (6)(20)

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan (forméripwn as Executive Retirement Matching Contribut®tan) amended
and restated effective September 30, 2013. (6)(20)

Form of Grant Notices and Non-Employee DirectortReted Stock Unit Agreements under the 2006 LomgAT Incentive
Plan for non-employee directors residing in thetethKingdom and Hong Kong. (6)(20)

Form of Executive Grant Notice and Executive Penfance Stock Unit Agreement under the 2006 Ldagn Incentive Plar
which includes a September 30, 2013 to June 23} péfformance period. (6)(20)

Form of Grant Notices and Non-Employee Directorddefd Stock Unit Agreements under the 2006 Longrli@centive
Plan for non-employee directors residing in thetehiStates and Spain. (6)(20)

Form of Annual Cash Incentive Plan Rerfmce Unit Agreements. (6)(21)
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Rlarended and restated effective September 29, P8)(22)

Form of Non-Employee Director Deferred Stock Unia@ Notices and Deferred Stock Unit Agreement uttioie 2006
Long-Term Incentive Plan for non-employee directesiding in Singapore. (6)(22)

Form of Executive Restricted Stock Unit Grant Netamd Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreementieuthe 2006 Long-
Term Incentive Plan, which includes a Septembe@24 to March 29, 2015 performance period. (6)(22)

Form of Executive Restricted Stock Unit Grant Netémd Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreemeneutige 2006 Long-
Term Incentive Plan. (6)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered PuldaoAnting Firm.

Certification pursuant to Section 302h&f Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Steven M. Moltgoik
Certification pursuant to Section 302haf Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for George S. Davis.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Setti@50, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of dheaBes-Oxley Act of 2002 for
Steven M. Mollenkopf.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Setti@50, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of dheaBes-Oxley Act of 2002 for
George S. Davis.

XBRL Instance Document.
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema.
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Exhibit
Number
101.CAL
101.LAB
101.PRE
101.DEF

@)
@)
©)
4)
®)
(6)
@)
®)
)
(10)
11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
an
(18)
(19)
(20)
(1)
(22)

Description
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation kbase.
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatiarkhase.
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Livése.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Curf@aport on Form 8-K filed on October 15, 2014.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Quayt®eport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended M&8h2012.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Curf@aport on Form 8-K filed on July 11, 2012.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Curf@aport on Form 8-K (File No. 000-19528) filed oep&mber 30, 2005.
Filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Curi@eport on Form 8-K (File No. 000-19528) filed oed@mber 12, 2006.
Indicates management contract or compensatarygy arrangement required to be identified purst@ltem 15(a).
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registin Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-42782).
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Quayt®eport on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-19528) for thearter ended June 27, 2004.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuadytBeport on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-19528) for thearter ended April 1, 2001.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's QuartReport on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-19528) foe tjuarter ended March 28, 2004.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s CutriReport on Form 8-K/A (File No. 000-19528) filed May 6, 2005.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s AnnRaport on Form 10-K (File No. 000-19528) for tleayended September 27, 2009.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's QuartReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Ddmam27, 2009.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s QuartReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended M&¢h2011.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Regtgin Statement on Form S-8 filed on June 1, 2011.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s AnnRaport on Form 10-K for the year ended Septembg2@12.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's QuartReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Ddmam30, 2012.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s QuartReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended M&th2013.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s QuéartReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Rhe2013.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s AnnRaport on Form 10-K for the year ended Septem®g2@13.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's QuartReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Ddmam29, 2013.
Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s QuartReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Rfe2014.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigtthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

November 5, 201

QUALCOMM Incorporated

By /s/ Steven M. Mollenkopf
Steven M. Mollenkopf,
Chief Executive Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf

of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated:

Signature

Title

Date

/sl Steven M. Mollenkopf

Steven M. Mollenkopf

/sl George S. Davis

George S. Davis

/sl John F. Murphy

John F. Murphy

/s/ Barbara T. Alexander

Barbara T. Alexander

/s/ Donald G. Cruickshank

Donald G. Cruickshank

/sl Raymond V. Dittamore

Raymond V. Dittamore

/sl Susan Hockfield

Susan Hockfield

/s/ Thomas W. Horton

Thomas W. Horton

/s/ Paul E. Jacobs

Paul E. Jacobs

/sl Sherry Lansing

Sherry Lansing

/s/ Harish Manwani

Harish Manwani

/s/ Duane A. Nelles

Duane A. Nelles

/s/ Clark T. Randt, Jr.

Clark T. Randt, Jr.

/sl Francisco Ros

Francisco Ros

/s/ Jonathan J. Rubinstein

Jonathan J. Rubinstein

/s/ Brent Scowcroft

Brent Scowcroft

Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chairman

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014

November 5, 2014



/s/ Marc |. Stern Director November 5, 2014

Marc I. Stern
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of QUAMIM Incorporated:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated foialnstatements listed in the index appearing uitder 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of QUALZM Incorporated and its subsidiaries at SeptemBe2@14 and September 29, 2013 and
the results of their operations and their cash $léov each of the three years in the period endgdetnber 28, 2014 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thedéhStates of America. In addition, in our opinitire financial statement schedule listed in
the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) preseiriy.fan all material respects, the information f&th therein when read in conjunction with
the related consolidated financial statements. Alsmur opinion, the Company maintained, in all enetl respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of September 28, 20ddsed on criteria establishediernal Control - Integrated Framework (1998sued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s managemeesonsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedule, fortanaing effective internal control over financia@porting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting, included in the accompanying ManagensReport on Internal Control over Financ
Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsjbitli to express opinions on these financial states) on the financial statement schedule
and on the Company’s internal control over finahegorting based on our integrated audits. We gotetl our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States). Those standards requatevtk plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfal@tatements are free of material misstatemedhtnehether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all materidpects. Our audits of the financial statemermsiited examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the éilahstatements, assessing the accounting prirsciled and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financ&éstent presentation. Our audit of internal cordx@r financial reporting included obtain
an understanding of internal control over finanogdorting, assessing the risk that a material wesk exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internalrcbibiased on the assessed risk. Our audits aldadiext performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. Wayé¢hat our audits provide a reasonable basiedo opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdbose policies and procedures that (i) pertathéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituref®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Diego, California

November 5, 201




Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Deferred tax assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Marketable securities
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets

Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable
Payroll and other benefits related liabilities
Unearned revenues
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Unearned revenues
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)

Stockholders’ equity:
Qualcomm stockholders’ equity:

QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except per share data)

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 8 shares a@mélthmone outstanding

Common stock and paid-in capital, $0.0001 par ya&8,@00 shares authorized; 1,669 and 1,685 shesaed and

outstanding, respectively
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total Qualcomm stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.

September 28, September 29,
2014 2013

$ 7907 $ 6,142
9,65¢ 8,82¢

2,41z 2,147

1,45¢ 1,30z

577 573

401 572

22,415 19,55¢

14,45 14,44(

1,174 1,05¢

2,487 2,99

4,48¢ 3,97¢

2,58( 2,55¢

97t 93¢

$ 48,57 $ 45,51¢
$ 2,18 $ 1,554
80z 83¢

78E 501

2,245 2,31¢

6,01z 5,21:

2,967 3,66¢

42¢ 55C

9,40¢ 9,42¢

7,73¢€ 9,87

30,79¢ 25,46

634 758

39,16¢ 36,08¢
) (@)

39,16¢ 36,08

$ 48,57 $ 45,51¢




QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In millions, except per share data)

Revenues:
Equipment and services
Licensing
Total revenues
Costs and expenses:
Cost of equipment and services revenues
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Other
Total costs and expenses
Operating income
Investment income, net (Note 3)
Income from continuing operations before incomesax
Income tax expense
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes (Ndfe
Net income
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income attributable to Qualcomm

Basic earnings per share attributable to Qualcomm:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Diluted earnings per share attributable to Qualcomm
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Shares used in per share calculations:
Basic
Diluted

Dividends per share announced

See accompanying notes.

Year Ended

September 28, September 29, September 30,

2014 2013 2012
18,62t $ 16,98¢ $ 12,46
7,86: 7,87¢ 6,65¢
26,487 24,86¢ 19,12:
10,68¢ 9,82( 7,09¢
5,47 4,967 3,91¢
2,29( 2,51¢ 2,27(
484 331 15¢
18,937 17,63¢ 13,43¢
7,55( 7,23( 5,68
1,22¢ 964 88C
8,77¢ 8,194 6,56
(1,244 (1,349 (1,279
7,53¢ 6,84¢ 5,28:
43C — TT€
7,964 6,84¢ 6,05¢
3 8 50
7967 $ 6,85 $ 6,10¢
448 % 39¢ $ 3.14
0.2t — 0.4t
47 % 39¢ $ 3.5¢
44C % 391 $ 3.0¢
0.2t — 0.4t
465 % 391 $ 3.51
1,68: 1,71¢ 1,70C
1,71¢ 1,75¢ 1,741
154 % 12C ¢ 0.9z




QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In millions)
Year Ended
September 28, September 29, September 30,
2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 7,96 % 6,84t $ 6,05¢
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of incorresta
Foreign currency translation 1 (20 (29
Reclassification of foreign currency translatioedes included in net income 1 11 —
Noncredit other-than-temporary impairment lossessrbsequent changes in fair value relat
to certain available-for-sale debt securities,afehcome taxes of $1, $0 and $1, respectively Q) Q) 4
Reclassification of net other-than-temporary losseavailable-for-sale securities included in
net income, net of income taxes of $55, $26 and &Zpectively 101 47 47
Net unrealized gains on other available-for-sateigges, net of income taxes of $140, $11 a
$350, respectively 25¢ 20 64C
Reclassification of net realized gains on availdbtesale securities included in net income, net
of income taxes of $252, $102 and $96, respectively (462) (186 a75)
Net unrealized gains on derivative instruments pfi@icome taxes of $4, $13 and $7,
respectively 8 24 12
Reclassification of net realized (gains) losseslenivative instruments, net of income taxes of
$14, $5 and $3, respectively (26) 9 6
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (119 (119 SilE
Total comprehensive income 7,84k 6,731 6,57¢
Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrollinigriests 3 9 46
Comprehensive income attributable to Qualcomm $ 7,846 § 6,74C $ 6,62(

See accompanying notes.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions)



Year Ended

September 28, September 29, September 30,
2014 2013 2012

Operating Activities:
Net income $ 7,96¢ $ 6,84t $ 6,05¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashkigeal by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,15( 1,01% 897
Gain on sale of discontinued operations (665) — —
Gain on sale of wireless spectrum — — (1,179
Long-lived asset and goodwill impairment charges 642 192 84
Income tax provision in excess of income tax paysien 29¢ 26€ 39t
Non-cash portion of share-based compensation egpens 1,05¢ 1,10¢ 1,03¢
Incremental tax benefit from share-based compensati (280) (231) (16¢)
Net realized gains on marketable securities anérativestments (826¢) (369 (369
Impairment losses on marketable securities and aikiestments 18C 85 83
Other items, net ()] 19 (179
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (281) (680) (45€)
Inventories (15%) (300 (252
Other assets 10¢ (209 (240
Trade accounts payable 61¢ 307 371
Payroll, benefits and other liabilities (617) 752 (341)
Unearned revenues (292 15 258
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,881 8,77¢ 5,99¢
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (1,185 (1,049 (1,289
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (13,587 (13,95) (15,51
Proceeds from sales and maturities of availablesébe securities 13,587 13,49¢ 9,85¢
Purchases of trading securities (3,075 (3,319 (4,009
Proceeds from sales and maturities of trading fésir 2,82¢ 3,367 3,06(
Purchases of other marketable securities (220) — —
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operationsofnesish sold 78¢€ — —
Proceeds from sale of wireless spectrum — — 1,92t
Acquisitions and other investments, net of cashluised (882%) (192 (839%)
Other items, net 10€ 64 (83
Net cash used by investing activities (1,639 (1,57¢) (6,877
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 1,43¢ 1,52¢ 1,71<
Incremental tax benefit from share-based compensati 28C 231 16¢€
Repurchases and retirements of common stock (4,549 (4,610 (1,319
Dividends paid (2,58¢) (2,055 (1,589
Borrowings under loans and debentures — 534 71C
Repayments of loans and debentures — (439 (597)
Other items, net (64) (32) 13¢
Net cash used by financing activities (5,480 (4,84%) (757)
Changes in cash and cash equivalents held for sale — (15 —
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (©)] (5) (29
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivakent 1,76 2,33t (1,655
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,14z 3,807 5,462
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 7,900 $ 6,14 $ 3,807

See accompanying notes.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In millions)

Accumulated

Common Other Total Qualcomm Total

Stock Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Stockholders’ Noncontrolling Stockholders’

Shares Capital Earnings Income Equity Interests Equity
Balance at September 25, 2011 168 $ 10,39« $ 16,20¢ $ 3B % 26,95. $ 21 $ 26,97:
Total comprehensive income (1) — — 6,10¢ 511 6,62( (46) 6,57¢
Common stock issued under employee benefit
plans and the related tax benefits, net of shares
withheld for tax 48 1,77 — — 1,77z — 1,772
Repurchases and retirements of common stock (24) (1,319 — — (1,319 — (1,319
Share-based compensation — 1,06z — — 1,062 — 1,062
Dividends — — (1,619 — (1,619 — (1,617
Issuance of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling
interests — 44 — 2 4€ 40 86
Other — 3) — — 3) 7 4
Balance at September 30, 2012 1,70¢ 11,95¢ 20,70: 86€ 33,52¢ 22 33,54¢
Total comprehensive income — — 6,85: (113) 6,74( 9 6,731
Common stock issued under employee benefit
plans and the related tax benefits, net of shares
withheld for tax 51 1,38¢ — — 1,38¢ — 1,38¢
Repurchases and retirements of common stock (72) (4,610 — — (4,610 — (4,610
Share-based compensation — 1,142 — — 1,14 — 1,142
Dividends — — (2,099 — (2,099 — (2,099
Issuance of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling
interests — 2 — — 2 9 11
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries — — — — — (29) (23)
Other — 1) — — 2) — (@)
Balance at September 29, 2013 1,68t 9,87 25,46 75¢ 36,08t () 36,08°
Total comprehensive income (1) — — 7,96 (119 7,84¢ (©)] 7,84t

Common stock issued under employee benefit
plans and the related tax benefits, net of shares

withheld for tax 44 1,30¢ — — 1,30¢ — 1,30¢
Repurchases and retirements of common stock (6C) (4,54¢) — — (4,54¢) — (4,54¢)
Share-based compensation — 1,101 — — 1,101 — 1,101
Dividends = — (2,629 — (2,629 = (2,629
Other — 1 — — 1 1 2
Balance at September 28, 2014 166¢ $ 7,73¢ $ 30,79¢ $ 634 $ 39,16¢ $ 3 $ 39,16¢

(1) Income (loss) from discontinued operations, néhodbme taxes, (Note 11) was attributable to Qualnc

See accompanying notes.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. The Company and Its Significant AccountingPolicies

The CompanyQUALCOMM Incorporated, a Delaware corporation, d@sdubsidiaries (collectively the Company or Qoaim),
develop, design, manufacture, have manufacturdts drehalf and market digital communications prdadwand services. The Company is a
leading developer and supplier of integrated ctecand system software based on CDMA (Code Divislaitiple Access), OFDMA
(Orthogonal Frequency Division Multiple Access) aiber technologies for use in voice and data conications, networking, application
processing, multimedia and global positioning sysproducts to device and infrastructure manufacsufehe Company grants licenses to use
portions of its intellectual property portfolio, wh includes certain patent rights essential td@naseful in the manufacture and sale of certai
wireless products, and receives fixed license fpagable in one or more installments) as well agoorg royalties based on sales by licensees
of wireless telecommunications equipment produatsiiporating its patented technologies. The Compaayides software services for
content and push-to-talk enablement across a vddety of platforms and devices for the wirelesduistry and sells products designed for the
implementation of small cells. The Company also esastrategic investments to support the global talopf its technologies and services.

Principles of ConsolidationThe Company’s consolidated financial statementisidecthe assets, liabilities and operating resflts
majority-owned subsidiaries. In addition, the Compaonsolidates its investment in an immateriad laan majority-owned variable interest
entity as the Company is the primary beneficiatye Dwnership of the other interest holders of clidated subsidiaries and the variable
interest entity is presented separately in the @laieted balance sheets and statements of opesa#dirsignificant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Financial Statement PreparationThe preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to makeastmnand assumptions that affect the reported aimiand the disclosure of contingent
amounts in the Company’s consolidated financidgkstents and the accompanying notes. Examples @dahgany’s significant accounting
estimates that may involve a higher degree of justgrand complexity than others include: the vatratind assessment of the recoverabilir
goodwill, other indefinite-lived assets and longelil assets; the valuation of marketable secuatielsthe determination of other-thtemporan
impairments; the calculation of tax liabilitiescinding the recognition and measurement of unaetéad positions, and the determination that
the operating earnings of certain non-United Stsitdsidiaries are indefinitely reinvested outsite Wnited States; and the recognition and
measurement of loss contingencies related to [@gakedings. Actual results could differ from theséimates. Certain prior year amounts |
been reclassified to conform to the current yeas@ntation.

Fiscal Year.The Company operates and reports using a 52-53 fiszel year ending on the last Sunday in Septemiier fiscal years
ended September 28, 2014 and September 29, 20L8eéadc52 weeks . The fiscal year ended Septembh&@@ included 53 weeks .

Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid investmenith original maturities of 90 days or less todash equivalents.
Cash equivalents are comprised of money marketfurattificates of deposit, commercial paper, gorent agencies’ securities, certain bank
time deposits and repurchase agreements fullytecdlized by government agencies’ securities. Treying amounts approximate fair value
due to the short maturities of these instruments.

Marketable SecuritiesMarketable securities include trading securitiegjlable-for-sale securities and securities foraktthe Company
has elected the fair value option. The classificatif marketable securities within these categdsieetermined at the time of purchase and
reevaluated at each balance sheet date. The Comfzesifies portfolios of debt securities thatiméilderivative instruments to acquire or
reduce foreign exchange and/or equity, prepaymmahteedit risk as trading. The Company classifieskatable securities as current or
noncurrent based on the nature of the securitidgtair availability for use in current operatioMarketable securities are stated at fair value.
The net unrealized gains or losses on availablsdte securities are recorded as a component afradated other comprehensive income, ne
of income taxes. The unrealized gains or lossdsanling securities and securities for which the @any has elected the fair value option are
recognized in net investment income. The realizidgyand losses on marketable securities are deemsing the specific identification
method.

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesskbkesfor-sale securities in an unrealized lossition to determine whether the
unrealized loss is other than temporary. The Compansiders factors including: the significancelef decline in value as compared to the
cost basis; underlying factors contributing to alithe in the prices of securities in a single as&®ts; how long the market value of the securit
has been less than its cost basis; the securéldive performance versus its peers, sector @t aksss; expected market volatility; the market
and economy in general; analyst recommendationpaoe targets; views of external investment marggews or financial information that
has been released specific to the investee; anoutih@ok for the overall industry in which the irstee operates.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

If a debt security’s market value is below amodizest and the Company either intends to sell ¢earity or it is more likely than not that
the Company will be required to sell the securigjooe its anticipated recovery, the Company recardsther-than-temporary impairment
charge to net investment income for the entire arhofithe impairment. For the remaining debt sdai@g; if an other-than-temporary
impairment exists, the Company separates the dblaertemporary impairment into the portion of thed related to credit factors, or the credit
loss portion, and the portion of the loss thatasmelated to credit factors, or the noncredit lpsgion. The credit loss portion is the difference
between the amortized cost of the security andCttrapany’s best estimate of the present value ofdisk flows expected to be collected from
the debt security. The noncredit loss portion esrsidual amount of the other-th@mporary impairment. The credit loss portion isoreled a
a charge to net investment income, and the nortdoesdi portion is recorded as a component of cbbeamulated comprehensive income, net
of income taxes.

When calculating the present value of expected ftagls to determine the credit loss portion of ttker-than-temporary impairment, the
Company estimates the amount and timing of projectesh flows, the probability of default and theitig and amount of recoveries on a
security-by-security basis. These calculationsingats primarily based on observable market date) s credit default swap spreads,
historical default and recovery statistics, rataggncy data, credit ratings and other data releeagmalyzing the collectibility of the security.
The amortized cost basis of a debt security isstélgfor any credit loss portion of the impairmetorded to net investment income. The
difference between the new cost basis and casts fioypected to be collected is accreted to net imarst income over the remaining expected
life of the security.

Securities that are accounted for as equity seesiiiiclude investments in common stock, certafigsred stock, equity funds and debt
funds. For equity securities, the Company consitterdoss relative to the expected volatility ane kikelihood of recovery over a reasonable
period of time. If events and circumstances indi¢hat a decline in the value of an equity security occurred and is other than temporary, th
Company records a charge to net investment incominé difference between fair value and costatflance sheet date. Additionally, if the
Company has either the intent to sell the equityisty or does not have both the intent and thétald hold the equity security until its
anticipated recovery, the Company records a charget investment income for the difference betwiaémnvalue and cost at the balance shee
date.

Derivatives.The Company’s primary objective for holding derivatinstruments is to manage foreign exchangefaskertain foreign
currency revenue and operating expenditure traiosesctTo a lesser extent, the Company also holdgatie instruments in its investment
portfolios to manage risk by acquiring or reduciageign exchange risk, interest rate risk and/aritggprepayment and credit risk. The
Company also uses derivative instruments as pats efock repurchase program. Derivative instruimiane recorded at fair value and includec
in other current assets, noncurrent assets, oticened liabilities or other noncurrent liabilitibased on their maturity dates. Counterparties to
the Company’s derivative instruments are all majstitutions.

Foreign Currency Hedge§:he Company manages its exposure to foreign exeharagket risks, when deemed appropriate, through th
use of derivative instruments, including foreigmrency forward and option contracts with finandalinterparties. These derivative
instruments mature between three and six monthsas@ad losses arising from the effective portibsuxh contracts that are designated as
cash flow hedging instruments are recorded as gonent of accumulated other comprehensive incongaias and losses on derivative
instruments, net of income taxes. The hedging gaiaslosses in accumulated other comprehensivena@re subsequently reclassified to
revenues or costs and expenses, as applicable oohsolidated statements of operations in the ggriod in which the underlying
transactions affect the Compagyarnings. Gains and losses arising from thedntiie portion of such contracts are recorded timestmen
income as gains and losses on derivative instrisn&hte cash flows associated with derivative imsgnts designated as cash flow or net
investment hedging instruments are classified ak #iaws from operating activities in the consolethstatements of cash flows, which is the
same category as the hedged transaction. The loaghdssociated with the ineffective portion oftsderivative instruments are classified as
cash flows from investing activities in the condatied statements of cash flows.

The aggregate fair value of the Company’s foreigmency option and forward contracts used to hédgsgn currency risk recorded in
total assets and in total liabilities was negligibt September 28, 2014 . At September 29, 2018fatr value recorded in total assets and in
total liabilities was $38 million and $9 milliorrespectively. All such instruments were designa®dash flow hedges.

Investment Portfolio Derivative§the Company also utilizes currency forwards, fudumptions and swaps that are not designated as
hedging instruments to acquire or reduce foreigrtharge, interest rate and/or equity, prepaymenteadit risks in its marketable securities
investment portfolios. The Company primarily useshsderivative instruments for risk management, @otdspeculative, purposes. These
derivative instruments mature over various perigol$o 3 years . Gains and losses arising from aairgthe fair values of such derivative
instruments are recorded in net investment incosrngais and losses on derivative instruments. @bk flows associated with such derivative
instruments are classified as cash flows from
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

investing activities in the consolidated statemefitsash flows. At September 28, 2014 and Septe2®e2013 , the fair values of these
derivative instruments recorded in total assetsiandtal liabilities were negligible.

Gross Notional Amount3.he gross notional amounts of the Comparfgreign currency and investment portfolio deiiwed by instrumer
type were as follows (in millions):

September 28, September 29,

2014 2013
Futures $ 26C $ 10€
Forwards 21C 544
Options 122 60¢
Swaps 5 18
$ 597 $ 1,277

The gross notional amounts by currency were asvall(in millions):

September 28, September 29,

2014 2013

United States dollar $ 266 $ 10€
Korean won 121 —
British pound sterling 97 46
Euro 43 161
Japanese yen 19 617
Canadian dollar 1C 62
Indian rupee 3 20t
Other 38 78

$ 597 $ 1,277

Stock Repurchase Programm connection with the Company’s stock repurchasgam, the Company may sell put options that megjtii
to repurchase shares of its common stock at fixegg These put options subject the Company tdyeprice risk. Changes in the fair value
these put options are recorded in net investmeoinie as gains and losses on derivative instruméhéscash flows associated with the put
options are classified as cash flows from inveséiativities in the consolidated statements of dhsiis. There were no put options outstanding
at September 28, 2014 and September 29, 2013 .

Fair Value MeasurementsFair value is defined as the exchange price thaldvoe received for an asset or paid to transfiabdity (an
exit price) in the principal or most advantageowsksat for the asset or liability in an orderly tsastion between market participants as of the
measurement date. Applicable accounting guidanmeéiges an established hierarchy for inputs usedeasuring fair value that maximizes the
use of observable inputs and minimizes the useobservable inputs by requiring that the most olzd®e inputs be used when available.
Observable inputs are inputs that market parti¢cgpamuld use in valuing the asset or liability amd developed based on market data obtaine
from sources independent of the Company. Unobskrmaputs are inputs that reflect the Company’siagstions about the factors that market
participants would use in valuing the asset orilitgb There are three levels of inputs that mayulsed to measure fair value:

* Level 1 includes financial instruments for whichoted market prices for identical instruments arailable in active marke:

* Level 2 includes financial instruments for whittere are inputs other than quoted prices inclwdédn Level 1 that are observable
for the instrument.

* Level 3includes financial instruments for whielir value is derived from valuation techniquesvinich one or more significant inputs
are unobservable, including the Company’s own aptioms.

Assets and liabilities are classified based orldhest level of input that is significant to therfaalue measurements. The Company
reviews the fair value hierarchy classificationabquarterly basis. Changes in the observabilityatdiation inputs may result in a
reclassification of levels for certain securitieishin the fair value hierarchy.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securit&th the exception of auction rate securities, @menpany obtains pricing information from
guoted market prices, pricing vendors or quotesifovokers/dealers. The Company conducts revievts pfimary pricing vendors to
determine whether the inputs used in the vendaitsng processes are deemed to be observable. alieafue for interest-bearing securities
includes accrued interest.

The fair value of U.S. Treasury securities and gowveent-related securities, corporate bonds andsrastd common and preferred stock is
generally determined using standard observablegsnmcluding reported trades, quoted market prioesdrix pricing, benchmark yields,
broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sidelatsaand/or benchmark securities.

The fair value of debt and equity funds is repodegublished net asset values. The Company assthesdaily frequency and size of
transactions at published net asset values an#duhds’ underlying holdings to determine whetiaérvalue is based on observable or
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of highly rated mortgage- and adsatked securities is derived from the use of mattriging (prices for similar securities)
or, in some cases, cash flow pricing models witbeplable inputs, such as contractual terms, metaeriedit rating and/or securitization
structure to determine the timing and amount afreicash flows. Certain mortgage- and asset-basd@atities, principally those rated below
AAA, may require the use of significant unobsereaiplputs to estimate fair value, such as defakdtiliood, recovery rates and prepayment
speed.

The fair value of auction rate securities is estaddy the Company using a discounted cash flowainth@t incorporates transaction
details, such as contractual terms, maturity améhti and amount of future cash flows, as well asiagptions related to liquidity, default
likelihood and recovery, the future state of thetewn rate market and credit valuation adjustmeftmarket participants. Though most of the
securities held by the Company are pools of stulibams guaranteed by the U.S. government, prepaysperds and illiquidity discounts are
considered significant unobservable inputs. Thesktianal inputs are generally unobservable, ardetfore, auction rate securities are inclt
in Level 3.

Derivative InstrumentsDerivative instruments that are traded on an exgbame valued using quoted market prices and ahadied in
Level 1. Derivative instruments that are not tradadan exchange are valued using conventional ledilcns/models that are primarily based
observable inputs, such as foreign currency exahaaigs, the Company’s stock price, volatilitied arterest rates, and therefore, such
derivative instruments are included in Level 2.

Other Investments and Other Liabilitie®ther investments and other liabilities included @vel 1 are comprised of the Company’s
deferred compensation plan liability and relatesbés which consist of mutual funds classifiedradihg securities, and are included in other
assets.

Allowances for Doubtful AccountsThe Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®tor estimated losses resulting from the
inability of the Company’s customers to make reegiipayments. The Company considers the followintpfa when determining if collection
of required payments is reasonably assured: custoredit-worthiness, past transaction history with customer, current economic industry
trends, changes in customer payment terms anddyvadk-worthiness for letters of credit. If the Coamy has no previous experience with the
customer, the Company may request financial inféionaincluding financial statements or other doemts to determine that the customer ha
the means of making payment. The Company may diororeports from various credit organizationslébermine that the customer has a
history of paying its creditors. If these factorsrbt indicate collection is reasonably assuredemae is deferred as a reduction to accounts
receivable until collection becomes reasonablyra@skswhich is generally upon receipt of cash. & fimancial condition of the Company’s
customers was to deteriorate, adversely affectiag ability to make payments, additional allowasesuld be required.

Inventories.Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or reafkeplacement cost, not to exceed net realizzdilee) using the first-in,
first-out method. Recoverability of inventoriesaissessed based on review of committed purchasesdrdm customers, as well as purchase
commitment projections provided by customers, anathgr things.

Property, Plant and Equipmen®roperty, plant and equipment are recorded atarastepreciated or amortized using the straiglet-lin
method over their estimated useful lives. Uponrdieement or disposition of property, plant andipment, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation or amortization are removed, and a galoss is recorded. Buildings and building imgnments on owned land are depreciated
over 30 years and 15 years, respectively. Leddémprovements and buildings on leased land arerired over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives, not to exceed 15 and 3Bsyeespectively, or the remaining term of thatesl lease. Other property, plant and
equipment have useful lives ranging from 2 to 25&rg. Leased property meeting certain capital ledsszia is capitalized, and the net present
value of the related lease payments is recordediability. Amortization of assets under capitdses is recorded using the straight-line
method over the shorter of the estimated usefaklior the lease terms. Maintenance, repairs anorménewals or betterments are charged to
expense as incurred. Interest expense relatee toradband wireless access (BWA) spectrum antedetanstruction of the network
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

infrastructure assets in India by the Company’sifer BWA subsidiaries was capitalized beginning iay\2012 through the third quarter of
fiscal 2013 when the BWA subsidiaries were decadat#dd (Note 10). Interest capitalized by the farB&/A subsidiaries totaled $65 million
in fiscal 2013 .

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset&oodwill represents the excess of purchase priee tine value assigned to the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets of businesses aeduicquired intangible assets other than goodwdlamortized over their useful lives unless
the lives are determined to be indefinite. Forngible assets purchased in a business combin#tiestimated fair values of the assets
received are used to establish their recorded sakmr intangible assets acquired in a non-monetarflange, the estimated fair values of the
assets transferred (or the estimated fair valuéiseossets received, if more clearly evidentuaesl to establish their recorded values, unless
the values of neither the assets received norgbetaitransferred are determinable within reaseriabits, in which case the assets receivec
measured based on the carrying values of the asaptderred. Valuation techniques consistent #ithmarket approach, income approach
and/or cost approach are used to measure fair.value

Weighted-average amortization periods for finiteetl intangible assets, by class, were as followgdars):

September 28, September 29,

2014 2013
Wireless spectrum 14 14
Marketing-related 9 9
Technology-based 11 11
Customer-related 6 2
Total finite-lived intangible assets 11 11

Impairment of Goodwill, Other Indefinite-Lived As$g and Long-Lived Asset§&oodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assare
tested annually for impairment in the fourth fisqahrter and in interim periods if certain everdsu indicating that the carrying amounts may
be impaired. If a qualitative assessment is usedlam Company determines that the fair value @fp@rting unit or indefinite-lived intangible
asset is more likely than not (i.e., a likelihoddrmre than 50%) less than its carrying amounyantjtative impairment test will be performed.
If goodwill is quantitatively assessed for impaimhea twostep approach is applied. First, the Company coespidue estimated fair value of
reporting unit in which the goodwill resides to éarrying value. The second step, if necessarysurea the amount of impairment, if any, by
comparing the implied fair value of goodwill to tarrying value. Other indefinite-lived intangilzlesets are quantitatively assessed for
impairment, if necessary, by comparing their estéddair values to their carrying values. If thergang value exceeds the fair value, the
difference is recorded as an impairment.

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant andoegeit and intangible assets subject to amortizagimnreviewed for impairment when
there is evidence that events or changes in ciramoss indicate that the carrying amount of antassgsset group may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used isored by comparing the carrying amount of an amsasset group to estimated undiscountec
future cash flows expected to be generated bysbketar asset group. If the carrying amount ofsseteor asset group exceeds its estimated
future cash flows, an impairment charge is recagghior the amount by which the carrying amounthefasset or asset group exceeds the
estimated fair value of the asset or asset groapgilived assets to be disposed of by sale aretexpat the lower of their carrying amounts or
their estimated fair values less costs to sellamechot depreciated.

Revenue RecognitionThe Company derives revenues principally from saféstegrated circuit products, licensing of isdllectual
property and sales of software hosting, softwareld@ment and other services. The timing of revargegnition and the amount of revenue
actually recognized in each case depends uporietyaf factors, including the specific terms otkarrangement and the nature of the
Company’s deliverables and obligations.

Revenues from sales of the Company’s productsea@gnized at the time of shipment, or when titld sk of loss pass to the customer
and other criteria for revenue recognition are nfidédter. Revenues from providing services ar@getzed when earned. Revenues from
providing services were less than 10% of total neres for all periods presented.

The Company licenses or otherwise provides rightsse portions of its intellectual property poridolwhich includes certain patent rights
essential to and/or useful in the manufacture atelaf certain wireless products. Licensees tyhiqady a fixed license fee in one or more
installments and royalties based on their salgsaducts incorporating or using the Company’s lgazhintellectual property. License fees are
recognized over the estimated period of benefiheflicense to the licensee, typically 5 to 15 gearhe Company earns royalties on such
licensed products sold worldwide by its licensdaba
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time that the licensees’ sales occur. The Compdingasees, however, do not report and pay royattieed for sales in any given quarter until
after the conclusion of that quarter. The Compatpgnizes royalty revenues based on royalties tegbry licensees during the quarter and
when other revenue recognition criteria are met.

The Company records reductions to revenues foomestincentive arrangements, including volume-egland other pricing rebates and
cost reimbursements for marketing and other a@#involving certain of the Company’s products échnologies. The Company recognizes
the maximum potential liability at the later of thate at which the Company records the relatedhteasor the date at which the Company
offers the incentive or, if payment is contingemtien the contingency is resolved. In certain areamgnts, the liabilities are based on custome
forecasts. The Company reverses accruals for umethincentive amounts to revenues when the uncthaneunts are no longer subject to
payment.

Unearned revenues consist primarily of license feemtellectual property with continuing perforne obligations.

Concentrations A significant portion of the Company’s revenuesascentrated with a small number of customers/tiees of the
Company s QCT and QTL segments. Revenues related to thipi® of two companies comprised 28% and 21% af tainsolidated
revenues in fiscal 2014 , compared to 24% and I9fis¢al 2013 and 20% and 18% in fiscal 2012 . A&ggtte accounts receivable from two
customers/licensees comprised 44% and 43% of guusnints receivable at September 28, 2014 andi8kete29, 2013 , respectively.

The Company relies on sole- or limited-source seppfor some products, particularly products ie @CT segment, subjecting the
Company to possible shortages of raw materialsanufacturing capacity. While the Company has eistadadl alternate suppliers for certain
technologies that the Company considers critibal ldss of a supplier or the inability of a suppt@®meet performance or quality specificati
or delivery schedules could harm the Company’stglid meet its delivery obligations and/or negalwimpact the Company’s revenues,
business operations and ability to compete forruhusiness.

Shipping and Handling CostsCosts incurred for shipping and handling are inetlich cost of equipment and services revenues. Aitsou
billed to a customer for shipping and handlingr@morted as revenues.

Share-Based CompensatioBhare-based compensation expense for equity-dtabsifvards, principally related to restricted staoks
(RSUs), is measured at the grant date, or at theisiton date for awards assumed in business auatibns, based on the estimated fair value
of the award and is recognized over the employegjgisite service period. Share-based compensexipense is adjusted to exclude amounts
related to share-based awards that are expectedftofeited.

The fair values of RSUs are estimated based ofathearket values of the underlying stock on thaged of grant or dates the RSUs are
assumed. If RSUs do not have the right to partieijadividends, the fair values are discountedheydividend yield. The weighted-average
estimated fair values of employee RSUs grantechddiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were $72.81 , $64r2l1$58.5per share, respectively. F
the majority of RSUs, shares are issued on thengedaites net of the amount of shares neededitfysstiatutory tax withholding requirements
to be paid by the Company on behalf of the emplsyas a result, the actual number of shares issilete fewer than the number of RSUs
outstanding. The annual pre-vest forfeiture rateRiUs granted in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 wgtimated to be approximately 3%ased ol
historical experience.

Total share-based compensation expense, relagdbddabthe Company’s share-based awards, was ceepas follows (in millions):

2014 2013 2012

Cost of equipment and services revenues $ 49 3 71 % 75
Research and development 672 643 54¢
Selling, general and administrative 33¢ 391 414
Continuing operations 1,05¢ 1,10¢ 1,03t
Related income tax benefit (209) (217) (22%)
Continuing operations, net of income taxes 85€ 88¢ 81cC
Discontinued operations — — 1
Related income tax benefit — — —
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes — — 1
$ 85€ $ 88t % 811
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The Company recorded $249 million , $242 milliord &270 million in share-based compensation expdasag fiscal 2014 , 2013 and
2012 , respectively, related to share-based awgeatged during those periods. The remaining shasedcompensation expense was primaril
related to share-based awards granted in earliedseand share-based awards assumed. In adddioiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , $280
million , $231 million and $168 million , respeatly, were reclassified to reduce net cash providedperating activities with an offset to net
cash used by financing activities in the consoédaitatements of cash flows to reflect the incraadeax benefits from stock options exercised
and restricted stock units and other share-baseddavthat vested in those periods. The amountropensation cost capitalized related to
share-based awards was negligible for all periodsgnted.

Legal ProceedingsThe Company is currently involved in certain legadceedings. The Company records its best estiofatdoss relate
to pending legal proceedings when the loss is densd probable and the amount can be reasonabtyaésti. Where a range of loss can be
reasonably estimated with no best estimate inahge, the Company records the minimum estimateditia As additional information
becomes available, the Company assesses the pbtetftility related to pending legal proceedingsl aevises its estimates. The Company’s
legal costs associated with defending itself acengded to expense as incurred.

Foreign Currency.Certain foreign subsidiaries use a local currersctha functional currency. Resulting translatiomgar losses are
recognized as a component of accumulated other mapsive income.

Transaction gains or losses related to balancesntieated in a currency other than the functionatency are recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations. Net foreigrency transaction losses included in the Comigaronsolidated statements of operations
were negligible for all years presented.

Income TaxesThe asset and liability approach is used to reamgdeferred tax assets and liabilities for the etgubfuture tax
consequences of temporary differences betweenratingimg amounts and the tax bases of assets apilitiés. Tax law and rate changes are
reflected in income in the period such change&naeted. The Company records a valuation allowsmoeduce deferred tax assets to the
amount that is more likely than not to be realiZBte Company includes interest and penalties :katéncome taxes, including unrecognized
tax benefits, within income tax expense.

The Company’s income tax returns are based onlailmos and assumptions that are subject to exaiimby the Internal Revenue
Service and other tax authorities. In addition,¢akulation of the Company’s tax liabilities invek dealing with uncertainties in the
application of complex tax regulations. The Compeagognizes liabilities for uncertain tax positidiesed on a twstep process. The first st
is to evaluate the tax position for recognitiond@termining if the weight of available evidenceigades that it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained on audit, including fesion of related appeals or litigation processeany. The second step is to measure the tax
benefit as the largest amount that is more than B@8ty of being realized upon settlement. While Bompany believes it has appropriate
support for the positions taken on its tax retuths,Company regularly assesses the potential masof examinations by tax authorities in
determining the adequacy of its provision for ineotaxes. The Company continually assesses théhlicel and amount of potential
adjustments and adjusts the income tax provisimome taxes payable and deferred taxes in thedgoeriwhich the facts that give rise to a
revision become known.

The Company recognizes windfall tax benefits agdediwith share-based awards directly to stockinsléguity when realized. A
windfall tax benefit occurs when the actual taxdfénmealized by the Company upon an employee’padigion of a share-based award exceed
the deferred tax asset, if any, associated withatierd that the Company had recorded. When asgesbiether a tax benefit relating to share-
based compensation has been realized, the Complmyd the tax law ordering method, under whichrent year share-based compensation
deductions are assumed to be utilized before retatipg loss carryforwards and other tax attributes

Earnings Per Common SharéBasic earnings per common share are computed Injirtivnet income attributable to Qualcomm by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstguadiring the reporting period. Diluted earnings g@mmon share are computed by
dividing net income attributable to Qualcomm by tloenbination of dilutive common share equivalentsnprised of shares issuable under the
Company’s share-based compensation plans and shasest to written put options, if any, and thégied-average number of common
shares outstanding during the reporting perioduti¥® common share equivalents include the dilugiffect of in-the-money share equivalents,
which are calculated based on the average share fori each period using the treasury stock metbloder the treasury stock method, the
exercise price of an award, if any, the amountonfigensation cost for future service that the Compeas not yet recognized, if any, and the
estimated tax benefits that would be recorded id-pacapital when an award is settled, if any, assumed to be used to repurchase shares il
the current period. The dilutive common share egjeivts, calculated using the treasury stock mettoodiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were
30,655,000 , 38,670,000 and 40,978,000 , respégtive
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Shares of common stock equivalents outstandingatbeg not included in the computation of dilutednéags per common share because
the effect would be anti-dilutive or certain perfance conditions were not satisfied at the ent@period were 846,000 , 507,000 and
3,537,000 during fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respg. Put options outstanding during fiscal 20¢@re not included in the earnings per
common share computation because the put opticestise prices were less than the average mariket girthe common stock while they
were outstanding, and therefore, the effect ont&ll@arnings per common share would be anti-déutiv

Other Comprehensive Incom&ther comprehensive income is defined as the chiangguity of a business enterprise during a period
from transactions and other events and circumssainoen non-owner sources, other than net incomdraridding foreign currency translation
adjustments and unrealized gains and losses oretabtk securities and derivative instruments. Chaingthe components of accumulated
other comprehensive income, net of income taxetharCompany’s stockholders’ equity during thedisgear ended September 28, 2014 were
as follows (in millions):

Noncredit Other-
than-Temporary Net
Impairment Losses Unrealized
and Subsequent Gain on Total
Foreign Changes in Fair Other Net Unrealized Accumulated
Currency Value for Certain Auvailable-for- Gain (Loss) on Other
Translation Available-for-Sale Sale Derivative Comprehensive
Adjustment Debt Securities Securities Instruments Income
Balance at September 29, 2013 $ (115 $ 25 $ 82E $ 18 $ 758
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 1 Q) 25¢ 8 267
Reclassifications from accumulated othe
comprehensive income (loss) 1 (8 — @ (361) (a) (26) (b) (386)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 2 (1) (202 (18) (119
Balance at September 28, 2014 $ (119) $ 24 $ 728 $ — $ 634

(a) Reclassifications from accumulated other comprekieriscome (loss) of $360 million for the fisgabar endedseptember 28, 2014 were recorded
in investment income, net (Note 3).

(b) Reclassifications from accumulated other cahpnsive income (loss) of $26 million for the fispaar ended September 28, 2014 were recorded in
revenues, cost of equipment and services revereg=sarch and development expenses and sellingiaj@me administrative expenses.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsmadssued Accounting Standards Update (A
No. 20109, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” whicitlines a comprehensive revenue recognition madelsupersedes most
current revenue recognition guidance. The new st@higequires a company to recognize revenue uposfer of goods or services to a
customer at an amount that reflects the expectasideration to be received in exchange for thosglgor services. ASU 2014-09 defines a
five-step approach for recognizing revenue which mayire@ company to use more judgment and make nsbireaes than under the curr:
guidance. This ASU will be effective for the Compatarting in the first quarter of fiscal 2018. Timew standard allows for two methods of
adoption: (a) full retrospective adoption, mearting standard is applied to all periods presenteth)anodified retrospective adoption,
meaning the cumulative effect of applying the néandard is recognized as an adjustment to thel 2848 opening retained earnings balance
The Company is in the process of determining ttegptdn method as well as the effects the adoptitifhave on its consolidated financial
statements.

Note 2. Composition of Certain Financial Statementtems

Accounts Receivable (in millions) September 28,  September 29,
2014 2013

Trade, net of allowances for doubtful accountsafid $2, respectively $ 2,362 $ 2,06¢

Long-term contracts 17 27

Other 33 49

$ 241 % 2,14
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Inventories (in millions) September 28,  September 29,
2014 2013

Raw materials $ 1 3 2

Work-in-process 65€ 631

Finished goods 801 66¢

$ 145¢ $ 1,30z

Property, Plant and Equipment (in millions) September 28,  September 29,
2014 2013

Land $ 22t % 212

Buildings and improvements 1,45¢ 1,73¢

Computer equipment and software 1,34¢ 1,42¢

Machinery and equipment 2,115 2,01:

Furniture and office equipment 8% 87

Leasehold improvements 247 21¢

Construction in progress 201 48C

5,68( 6,16¢

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,199 (3,179

$ 2,487 $ 2,99¢

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014 , as a teefidiscussions with potential buyers and consitlen of alternative uses for the separate
asset groups that comprise one of the QMT divisiamanufacturing facilities in Taiwan, the Compaegmréased its estimates of expected cas
flows from those assets and recorded an impairctearge of $444 million in other expenses. The Camgmancluded that a triggering event
had not occurred in the first quarter of fiscal 2@lat would have required impairment testing ferémaining QMT assets, including
goodwill, as QMT'’s licensing business plan did atlize this manufacturing facility. During the thiquarter of fiscal 2014 , the Company
updated QMT'’s licensing business plan and relaieztmal forecasts to reflect a further decreasxpected cash flows. The updated business
plan reflects an acceleration of the Company’s ptartransition from QMT’s current generation teglugy to the licensing of its next
generation IMOD (interferometric modulator) displaghnology and to focus on wearable devices. QMITcantinue to make and sell current
generation products for a period of time in suppditertain existing customer requirements. Assalteof this triggering event, the Company
assessed the recoverability of the QMT divisionisg-lived assets, performed a goodwill impairmest tf the QMT reporting unit and
recorded impairment charges of $64 million on propelant and equipment and $100 million on godiwespectively, in other expenses.
During fiscal 2013 and 2012, the Company recordgB3nillion and $54 million in impairment charges groperty, plant and equipment as a
result of updates to internal forecasts that réfléceductions in expected cash flows. At Septer@aBeR014 , the carrying values of the QMT
division’s goodwill and property, plant and equiptherere $35 million and $148 million , respectividlycluding $116 million in property,
plant and equipment that was classified as helddte and included in other assets.

Depreciation and amortization expense relateddpenty, plant and equipment for fiscal 2014 , 28hd8 2012 was $609 million , $515
million and $427 million , respectively. The grds®ok values of property under capital leases iregduid buildings and improvements were $1
million and $18 million at September 28, 2014 aegt®mber 29, 2013 , respectively. These capitakkearincipally related to base station
towers and buildings.

At September 28, 2014 and September 29, 2013dibgd and improvements and leasehold improvembatsaere leased to third parties
or held for lease to third parties were negligilflature minimum rental income on facilities leasedthers is expected to be negligible.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset3he Company allocates goodwill to its reportingtsiior annual impairment testing purposes.
Goodwill was allocable to reporting units includadhe Company’s reportable and nonreportable satgnas described in Note 8, as follows
(in millions):

F- 15




QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 28, September 29,

2014 2013
QCT $ 3461 $ 2,87¢
QTL 71z 70€
Nonreportable segments 30¢ 39t
$ 448t % 3,97¢

The increase in goodwill from September 29, 2013dptember 28, 2014 was the result of businesdsiitous (Note 9), partially offset
by impairments (Notes 2 and 12). Cumulative gooldwipairments were $260 million at September 28,20

The components of other intangible assets, net a®fellows (in millions):

September 28, 2014 September 29, 2013

Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Wireless spectrum $ 18 % 9 9 19 $ (8)
Marketing-related 78 47 76 (37
Technology-based 4,46( (1,956 3,96/ (1,519
Customer-related 8t (49) 87 (36)
$ 4,641 $ (2,06) $ 4,14¢ $ (1,599

All of these intangible assets are subject to aetion, other than acquired in-process researdidanelopment with carrying values of
$55 million and $54 million at September 28, 20hd September 29, 2013, respectively. Amortizatiquease related to these intangible
assets was $543 million , $499 million and $473iamlfor fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectivélynortization expense related to these
intangible assets and acquired in-process resaaitilevelopment, beginning upon the expected cdioplef the underlying projects, is
expected to be $521 million , $417 million , $30®lion , $265 million and $242 million for fiscal®5 to 2019 , respectively, and $833
million thereafter.

Other Current Liabilities (in millions) September 28,  September 29,
2014 2013

Customer incentives and other customer-relateditiab $ 1,777 $ 1,70¢

Other 46€ 61:

$ 2,24:  $ 2,31¢

Note 3. Investment Income

Investment income, net was comprised as followsnitions):

2014 2013 2012

Interest and dividend income $ 58¢ $ 697 $ 60¢
Interest expense (5) (23 (90)
Net realized gains on marketable securities 77C 317 34z
Net realized gains on other investments 56 52 27
Impairment losses on marketable securities (15€) (72 (72)
Impairment losses on other investments (24 (13 (12
Net gains on derivative instruments 5 — 84
Equity in net losses of investees (20 (6) (9)
Net gains on deconsolidation of subsidiaries 6 12 —

$ 1,22¢  $ 9%4 $ 88C

Net impairment losses on marketable securitiesa@ltn the noncredit portion of losses on debtséesi recognized in other
comprehensive income were negligible for all pesipdesented.
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Note 4. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision for icarihg operations were as follows (in millions):

2014 2013 2012
Current provision:
Federal $ 172 $ 324 % 14C
State 10 15 1
Foreign 1,11¢€ 1,06¢ 934
1,29¢ 1,407 1,07t
Deferred (benefit) provision:
Federal (30 32 20¢
State (20 6 (16)
Foreign (14 32 12
(54) (58) 204
$ 1,24¢  $ 1,34¢ $ 1,27¢

The foreign component of the income tax provisionsists primarily of foreign withholding taxes @yalty fees included in United Stat
earnings.

The components of income from continuing operatioef®re income taxes by United States and foraigadictions were as follows (in
millions):

2014 2013 2012
United States $ 3,21 % 3,79¢ $ 3,52¢
Foreign 5,56t 4,39¢ 3,037
$ 8,77¢ $ 8,19« $ 6,562

The following is a reconciliation of the expectedtatory federal income tax provision to the Compamctual income tax provision for
continuing operations (in millions):

2014 2013 2012
Expected income tax provision at federal statutagyrate $ 3,07z $ 2,86¢ $ 2,291
State income tax provision, net of federal benefit 24 2€ 24
Foreign income taxed at other than U.S. rates (1,750 (1,362 (1,045
Research and development tax credits (62) (195) (36)
Other (41 12 39
$ 1,24¢  $ 1,34¢ $ 1,27¢

The Company’s QCT segmerg non-United States headquarters is located inaPorg. The Company has obtained tax incentives in
Singapore that commenced in March 2012, which fieetéeve through March 2027, that result in a taemption for the first five years
provided that the Company meets specified employmed investment criteria. The Company’s Singapaxerate will increase in fiscal 2017
and again in fiscal 2027 as a result of expiratibthese incentives. Had the Company establishe@€1@n-United States headquarters in
Singapore without these tax incentives, the Comisangome tax expense would have been higher apddéted earnings per share attributabl
to Qualcomm as follows (in millions, except perrghamounts):

2014 2013 2012
Additional income tax expense $ 69C $ 756 $ 19z
Reduction to basic earnings per share $ 041 $ 0.4, % 0.11
Reduction to diluted earnings per share $ 04C $ 0.4: % 0.11
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The Company considers the operating earnings tdioanon-United States subsidiaries to be indedipiteinvested outside the United
States based on the Company’s plans for use amgstment outside the United States and the Coypaelief that its sources of cash and
liquidity in the United States will be sufficierd tneet future domestic cash needs. The Compangdiaecorded a deferred tax liability of
approximately $9.1 billion related to the Uniteci®s federal and state income taxes and foreidrueliding taxes on approximately $25.7
billion of undistributed earnings of certain nonitéd States subsidiaries indefinitely reinvestetsioke the United States. Should the Compan
decide to no longer indefinitely reinvest such @aga outside the United States, the Company woane to adjust the income tax provision in
the period management makes such determination.

The Company files income tax returns in the Unii¢akes federal jurisdiction and various state an€liin jurisdictions. The Company is
currently a participant in the Internal Revenuevi®er (IRS) Compliance Assurance Process, wherebyRB and the Company endeavor to
agree on the treatment of all tax issues priohéotax return being filed. The IRS completed itarenation of the Company’s tax return for
fiscal 2013 and issued a no change letter in Oct2d®4, resulting in no change to the income tawision. The Company is no longer subject
to United States federal income tax examinationyéaurs prior to fiscal 2014. The Company is suldieexamination by the California
Franchise Tax Board for fiscal years after 200& Tiompany is also subject to income taxes in dthéng jurisdictions in the United States
and around the world, many of which are open tceteaminations for periods after fiscal 2000. Thenpany does not expect the impact of
future state or foreign audits to be material.

The Company had deferred tax assets and deferdididities as follows (in millions):

September 28, September 29,

2014 2013
Unearned revenues $ 1,18¢ $ 1,30¢
Accrued liabilities and reserves 52¢ 30t
Share-based compensation 404 497
Unrealized losses on marketable securities 37C 29¢
Unused net operating losses 12C 91
Other 127 14¢
Total gross deferred tax assets 2,73¢ 2,64(
Valuation allowance (6C) (52)
Total net deferred tax assets 2,67¢ 2,58¢
Unrealized gains on marketable securities (484 (536)
Intangible assets (31%) (265)
Property, plant and equipment (109 (229
Other (31) (27)
Total deferred tax liabilities (939 (957)
Net deferred tax assets $ 1,748 % 1,632
Reported as:
Current deferred tax assets $ 577 % 572
Non-current deferred tax assets 1,17¢ 1,05¢
Non-current deferred tax assets held for sale (1) — 2
Non-current deferred tax liabilities (1) (6) 2
$ 1,748 $ 1,632

(1) Non-current deferred tax assets held for sale andcoorent deferred tax liabilities were included ther assets and other liabilities, respectivelyhim
consolidated balance sheets.

At September 28, 2014 , the Company had unuseddiedlet operating loss carryforwards of $137 millexpiring from 2021 through
2033, unused state net operating loss carryforsvair$1.3 billion expiring from 2015 through 203dnd unused foreign net operating loss
carryforwards of $42 million , which expire from 2Z®through 2024 . At September 28, 2014 , the Compad unused tax credits of $31
million in foreign jurisdictions, which begin to pixe in 2015 . The Company does not expect itsriddet operating loss carryforwards and its
state income tax credits to expire unused.
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The Company believes, more likely than not, thatilithave sufficient taxable income after dedun8aelated to share-based awards to
utilize the majority of its deferred tax assets.S&ptember 28, 2014 , the Company has providetlatian allowance on certain foreign
deferred tax assets, state net operating lossestatednet capital losses of $9 million , $50 milland $1 million , respectively. The valuation
allowances reflect the uncertainties surroundirgGompany’s ability to generate sufficient futuagable income in certain foreign and state
tax jurisdictions to utilize its net operating lessand the Company’s ability to generate sufficapital gains to utilize all capital losses.

A summary of the changes in the amount of unre@eghiax benefits for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 201®s (in millions):

2014 2013 2012
Beginning balance of unrecognized tax benefits $ 221 % 8€ % 96
Additions based on prior year tax positions 1 1 —
Reductions for prior year tax positions and lapsstatute of limitations (67) — (18)
Additions for current year tax positions 5 14t 10
Settlements with taxing authorities 73 (%)) )
Ending balance of unrecognized tax benefits $ 87 % 221§ 86

The Company does not expect any unrecognized tefiterecorded at September 28, 2@d.4desult in a significant cash payment in fis
2015 . Unrecognized tax benefits at September @B4 thcluded $85 milliofior tax positions that, if recognized, would impte effective ta:
rate. The unrecognized tax benefits differ fromahsount that would affect the Company’s effectae ftate primarily because the
unrecognized tax benefits were included on a dgrasss and did not reflect secondary impacts sutheafederal deduction for state taxes,
adjustments to deferred tax assets and the vatualiowance that might be required if the Compangsspositions are sustained. The decreas
in unrecognized tax benefits in fiscal 2014 wasnarily due to an agreement reached with the IRS8aomponents of the Compasyfiscal 201
tax return. The increase in unrecognized tax benififiscal 2013 was primarily due to tax posisaelated to transfer pricing. The decrease i
unrecognized tax benefits in fiscal 2012 was prilpaiue to settlement of the Company’s Califorraa examination for fiscal 2005 through
fiscal 2008, which was partially offset by an irse in unrecognized tax benefits generated inlf&xE2. The Company does not believe th
is reasonably possible that the total amounts ofaognized tax benefits at September 28, 2014swgtlificantly increase or decrease in fiscal
2015 . Interest expense related to uncertain takipos was negligible in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and20The amount of accrued interest and
penalties was negligible at September 28, 2014Sapdember 29, 2013 .

Cash amounts paid for income taxes, net of refuecksived, were $1.2 billion , $1.1 billion and $biBion for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and
2012 , respectively.

Note 5. Capital Stock

Preferred StockThe Company has 8,000,000 shares of preferred sittblorized for issuance in one or more series,par value of
$0.0001 per share. In conjunction with the distitru of preferred share purchase rights, 4,00090@0es of preferred stock are designated as
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, such shares are reserved for issuance upon exefdtse preferred share purchase rights. At
September 28, 2014 and September 29, 2013 , nessbbpreferred stock were outstanding.

Preferred Share Purchase Rights Agreemehhe Company has a Preferred Share Purchase Rignteient (Rights Agreement) to
protect stockholders’ interests in the event of@psed takeover of the Company. Under the origRights Agreement, adopted on
September 26, 1995, the Company declared a divideade preferred share purchase right (a Right¢éeh share of the Company’s commor
stock outstanding. Pursuant to the Rights Agreenasnamended and restated on December 7, 2006Régtnthentitles the registered holder to
purchase from the Company a one one-thousandtb sh&eries A Junior Participating Preferred St&kp001 par value per share, subject t
adjustment for subsequent stock splits, at a psechace of $180 . The Rights are exercisable brayperson or group (an Acquiring Person)
acquires beneficial ownership of 20% or more of@lenpany’s outstanding shares of common stock wtthpproval of the Board of
Directors. Upon exercise, holders, other than aquiing Person, will have the right, subject taniération, to receive the Company’s commor
stock or other securities, cash or other assetatnamarket value, as defined, equal to twice guakhase price. The Rights, which expire on
September 25, 2015 , are redeemable in whole,diubmpart, at the Company’s option prior to thadisuch Rights are triggered for a price of
$0.001 per Right.
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Stock Repurchase Progran®n March 4, 2014 , the Company announced a new sépeirchase program authorizing it to repurchase u
to $7.8 billion of the Company’s common stock. T$tisck repurchase program replaced the previoust$fion stock repurchase program
announced on September 11, 2013. The stock remagragram has no expiration date. Any shares cbpsed are retired, and the amount
paid in excess of par value is recorded to paichjpital. During fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , tlenPany repurchased and retired 60,253,00(
71,696,000 and 23,893,000 shares of common stesgectively, for $4.5 billion , $4.6 billion and.8illion , respectively, before
commissions. At September 28, 2014 , approxim&gIg billion remained authorized for repurchaseeauriie Company’s stock repurchase
program. Since September 28, 2014 , the Compamydkeased 8,595,000 shares of common stock for $688n .

During fiscal 2012, three put options that the Campsold on its own stock in connection with pstwck repurchase programs expired
unexercised, and the Company recognized gains@fi#ion in net investment income due to changethe fair values of the put options. No
put options were outstanding during fiscal 2014 20d3.

Dividends.Dividends charged to retained earnings in fiscdl4202013 and 2012 were as follows (in millions;ept per share data):

2014 2013 2012
Per Share Total Per Share Total Per Share Total
First quarter $ 0.35¢C $ 59¢ $ 0.25C $ 43§ 0.21t % 36€
Second quarter 0.35( 59¢ 0.25( 43¢ 0.21¢ 377
Third quarter 0.42( 71¢€ 0.35(C 61F 0.25( 42¢
Fourth quarter 0.42( 713 0.35(C 604 0.25( 43¢
$ 154C $ 2,62¢ §$ 1.20C $ 2,09 $ 0.93(C $ 1,612

On October 16, 2014 , the Company announced adieistend of $0.42 per share of common stock, payabl December 18, 2014 to
stockholders of record as of December 1, 2014 chvhiill be reflected in the consolidated finanatdtements in the first quarter of fiscal
2015 .

Note 6. Employee Benefit Plans

Employee Savings and Retirement Plarhe Company has a 401(k) plan that allows eligénloyees to contribute up to 100% of their
eligible compensation, subject to annual limitse @ompany matches a portion of the employee cauttoibs and may, at its discretion, make
additional contributions based upon earnings. Tbhe@any’s contribution expense was $77 million , $ilion and $60 million in fiscal
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

Equity Compensation PlansThe 2006 LongFerm Incentive Plan (the 2006 Plan) was adoptethduhe second quarter of fiscal 2006 :
replaced the 2001 Stock Option Plan and the 2001 Baployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan and thegdecessor plans (the Prior Plans).
The 2006 Plan provides for the grant of incentind aon-qualified stock options, restricted stocksyrstock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, performance stock units and other shareebasards and is the source of shares issued umel&tdn-Qualified Deferred Compensation
Plan (the NQDCP). The shares authorized under@86 Plan were approximately 573,284,000 at Septe2®e2014 . The share reserve
remaining under the 2006 Plan was approximately7526000 at September 28, 2014 . Shares subjaciytstock option under a Prior Plan
that is terminated or canceled (but not a stocloopinder a Prior Plan that expires) following tiae that the 2006 Plan was approved by
stockholders, and shares that are subject to ardavmaler the NQDCP and are returned to the Compaogiuse they fail to vest, will again
become available for grant under the 2006 Plan.Bdeed of Directors of the Company may amend onieate the 2006 Plan at any time.
Certain amendments, including an increase in theesteserve, require stockholder approval.

During fiscal 2014 , the Company assumed 152,0@tanding stock options under various stock-baseeritive plans (the Assumed
Plans) as a result of a business acquisition (BptAll remaining shares available under Assumeth®lwere terminated on the date of the
acquisition, and no additional shares may be gdamteler those plans.

Net share-based awards, after forfeitures and tatiares, granted during fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2@&l®2esented 0.8% , 0.8% and 0.9% of
outstanding shares as of the beginning of eachlfigar, respectively. Total share-based awardgepladuring fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012
represented 1.0% of outstanding shares as of thefezach fiscal year.

RSUs are share awards that entitle the holdercgive shares of the Company’s common stock upatingeS’he RSUs generally include
dividend-equivalent rights and vest over periodthoée years from the date of grant. A summary ®fJRransactions for all equity
compensation plans follows:
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Weighted-Average Aggregate

Grant Date Fair Intrinsic
Number of Shares Value Value
(In thousands) (In billions)
RSUs outstanding at September 29, 2013 31,07¢ $ 59.91
RSUs granted 14,55¢ 72.8(
RSUs canceled/forfeited (2,227 63.6¢€
RSUs vested (14,869 57.6¢
RSUs outstanding at September 28, 2014 28,550 g 67.3¢ $ 2.1

At September 28, 2014 , total unrecognized compEmseaxpense related to non-vested RSUs granted forthat date was $1.3 billion ,
which is expected to be recognized over a weightextage period of 1.8 years. The total vest-date&due of RSUs that vested during fiscal
2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $1.1 billion , $1.0 hilland $352 million , respectively. Upon vesting @ompany issues new shares of common
stock. For the majority of RSUs, shares are issurethe vesting dates net of the amount of sharedatkto satisfy statutory tax withholding
requirements to be paid by the Company on behdaldeg&mployees. The total shares withheld relaiedl share-based awards were
approximately 5,568,000 , 5,805,000 and 1,965,8G&¢cal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively, artevbased on the value of the awards on
their vesting dates as determined by the Companiy&ng stock price. Total payments for the empésydax obligations to the taxing
authorities were $417 million , $374 million and3%1million in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respey.

The Board of Directors may grant stock optionsdiested employees, directors and consultants t€tmepany to purchase shares of the
Companys common stock at an exercise price not less tiefair market value of the stock at the date ahgrStock options vest over peri
not exceeding five years and are exercisable faou® years from the grant date. A summary oflstigtion transactions for all equity
compensation plans follows:

Weighted-
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic
Number of Shares Price Contractual Term Value
(In thousands) (Years) (In billions)
Stock options outstanding at September 29, 2013 71,02¢ $ 41.15
Stock options assuméd 152 4,77
Stock options canceled/forfeited/expired (220) 42.08
Stock options exercised (28,845 40.87
Stock options outstanding at September 28, 2014 42,110 ¢ 41.2: 35 % 1.4
Exercisable at September 28, 2014 41,70 § 41.25 35 % 14

(1) Represents activity related to options that wesei@ed as a result of an acquisition (Not

At September 28, 2014 , total unrecognized estithedenpensation expense related to non-vested sfu@ns granted prior to that date
was $12 million , which is expected to be recogthiaeer a weighted-average period of 1.7 years.tdta¢ intrinsic value of stock options
exercised during fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 wad4 $fillion , $949 million and $1.0 billion , respgeely, and the amount of cash received
from the exercise of stock options was $1.2 billi&1.3 billion and $1.5 billion , respectively. tlpoption exercise, the Company issues new
shares of stock.

The total tax benefits realized, including the essceax benefits, related to share-based award$&@smillion , $659 million and $438
million during fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respety.

Employee Stock Purchase Plamhe Company has an employee stock purchase plaiddrle employees to purchase shares of commol
stock at 85% of the lower of the fair market vatunethe first or the last day of each offering périwhich is generally six months. Employees
may authorize the Company to withhold up to 15%hefr compensation during any offering period, sabjo certain limitations. The
employee stock purchase plan includes a non-4284b) The shares authorized under the employe& ptochase plan were approximately
46,709,000 at September 28, 2014 . The sharesegstar future issuance were approximately 6,338 &0September 28, 2014 . During fiscal
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , approximately 4,376,00044,000 and 3,654,000 shares, respectively, weoedsunder the plan at an average price
of $58.81 , $52.70 and $48.31 per
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share, respectively. At September 28, 2014 , totedcognized compensation expense related to neted/eurchase rights granted prior to tha
date was $22 million . The Company recorded caskived from the exercise of purchase rights of §28lfon , $213 million and $177
million during fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respety.

Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal ProceedingsParkerVision, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporate®n July 20, 2011, ParkerVision filed a complaigainst the
Company in the United States District Court for thieldle District of Florida alleging that certairi ihe Company’s products infringe seven of
its patents alleged to cover direct down-conversameivers. ParkerVision’s complaint sought damagekinjunctive and other
relief. Subsequently, ParkerVision narrowed itegaitions to assert only four patents. On OctobeRQ¥3, the jury returned a verdict finding
all asserted claims of the four at-issue patenketimfringed and finding that none of the assectadns are invalid. On October 24, 2013, the
jury returned a separate verdict assessing tosldzanages of approximate$173 million and finding that the Company’s infrergent was
not willful. The Company recorded the verdict ambrfiscal 2013 as a charge in other expenseg-\Rwdict motions, including the
Company’s motions for judgment as a matter of ladg a new trial on invalidity and non-infringememdaParkerVision’s motions for
injunctive relief and ongoing royalties, were filbg January 24, 2014. A hearing on these motiorsshetd on May 1, 2014. On June 20, 2014
the court granted the Company’s motion to overtheinfringement verdict, denied the Company’s motio overturn the invalidity verdict,
and denied the remaining motions as moot. The ¢bart entered judgment in the Company’s favor. Assallt of the court’s judgment, the
Company is not liable for any damages to Parkeoviisand therefore, the Company reversed all redoadeounts related to the damages
verdict in fiscal 2014. On June 25, 2014, Parkean¥idiled a notice of appeal with the court. On MBy2014, ParkerVision filed another
complaint against the Company in the United StBistict Court for the Middle District of Floriddlaging patent infringement. On August .
2014, ParkerVision amended the compliant, now oaptiParkerVision, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporated, Quatem Atheros, Inc., HTC
Corporation, HTC America, In¢.Samsung Electronics Co., LTD., Samsung Electrakiasrica, Inc. and Samsung Telecommunications
America, LLC, broadening the allegations. ParkerVision nowgatethat the Company infringes 11 additional patent seeks damages and
injunctive and other relief. The Company was semwét the complaint in this second action on Aug2®t 2014 and has not yet responded.

Nvidia Corporation v. Qualcomm Incorporate®n September 4, 2014, Nvidia filed a complainth@ United States District Court for the
District of Delaware and also with the United S¢ateternational Trade Commission (ITC) pursuaréation 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930
against the Company, Samsung Electronics Co., atdl other Samsung entities, alleging infringenoéiseven patents related to graphics
processing. In the ITC complaint, Nvidia seeks arlesion order barring the importation of the Comyga consumer electronics and display
device products that infringe, induce infringemand/or contribute to the infringement of at least of the seven asserted graphics processin
patents as well as a cease and desist order piry#m¢ Company from carrying out commercial atigg within the United States related to
such products. In the District of Delaware complaiNvidia is seeking an award of damages for tfignigement of the asserted patents, a
finding that such infringement is willful and trebflamages for such willful infringement, and aneongermanently enjoining the Company
from infringing the asserted patents. The ITC togtid an investigation into Nvidia's allegations©aotober 6, 2014. The evidentiary hearing
for the investigation is set for June 8 to June2t8,5. The Initial Determination of the Adminisivat Law Judge is due October 9, 2015, and
the target date for completion of the investigatigrthe Commission is set for February 10, 201& dilstrict court case was stayed on Octobe
23, 2014 pending completion of the ITC investigatiocluding appeals.

Icera Complaint to the European Commission (Comiongs On June 7, 2010, the Commission notified and igexthe Company with a
redacted copy of a complaint filed with the Comnaisdy Icera, Inc. (subsequently acquired by Nvid@poration) alleging that the Compe
has engaged in anticompetitive activity. The Conypaas asked by the Commission to submit a prelinginesponse to the portions of the
complaint disclosed to it, and the Company subniteresponse in July 2010. Subsequently, the @ompas provided and continues to
provide additional documents and information asiested by the Commission. The Company continuesdperate fully with the
Commission’s preliminary investigation.

European Commission Investigatio®n October 15, 2014, the Commission notified@eepany that it is conducting an investigation of
the Company relating to Article 101 and/or 102k Treaty on the Functioning of the European UigidfEU) and Article 53 and/or 54 of the
Agreement for the European Economic Area (EEA Agrest). The Company understands that the investigatbncerns primarily the sale
and/or marketing of the Company’s baseband chipsetsiding alleged conditions relating to the psian by the Company of rebates and/or
other financial incentives. If a violation is fourelbroad range of remedies is potentially avadlablthe Commission, including imposing a 1
and/or injunctive relief prohibiting or restrictirggertain business practices. Given that this ingagon is in its early stages, it is difficult to
predict the outcome or what remedies, if any, maynposed by the Commission. The Company contitiesoperate with the Commission
as it conducts its investigation.
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Korea Fair Trade Commission (KFTC) Complaif®n January 4, 2010, the KFTC issued a writtensitat finding that the Company had
violated South Korean law by offering certain digets and rebates for purchases of its CDMA chigsfanincluding in certain agreements
language requiring the continued payment of rogaléfter all licensed patents have expired. The®IEVied a fine, which the Company paid
and recorded as an expense in fiscal 2010. The @aymgppealed to the Seoul High Court, and on J@n2d13, the Seoul High Court
affirmed the KFTC’s decision. On July 4, 2013, @@mpany filed an appeal with the Korea Supreme Cdtiere have been no material
developments with respect to this matter.

Japan Fair Trade Commission (JFTC) Complaiithe JFTC received unspecified complaints allegivag the Company’s business
practices are, in some way, a violation of JapafegeOn September 29, 2009, the JFTC issued & @abdesist order concluding that the
Company’s Japanese licensees were forced to doessé patents to the Company on a royalty-frees laesl were forced to accept a provisior
under which they agreed not to assert their esdgydtents against the Company’s other license@smdde a similar commitment in their
license agreements with the Company. The ceasdesist order seeks to require the Company to matdigxisting license agreements with
Japanese companies to eliminate these provisioits prieserving the license of the Company’s patemthose companies. The Company
disagrees with the conclusions that it forcedadgsahese licensees to agree to any provision ipattes’ agreements and that those provisions
violate the Japanese Antimonopoly Act. The Compaasyinvoked its right under Japanese law to anmidtrative hearing before the JFTC. In
February 2010, the Tokyo High Court granted the gamy’s motion and issued a stay of the cease asidtaeder pending the administrative
hearing before the JFTC. The JFTC has held headngs! different dates, with the next hearing sahedtifor December 8, 2014.

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) FormaéQotiPrivate Investigation and Department of Jestinvestigation On Septembe
8, 2010, the Company was notified by the SEC’s Angeles Regional office of a formal order of prizévestigation. The Company
understands that the investigation arose from astieblower’s” allegations made in December 200¢haudit committee of the Company’s
Board of Directors and to the SEC. In 2010, thetaxammittee completed an internal review of tHegdtions with the assistance of
independent counsel and independent forensic ataaisn This internal review into the whistlebloveeallegations and related accounting
practices did not identify any errors in the Compafinancial statements. On January 27, 2012Qbmpany learned that the U.S. Attorney’s
Office for the Southern District of California/Depment of Justice (collectively, DOJ) had begurirarestigation regarding the Company’s
compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices AIPA). The audit committee conducted an internakre of the Company’s compliance
with the FCPA and its related policies and proceduwrith the assistance of independent counselrafegpendent forensic accountants. The
audit committee has completed this comprehensiiewe made findings consistent with the Companiridihgs described below and
suggested enhancements to the Company’s overalAlEGRpliance program. In part as a result of théitatommittee’s review, the Company
has made and continues to make enhancementsRGM4& compliance program, including implementatiéthe audit committee’s
recommendations.

As previously disclosed, the Company discovered,ama part of its cooperation with these invesitiga informed the SEC and the DOJ
of, instances in which special hiring consideratigifts or other benefits (collectively, benefitsgre provided to several individuals associated
with Chinese state-owned companies or agenciegdBas the facts currently known, the Company bebahe aggregate monetary value of
the benefits in question to be less than $250,80€luding employment compensation.

On March 13, 2014, the Company received a Wellsdddtom the SEC'’s Los Angeles Regional Office aading that the staff has made a
preliminary determination to recommend that the SileCan enforcement action against the Companyifaations of the anti-bribery, books
and records and internal control provisions of fiH°A. The bribery allegations relate to benefiferafd or provided to individuals associated
with Chinese state-owned companies or agenciesWidiks Notice indicated that the recommendationdduwolve a civil injunctive action
and could seek remedies that include disgorgenfgrbfits, the retention of an independent compl@monitor to review the Company’s
FCPA policies and procedures, an injunction, aiviinetary penalties and prejudgment interest.

A Wells Notice is not a formal allegation or finditby the SEC of wrongdoing or violation of law. Rait, the purpose of a Wells Notice is
to give the recipient an opportunity to make a “l&/eubmission” setting forth reasons why the prepasnforcement action should not be filec
and/or bringing additional facts to the SEC’s ditanbefore any decision is made by the SEC ashtetler to commence a proceeding. On
April 4, 2014 and May 29, 2014, the Company maddl$éeibmissions to the staff of the Los AngelesiBeal Office explaining why the
Company believes it has not violated the FCPA &edefore enforcement action is not warranted.

The Company is continuing to cooperate with the Sla@ the DOJ, but is unable to predict the outcofiibeir investigations or any
action that the SEC may decide to file.
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China National Development and Reform Commissi@R®) Investigation In November 2013, the NDRC notified the Compamt it
had commenced an investigation of the Companyimglad the Chinese Anti-Monopoly Law (AML). The Cpany understands that the
investigation concerns primarily the Company’stisiag business and certain interactions betweeg@tnepany’s licensing business and its
chipset business, including how royalties are dated in the Company’s patent licenses, the vakebanged for cross-licenses to patents of
the Company’s licensees, whether the Company el dicense agreements limited to patents esdentizertain standards, whether royalties
are sought for the Company’s expired patents, tragany’s policy of selling chipsets only to the Gmamy’s patent licensees, the alleged
refusal of the Company to grant patent licensahipset manufacturers, and certain other termsanditions in the Company’s patent license
and chipset sale agreements. A broad range of iemeith respect to business practices deemedtateithe AML is potentially available to
the NDRC, including but not limited to issuing atdler to cease conduct deemed illegal, confiscagaigs deemed illegally obtained, imposing
a fine in the range of 1% to 10% of the prior yeagvenues and requiring modifications to busipeastices. Given the limited precedent of
enforcement actions and penalties under the AMis, difficult to predict the outcome of this mattarwhat remedies may be imposed by the
NDRC. The Company continues to cooperate with tb&RIS as it conducts its investigatic

Federal Trade Commission (FTC) Investigatidbn September 17, 2014, the FTC notified the Camyhat it is conducting an
investigation of the Company relating to Sectiaof 5he Federal Trade Commission Act. The Compardetstands that the investigation
concerns primarily the Company’s licensing businessuding potential breach of FRAND commitmenifsa violation of Section 5 is found, a
broad range of remedies is potentially availablthtoFTC, including imposing a fine or requiring difecations to the Company’s licensing
practices. Given that this investigation is indtgly stages, it is difficult to predict the outopmf this matter or what remedies, if any, may be
imposed by the FTC. The Company continues to cadpevith the FTC as it conducts its investigation.

The Company will continue to vigorously defend litse the foregoing matters. However, litigationdaimvestigations are inherently
uncertain. Accordingly, the Company cannot prettietoutcome of these matters. The Company hasootded any accrual at September 28
2014 for contingent losses associated with theseemsaased on its belief that, with the exceptibthe NDRC matter, losses, while possible,
are not probable. Further, any possible rangess tannot be reasonably estimated at this timear@ieq the NDRC matter, the Company
believes that a loss is probable but that any plessainge of loss cannot be reasonably estimatttsaime. The unfavorable resolution of one
or more of these matters could have a materialragweffect on the Comparsybusiness, results of operations, financial caoior cash flows
The Company is engaged in numerous other legalrectiot described above arising in the ordinarysmof its business and, while there can
be no assurance, believes that the ultimate outarieese other legal actions will not have a mateddverse effect on its business, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Loans and Debenturesthe Companys former BWA subsidiaries (Note 10) had loan anlokdéure liabilities in connection with the BW
spectrum won in India in fiscal 2010. The subsigmmwere merged into one remaining former BWA gadlibsy in August 2013, and that
subsidiary had a loan from a bank related to payme®81 million to the India Government’s Departrhef Telecommunications in March
2012 (the DoT loan), which was recorded by the Camypas a charge to other expenses in fiscal 200 dude 25, 2013, all outstanding
debentures ( $492 million , including accrued iesty were redeemed, and on August 30, 2013, atanding loans, excluding the DoT loan,
( $368 million ) were repaid in full using fundipgovided by Bharti, and the Compasyelated guarantee and indemnification agreenveete
terminated. Prior to the deconsolidation of the BW(fsidiaries on June 25, 2013, cash paid forestem the loans and debentures was $92
million and $88 million for fiscal 2013 and 2018espectively.

The DoT loan was guaranteed by QUALCOMM Incorpataad one of its wholly owned subsidiaries and dersominated in Indian
rupees. The fair value of the guarantee was redaaide liability when the Company deconsolidatedBWA subsidiaries (Note 10). The DoT
loan was repaid in full on October 15, 2013 ( $6lfion ) using funding provided by Bharti as a cdiwh to Bharti's acquisition of all of the
Company’s interest in the remaining former BWA ddlasy, which occurred on October 17, 2013.

Indemnifications. The Company generally does not indemnify its custenand licensees for losses sustained from irdnivemnt of third-
party intellectual property rights. However, thengmany is contingently liable under certain prodsales, services, license and other
agreements to indemnify certain customers agaersiio types of liability and/or damages arisimgnirqualifying claims of patent, copyright,
trademark or trade secret infringement by prodoctservices sold or provided by the Company. Thengany’s obligations under these
agreements may be limited in terms of time andfoowent, and in some instances, the Company may fleaeeirse against third parties for
certain payments made by the Company. Through Bdyatie28, 2014 , the Company has received a nunitmdaims from its direct and
indirect customers and other third parties for md#ication under such agreements with respecli¢ged infringement of third-party
intellectual property rights by its products.
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These indemnification arrangements are not injtiaeasured and recognized at fair value becaugeatieedeemed to be similar to prod
warranties in that they relate to claims and/oeotctions that could impair the ability of the Gmany’s direct or indirect customers to use the
Company’s products or services. Accordingly, thenpany records liabilities resulting from the arramgents when they are probable and can
be reasonably estimated. Reimbursements under mifleation arrangements have not been materidiécdompany’s consolidated financial
statements. The Company has not recorded any a¢orueantingent liabilities at September 28, 2G$ociated with these indemnification
arrangements, other than insignificant amountsedbas the Company’s belief that additional liakekt while possible, are not probable.
Further, any possible range of loss cannot be nedidp estimated at this time.

Purchase ObligationsThe Company has agreements with suppliers and p#rées to purchase inventory, other goods andcssr and
long-lived assets. Obligations, which generallydhavemaining term of less than one year, undeethgreements at September 28, 2014 for
each of the subsequent five years from fiscal 2Bidugh 2019 were approximately $3.4 billion , $8illion , $30 million , $18 million and
$18 million , respectively, and $29 million thereaf Of these amounts, for fiscal 2015 , commitreeatpurchase integrated circuit product
inventories comprised $2.8 billion . Integratectuit product inventory obligations represent pusgheommitments for wafers, die, finished
goods and manufacturing services, such as wafeppprobe, assembly and final test. Under the Coripananufacturing relationships with
its foundry suppliers and assembly and test seprigeiders, cancelation of outstanding purchasersris generally allowed but requires
payment of costs incurred through the date of datioa.

Operating LeasesThe Company leases certain of its land, facilitied equipment under noncancelable operating leasthsterms
ranging from less than one year to 20 years arlu pvitvisions in certain leases for cost-of-livimgrieases. Rental expense for fiscal 2014 ,
2013 and 2012 was $91 million , $90 million and $&fion , respectively. Future minimum lease pawytsen each of the next five years from
fiscal 2015 through 2019 are $91 million , $79 iiil, $58 million , $31 million and $20 million espectively, and $25 million thereafter.

Note 8. Segment Information

The Company is organized on the basis of produadssarvices. The Company aggregates two of itsidins into the QSI segment .
Reportable segments are as follows:

*  QCT (Qualcomm CDMA Technologies) segment — depgland supplies integrated circuits and systetwaoé based on CDMA,
OFDMA and other technologies for use in voice aathdommunications, networking, application procggsmultimedia and global
positioning system products.

* QTL (Qualcomm Technology Licensing) segment -angs licenses or otherwise provides rights to wsgqns of the Company’s
intellectual property portfolio, which, among othights, includes certain patent rights essentiartd/or useful in the manufacture .
sale of certain wireless products, including, withiimitation, products implementing CDMA2000, WCB/ICDMA TDD (including
TD-SCDMA), GSM/GPRS/EDGE and/or OFDMA (including EJ standards and their derivatives.

* QSI (Qualcomm Strategic Initiatives) segment emprised of the Company’s Qualcomm Ventures angctred Finance &
Strategic Investments divisions. QS| makes stratigiestments that are focused on opening new mareking opportunities for its
technologies and supporting the design and intbaluof new products or services (or enhancingtadsproducts or services) for
voice and data communications. Many of these gfi@tevestments are in early-stage companies. @8lleolds wireless spectrum.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014 , the Compaeassessed its management reporting as a oésiit sale of the North and Latin
America operations of its Omnitracs division (Nafi, which comprised substantially all of the Omas division, among other reasons. The
Omnitracs division was previously aggregated wihtte¢ other divisions into the Qualcomm Wireless&inet (QWI) reportable segment.
Starting in fiscal 2014 , the QWI segment was alaiéd, and revenues and operating results foriti@ahs that comprised the QWI
reportable segment are included in nonreportalgmsats as components of reconciling items. Priadodesegment information has been
adjusted to conform to the new segment presentation

Nonreportable segments include the Company’s QMIa{@mm MEMS Technologies), Pixtronix and Smalll€divisions and other
wireless technology and service initiatives. QMand to license its next generation IMOD displaytetogy and to focus on wearable
devices. Pixtronix develops and licenses displafirielogies based on MEMS (micro-electro-mecharsgatems)structure optimized for
portable multimedia devices. Small Cells develaps supplies 3G/LTE and Wi-Fi products designedrfgslementation of small mobile base
stations (known as small cells). Other nonrepoetakigments develop and offer products and serthe¢clude, but are not limited to:
software products and content enablement servicedréless operators; development, other servindselated products to U.S. government
agencies and their
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contractors; device-to-device communication, inglgdsoftware for the connected home; data centedical device connectivity and related
data management; and augmented reality.

The Company evaluates the performance of its segnb@sed on earnings (loss) before income taxe¥)(EBm continuing operations.
Segment EBT includes the allocation of certain ocaife expenses to the segments, including dep@tiand amortization expense related to
unallocated corporate assets. Certain income amajeb are not allocated to segments in the Companghagement reports because they are
not considered in evaluating the segments’ opagag@rformance. Unallocated income and chargesdecbertain net investment income;
certain share-based compensation; and certainrobsaad development expenses, selling, generaadmihistrative expenses and other
expenses or income that were deemed to be notlgliretated to the businesses of the segments.tidddily, unallocated charges include
recognition of the step-up of inventories to faatue, amortization and impairment of certain infhlggassets and certain other acquisition-
related charges. The table below presents reveRB3sand total assets for reportable segments illions):

Reconciling
QCT QTL Qsl ltems Total

2014

Revenues $ 18,66 $ 7,56¢ $ — % VIS 26,48’

EBT 3,801 6,59( ) (1,617) 8,77¢

Total assets 3,63¢ 161 484 44,29( 48,57
2013

Revenues $ 16,71 $ 755 $ — 3 597 $ 24,86¢

EBT 3,18¢ 6,59( 56 (1,647 8,19/

Total assets 3,30¢ 28 511 41,67: 45,51¢
2012

Revenues $ 12,14:  $ 6,327 $ — % 65 $ 19,12:

EBT 2,29¢ 5,58t (170 (1,149 6,56

Total assets 2,27¢ 63 1,42¢ 39,24° 43,01:

Intersegment revenues included in QCT revenues negkgible in all periods presented. All other@aues for reportable segments were
from external customers for all periods presented.

The Company reports revenues from external cusimecountry based on the location to which itdprais or services are delivered,
which for QCT is generally the country in which dsstomers manufacture their products, or for boggrevenues, the invoiced addresses of
its licensees. As a result, the revenues by coyrgented herein are not necessarily indicativatbér the country in which the devices
containing our products and/or intellectual propare ultimately sold to consumers or the countrwhich the companies that sell the devices
are headquartered. For example, China revenued tallide revenues related to shipments of integraircuits to a company that is
headquartered in South Korea but that manufactleeiges in China, which devices are then sold tsaemers in Europe and/or the United
States. Revenues by country were as follows (itians):

2014 2013 2012
China (including Hong Kong) $ 13,200 $ 12,28¢ $ 7,971
South Korea 6,172 4,98: 4,202
Taiwan 2,87¢ 2,68: 2,64¢
United States 37z 80t 967
Other foreign 3,861 4,107 3,33¢
$ 26,48° 3 24,86t % 19,12:

Interest income included in QSI EBT was negligiibldéiscal 2014 and 2013 and was $19 million indis2012, and interest expense
included in QSI EBT was negligible in fiscal 20lddavas $18 million and $79 million in fiscal 2018da2012, respectively. Interest income
and interest expense recorded by other segmenésnegtigible in all periods presented. Effectivalyequity in losses of investees (Note 3)

was recorded in QSl in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012
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Segment assets are comprised of accounts recemathlimventories for all reportable segments dth@n QSI. QS| segment assets includs
certain marketable securities, notes receivableless spectrum, other investments and all assetmeolidated subsidiaries included in QSI.
QSI assets at September 28, 2014 , September 23,a2@ September 30, 2012 included $18 million7, &dllion and $11 million ,
respectively, related to investments in equity rodtimvestees. Reconciling items for total assetkided $313 million , $892 million and $1.2
billion at September 28, 2014 , September 29, 201BSeptember 30, 2012 , respectively, of goodmitl other assets related to the
Company’s QMT division. Total segment assets aiferdrom total assets on a consolidated basis @sult of unallocated corporate assets
primarily comprised of certain cash, cash equivialemarketable securities, property, plant andmgent, deferred tax assets, intangible asse
and assets of nonreportable segments. The netadads of long-lived tangible assets located ostsittthe United States were $288 million ,
$896 million and $1.1 billion at September 28, 20B&ptember 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012eatdsgy. The net book values of long-
lived tangible assets located in the United Statere $2.2 billion , $2.1 billion and $1.8 billion September 28, 2014 , September 29, 2018
September 30, 2012 , respectively.

Other reconciling items were comprised as folloimgiillions):

2014 2013 2012
Revenues
Nonreportable segments $ 256 $ 601 $ 657
Intersegment eliminations (5) (4) 4)
$ 25 % 597 $ 65¢
EBT
Unallocated cost of equipment and services revenues $ (300 $ (335 $ (300
Unallocated research and development expenses (860) (789 (702)
Unallocated selling, general and administrativeesges (412 (502) (549
Unallocated other income (expense) 14z (179%) —
Unallocated investment income, net 1,21t 877 92¢
Nonreportable segments (1,39%) (719 (526)
$ (1,612 $ (1,64) $ (1,149

Nonreportable segments’ losses before taxes dfisogl 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were primarily attréhi¢ to the Company’s QMT
division, including $607 million , $158 million argb4 million in impairment charges, respectivelyo(®l2). Unallocated acquisition-related
expenses were comprised as follows (in millions):

2014 2013 2012
Cost of equipment and services revenues $ 251 % 264 $ 22t
Research and development expenses 3C 3 —
Selling, general and administrative expenses 25 26 43

Note 9. Acquisitions

During fiscal 2014 , the Company acquired 11 busses for total cash consideration of $775 milliod the exchange of unvested stock
options that had a negligible fair value. Technglbgsed intangible assets recognized in the anmaf$it46 million are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over a weighted-average usééubf six years. Goodwill of $628 million was m@gnized in these transactions, of wh§294
million is expected to be deductible for tax pumgms

During fiscal 2013 , the Company acquired five hasses for total cash consideration of $114 millibechnology-based intangible asset:
recognized in the amount of $24 million are beinpdized on a straight-line basis over a weighteerage useful life of siyears. Goodwill ¢
$83 million was recognized in these transactiohgytoch $21 million is expected to be deductible fax purposes.

During fiscal 2012 , the Company acquired eightitesses for total cash consideration of $774 maillidechnology-based intangible
assets recognized in the amount of $164 milliorbaiag amortized on a straight-line basis over mhted-average useful life of six years.
Goodwill of $517 million was recognized in thesansactions, of which $71 million is expected taleductible for tax purposes.
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The Company recorded $26 million , $2 million arg® $nillion related to four in-process research dedelopment (IPR&D) projects
during fiscal 2014 , one IPR&D project in fiscallBand 10 IPR&D projects in fiscal 2012 , respeadtivDuring fiscal 2014, the Company
recorded $20 million in impairment charges reldtetivo IPR&D projects acquired in fiscal 2012. Adgember 28, 2014 , remaining IPR&D
of $55 million consisted of eight projects, whiale &xpected to be completed within three yearsnUmmpletion, the IPR&D projects will be
amortized over their useful lives, which are expddb range from three to nine years.

Note 10. Deconsolidation of and Retained Investmeit the BWA Subsidiaries

In fiscal 2010, the Company established subsididniéndia to operate a wireless network using Bb@and Wireless Access (BWA)
spectrum (the BWA subsidiaries). In June 2012, Biartel Limited (Bharti), an Indian wireless netrnk operator, purchased shares in the
BWA subsidiaries that were held by two third-pdrtgian investors, and the BWA subsidiaries issigtiteonal equity interests to Bharti for
$85 million , reducing the Company’s ownership iat in each of the BWA subsidiaries to 51% . OmeJ25, 2013, the BWA subsidiaries
issued additional equity interests to Bharti fol $dillion , further reducing the Company’s owneyshiterests to 49%and redeemed all of tl
outstanding debentures using funding provided barBkthrough subordinated debt (Note 7). Also, Bihgained additional power over
significant activities through certain leadershifaeges. These events resulted in a change in tofittee BWA subsidiaries and therefore, the
BWA subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the Camgjsafinancial statements. Prior to the deconsdilioig the assets and liabilities of the
BWA subsidiaries were classified as held for sale.

As a result of the deconsolidation, the Companggazed a gain in net investment income of $6 oillmeasured as the difference
between (a) the net fair values of the retainectaotrolling investment and the Company’s guaranfabe former BWA subsidiaries’ bank
loans (Note 7) and (b) the carrying values of tivener BWA subsidiariesiet assets, including cumulative translation lossesnoncontrollin
interests. Total assets and total liabilities weduced by $1.0 billion and $999 million , respesly. Such assets and liabilities consisted
primarily of wireless spectrum, network-relatededassind loan obligations. The deconsolidation e§¢hamounts represented a noncash
investing and noncash financing transaction andneaseflected in the statement of cash flows fecdl 2013. The fair value of the Compasy’
retained noncontrolling investment of $34 millioaswdetermined by applying a discounted cash fldwatmn model to the estimated cash
proceeds that the Company expected to receive tingosale of its interest to Bharti.

The former BWA subsidiaries were merged into ortétyean August 5, 2013. On August 30, 2013, theastimg former BWA subsidiary
repaid all of the outstanding loans, excluding@od loan, using funding provided by Bharti in tloerh of subordinated debt (Note 7). Also on
August 30, 2013, Bharti converted the subordindisut, and the former BWA subsidiary issued add#i@uquity interests to Bharti, further
reducing the Company’s ownership interest to 7% Q@tober 15, 2013, the DoT loan was repaid usimgihg provided by Bharti (Note 7),
and on October 17, 2013, Bharti acquired all of@eenpany’s interest in the remaining former sulzsidi

Note 11. Discontinued Operations

On November 25, 2013 , the Company completed igsafahe North and Latin America operations of@snitracs division to a U.S.-
based private equity firm for cash consideratio 488 million (net of cash sold). As a result, Gempany recorded a gain in discontinued
operations of $665 million ( $430 million net otmme tax expense) during fiscal 2014. Total assedstotal liabilities were reduced by $150
million and $45 million , respectively. The revesuand operating results of the North and Latin Aozeoperations of the Omnitracs division,
which comprised substantially all of the Omnitrdogsion, were not presented as discontinued ojoarsin any fiscal period because they
were immaterial. The related assets (includedlieroturrent assets and other noncurrent assetdjghiiidies (included in other current
liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities) of 38 million and $43 million , respectively, were siified as held for sale at September 29, 2013

On March 27, 2011, the FLO TV business and netwate shut down. On December 27, 2011 , the Compampleted the sale of
substantially all of its 700 MHz spectrum for $biflion , and as a result, the Company recognizgédia in discontinued operations of $1.2
billion during fiscal 2012 . Accordingly, the retsibf operations of the FLO TV business were prieskas discontinued operations. Income
(loss) from discontinued operations included shmsed compensation and excluded certain genegzbrede expenses allocated to the FLO
TV business during the periods presented. Discoatroperations in fiscal 2012 were $1.2 billiorv{76 million net of income tax expense).

Note 12. Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents the Company’s faiueghierarchy for assets and liabilities measurddiavalue on a recurring basis at
September 28, 2014 (in millions):
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash equivalents $ 3,60: $ 388 $ — % 7,481
Marketable securities
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedries 71t 84( — 1,55¢
Corporate bonds and notes — 14,48: — 14,48:
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities — 1,30¢ 18¢€ 1,49¢
Auction rate securities — — 83 83
Common and preferred stock 1,05¢ 741 — 1,791
Equity funds 541 — — 541
Debt funds 81¢ 3,35(C — 4,16:
Total marketable securities 3,12¢ 20,72: 26¢ 24,11t
Derivative instruments 1 4 — 5
Other investments 262 — — 262
Total assets measured at fair value $ 6,991 $ 24,60¢ 3 26 % 31,86¢
Liabilities
Derivative instruments $ — 3 1 $ — 3 1
Other liabilities 261 — — 261
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ 261 $ 1 % — % 26z

Activity between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchyhere were no significant transfers between Lewvahd Level 2 during fiscal 201a¥
2013 . When a determination is made to classifasaet or liability within Level 3, the determinatis based upon the significance of the
unobservable inputs to the overall fair value meament. The following table includes the activity marketable securities and other liabili
classified within Level 3 of the valuation hieraycfin millions):

2014 2013
Mortgage- and Mortgage- and
Auction Rate Asset-Backed  Auction Rate Asset-Backed
Securities Securities Securities Securities

Beginning balance of Level 3 $ 83 §$ 23¢ $ 11 $ 203
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses):

Included in investment income, net — 11 — 8

Included in other comprehensive income — ©)] 1 (6)

Purchases — 107 — 162

Sales — (12¢) — (70

Settlements — (40 (36) 77)

Transfers (out of) into Level 3 — 2 — 18

Ending balance of Level 3 $ 83 % 18¢ ¢ 83 % 23¢

The Company recognizes transfers into and outwefisewithin the fair value hierarchy at the endhd fiscal month in which the actual
event or change in circumstances that causeddhsfér occurs. Transfers out of Level 3 duringdig014 primarily consisted of debt
securities with significant upgrades in creditmgti. Transfers into Level 3 in fiscal 2013 primanbnsisted of debt securities with significant
inputs that became unobservable as a result ofaedsed likelihood of a shortfall in contractuaste flows or a significant downgrade in cre
ratings.

Nonrecurring Fair Value MeasurementsThe Company measures certain assets at fair valaenonrecurring basis. These assets includ
cost and equity method investments when they aemdd to be other-than-temporarily impaired, assegsiired and liabilities assumed in an
acquisition or in a nonmonetary exchange, and ptgppglant and equipment and intangible assetsatetvritten down to fair value when they
are held for sale or determined to be impairedirufiscal
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2014 , 2013 and 2012, certain long-lived assetsgaodwill related to the Company’s QMT division wewritten down to their estimated fair
values resulting in impairment charges of $607iarill, $158 million and $54 million , respectiveNdte 2). At September 28, 2014 , the
carrying values of the QMT division’s property, plaand equipment and goodwill were $148 million &38& million . During fiscal 2013 , the
Company recorded its retained investment in them&rBWA subsidiaries at its estimated fair valué®4# million (Note 10). During fiscal
2014 and 2012, goodwill related to the Comparfgrmer QRS (Qualcomm Retail Solutions) divisicaswvritten down to its implied fair valt
resulting in impairment charges of $16 million &28 million , respectively, which were recordedther expenses. The estimation of fair
values and cash flows used in these fair value aneasents required the use of significant unobsdevalputs, and as a result, the fair value
measurements were classified as Level 3. Durirgli014 , 2013 and 2012 , the Company did not hayeother significant assets or
liabilities that were measured at fair value oroarecurring basis in periods subsequent to iniéabgnition.

Note 13. Marketable Securities

Marketable securities were comprised as follows(itions):

Current Noncurrent
September 28, September 29, September 28, September 29,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Trading:
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedriies $ 32C $ 241 $ 38 $ 49
Corporate bonds and notes 191 26¢ 367 25¢€
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities — — 237 104
Total trading 511 51C 642 40¢
Available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedries 80¢ 721 392 71
Corporate bonds and notes 6,27¢ 4,53: 7,64¢ 6,812
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 1,06: 74t 19t 32¢
Auction rate securities — — 83 83
Common and preferred stock 19z 8 1,60¢ 2,351
Equity funds — — 541 96C
Debt funds 81: 2,307 2,56( 2,88¢
Total available-for-sale 9,14, 8,31« 13,02¢ 13,49:
Fair value option:
Debt fund — — 79C 537
Total marketable securities $ 9.65¢ $ 882¢ § 14451 % 14,44(

The Company holds an investment in a debt fundvfdch the Company elected the fair value optiorelee the Company is able to
redeem its shares at net asset value, which isndigied daily. The investment would have otherwiserbrecorded using the equity method.
The debt fund has no single maturity date. At Sepey 28, 2014 , the Company had an effective ovaieiaterest in the debt fund of 26% .
Net increases in fair value associated with thiggment 0$33 million , $17 million and $45 million were regized in net investment
income in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company classifies certain portfolios of dedatisities that utilize derivative instruments tguaice or reduce foreign exchange, inte
rate and/or equity, prepayment and credit riskseang. Net losses recognized on debt securiteessified as trading held at September 28,
2014 and September 29, 2013 were $5 million andn$ifldn , respectively.

At September 28, 2014 , the contractual maturdfesvailable-for-sale debt securities were as fedi¢in millions):

Years to Maturity No Single
Less Than Oneto Five to Greater Than Maturity
One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Date Total
$ 3571 $ 933 $ 1,50¢ $ 70C $ 4,714 $ 19,83«
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Debt securities with no single maturity date inédaiebt funds, mortgage- and ads&tked securities, auction rate securities andocatg
bonds and notes.

The Company recorded realized gains and losseales sf available-for-sale securities as followsnillions):

Gross Realized Gross Realized
Fiscal Year Gains Losses Net Realized Gain:
2014 $ 732 % (18 $ 714
2013 43C (142) 28¢
2012 29€ (25) 271
Available-for-sale securities were comprised a®fes$ (in millions):
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

September 28, 2014
Equity securities $ 1,76¢ $ 57t  $ 6) % 2,33¢
Debt securities (including debt funds) 19,58: 31z (60) 19,83«

$ 21,35. % 887 $ (66) $ 22,17:
September 29, 2013
Equity securities $ 257C % 79 $ 44 $ 3,31¢
Debt securities (including debt funds) 18,25¢ 39¢ (162 18,48¢

$ 20,82 $ 1,18¢ $ (206) $ 21,80¢

The following table shows the gross unrealizeddesnd fair values of the Company’s investmenisdividual securities that are
classified as available-for-sale and have beencionéinuous unrealized loss position deemed t@tmporary for less than 12 months and for
more than 12 months, aggregated by investment aatém millions):

September 28, 2014

Less than 12 months More than 12 months
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedrisies $ 27¢ % 2 $ — =
Corporate bonds and notes 4,92¢ (31) 104 4)
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 484 (@) 52 @
Auction rate securities — — 83 Q)
Common and preferred stock 86 3 52 (©)]
Debt funds 13¢ Q) 384 (29
$ 590¢ $ (38 $ 67t $ (28)
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September 29, 2013

Less than 12 months More than 12 months
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedrities $ 42 3% 1@ $ — =
Corporate bonds and notes 2,08¢ (31) 24 @
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 367 (5) 24 —
Auction rate securities — — 83 Q)
Common and preferred stock 291 (41) — —
Debt funds 2,77¢ (123) 4 —
Equity funds 82 (€)) — —
$ 564: $ (209 $ 135§ 2

At September 28, 2014 , the Company concludedtigatinrealized losses on its available-for-salesies were temporary. Further, for
common and preferred stock and for equity and fietats with unrealized losses, the Company hashitigéyaand the intent to hold such
securities until they recover. For debt securitvith unrealized losses, the Company does not Havétent to sell, nor is it more likely than
not that the Company will be required to sell, saeburities before recovery or maturity.

The ending balance of the credit loss portion bEothan-temporary impairments on debt securited hy the Company for fiscal 2014 ,
2013 and 2012 was $8 million , $4 million and $3lliam , respectively.

Note 14. Subsequent Event

In October 2014, the Company announced that itreached agreement with CSR plc on the terms of@mmended cash offer to acquire
the entire issued and to be issued ordinary stapitat of CSR for £ 9.00 per ordinary share, whialues the entire issued and to be issued
share capital of CSR at approximately £1.6 bil@pproximately $2.5 billion based upon an exchaage of USD: GBP 1.6057 ). CSR is an
innovator in the development of multifunction seamductor platforms and technologies for the aubosamer and voice and music market
segments. The acquisition complements the Companytent offerings by adding products, channets@rstomers in the growth categorie
the Internet of Everything and automotive infotaémt) accelerating the Company’s presence and pagtadership. The acquisition is subject
to a number of conditions, including receipt of tédi States and other regulatory approvals andgpewal of CSR’s shareholders. Subject to
the satisfaction of these conditions, the acquisits expected to close by the end of the summ2eb5.
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Note 15. Summarized Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

The following financial information reflects all maal recurring adjustments that are, in the opimbmanagement, necessary for a fair
statement of the results of the interim periods.

The table below presents quarterly data for fig2€dl4 and 2013 (in millions, except per share data):

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2014 (1)
Revenues $ 6,62: $ 6,367 $ 6,80¢ $ 6,692
Operating income 1,49: 1,99( 2,07t 1,992
Income from continuing operations 1,44¢ 1,95¢ 2,237 1,89:
Discontinued operations, net of tax 43C — — —
Net income 1,87¢ 1,95¢ 2,23 1,89z
Net income attributable to Qualcomm 1,87¢ 1,95¢ 2,23¢ 1,89¢
Basic earnings per share attributable to Qualco&)m (

Continuing operations $ 0.8¢ $ 1.1¢ % 133 % 1.13

Discontinued operations 0.2 — — —

Net income 1.11 1.1¢ 1.3¢ 1.13
Diluted earnings per share attributable to Qualcaf@m

Continuing operations $ 0.8/ % 112§ 131 % 1.11

Discontinued operations 0.2 — — —

Net income 1.0¢ 1.14 1.31 1.11
2013 (1)
Revenues $ 6,01¢ $ 6,12¢ $ 6,24 $ 6,48(
Operating income 2,08¢ 1,877 1,677 1,58¢
Net income 1,90: 1,862 1,57¢ 1,501
Net income attributable to Qualcomm 1,90¢ 1,86¢ 1,58( 1,501
Basic earnings per share attributable to Qualco&)m ( $ 1.1z % 1.0¢e % 091 % 0.8¢
Diluted earnings per share attributable to Qualcof@m $ 1.0¢ $ 1.06 $ 09C $ 0.8¢

(1) Amounts, other than per share amounts, are routededlions each quarter. Therefore, the sum ofgharterly amounts may not equal the annual amoun
reported.

(2) Earnings per share attributable to Qualcomm arepated independently for each quarter and the &arypased upon respective average shares
outstanding. Therefore, the sum of the quartentpiags per share amounts may not equal the anmmlirsts reported.
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Year ended September 28, 2014
Allowances:
— trade receivables
— notes receivable
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets

Year ended September 29, 2013
Allowances:
— trade receivables
— notes receivable
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets

Year ended September 30, 2012
Allowances:
— trade receivables
— notes receivable
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets

SCHEDULE II
QUALCOMM INCORPORATED

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In millions)
Charged

Balance at (Credited) to Balance at

Beginning of Costs and End of

Period Expenses Deductions Other Period
$ 2 $ 5 $ 2 $ = $ 5
1C ©) @) 2 (a) 4
51 8 — 1 (b) 60
$ 63 $ 10 $ 3) $ (1) $ 69
$ 1 $ 1 $ = $ = $ 2
7 5 — 2 (a) 10
14z (15) — (76) (c) 51
$ 15C $ (9) $ — $ (78) $ 63
$ $ = $ 1) $ = $ 1
4 — — 7
98 43 — 1 (d) 142
$ 10¢ $ 47 $ (2) $ 1 $ 15C

(a) This amount relates to notes receivable on stmiagestments that were converted to cost methadyeipvestment:

(b) This amount was recorded to goodwill in connectigih a business acquisitic

(c) This amount represents $88 million recorded asqgfatte gain on deconsolidation of certain subsié&@ partially offset by $12 million recorded as a
component of other comprehensive income.

(d) This amount was recorded as a component of otleephensive incom



EXHIBIT 10.124

QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
EXECUTIVE RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE

Qualcomm Incorporated (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2006 Long-Termedntive Plan (the “Planhereby grants to the Participant nai
below the number of Performance Stock Units séhfbelow, each of which is a bookkeeping entry @spnting the equivalent in value of
(1) share of the Compars/common stock. The Executive Performance Stock Award is subject to all of the terms and condiias st
forth herein and the Executive Performance Stock Blgreement (attached hereto) and the Plan A afthe Plan can be obtained from
Stock Administration website, located on the Conypsiinternal webpage, or you may request a hard éapy the Stock Administratic
Department. , which are incorporated herein inrtagtirety.

Participant: «First_ Name» «Last_Name» Grant No.: «<Number»
Emp #: «ID» Number of Performance Stock Uni«Shares_Granted
Date of Grant: «Date_of Grant»

Performance Period: «Date Range»

«Measurement Periods»
First Measurement Period: «First_Meas Date Range
«Addit. Measurement Period(s):» «Additional_MeageDRange(s)

Vesting Date: Except as otherwise provided in tlenPr the Executive Performance Stock Unit Agresimthis Performance Stock U
Award will vest ten (10) days after the end of therformance Period («End Dates} long as your Service (as defined in the Pla
continuous from the Date of Grant through that date

Additional Terms/Acknowledgments: The Participant acknowledges (in the form deterchibg the Company) receipt of, and represent
the Participant has read, understands, acceptsagregs to the terms and conditions of, the follgwithis Grant Notice, the Execut
Performance Stock Unit Agreement and the Plan {dinb, but not limited to, the binding arbitratipnovision in Section 3.7 of the Pla
Participant hereby accepts this Performance StatkAWward subject to all of the terms, conditiomsigprocedures established by the Com,
with respect to the Performance Stock Units.

Qualcomm Incorporated:

By:

Dr. Paul E. Jacobs Signature
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: «Date» Date

Attachment: Executive Performance Stock Unit Agreetr{U.S. PSU-EX-A8)




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
EXECUTIVE RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Grant Notice and this ExecutivéoPmance Stock Unit Agreement (thégreement’), Qualcomm Incorporated (the
“ Company’) has granted you a Performance Stock Unit Awaitth vespect to the number of shares of the Compaty'mon stock (Stock
") indicated in the Grant Notice. Capitalized ternzt explicitly defined in this Agreement but defthin the Qualcomm Incorporated 2006
Long-Term Incentive Plan (thePlan ") shall have the same definitions as in the Plan.

The details of this Performance Stock Unit Aware as follows:
1. Service and Vesting.

1.1 ServiceAs provided in the Plan and notwithstanding anyeotrovision of this Agreement, the Company resetiie
right, in its sole discretion, to determine whemy8ervice has terminated, including in the evéminy leave of absence or part-time Service.

1.2 Vesting Except to the extent that your Performance StodksUnay vest earlier as provided in Section 2.4{ejugh
(d) and Section 6.1, your Performance Stock Uniliswest if and to the extent that you continueSiervice through the Vesting Date specified
in the Grant Notice (the Vesting Date’). Except to the extent that your Performance B1dnits may vest earlier as provided in Section(&.4
through (d) and Section 6.1, if your Service tem@s before the Vesting Date, all of your PerforoeaBitock Units shall be forfeited.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plaritas Agreement, the Company reserves the righitsisole discretion, to suspend vesting
this Performance Stock Unit Award in the eventmof keave of absence or part-time Service.

2. Settlement of the Performance Stock Units.

2.1 Form and Timing of PaymentSubject to the other terms of the Plan and thiss@grent, any Performance Stock Units
that vest and become nonforfeitable in accordaritetihve Grant Notice will be paid to you in wholeases of Stock, in the amount specified in
Section 2.2 and Section 2.3, no later than 30 dégs the later of (i) the Vesting Date specifiadhie Grant Notice or (ii) the date on which the
Committee certifies in writing the number of Shafiéany) that are payable under this Agreemenedam the terms and conditions set fort
Section 2.2 and Section 2.3, which certificatiod determination shall be made by the Committeeater than the November 30th that next
follows the end of the Performance Period. Faitarachieve the minimum Performance Target necedsapayment under Section 2.2 shall
result in the forfeiture of all Performance Stochitd.

2.2 Amount of PaymentSubject to modification under Section 2.3 and $&c#.4, the number of shares of Stock that
be issued to you by the Company on the date spddiii Section 2.1 is the sum of the Shares Earreeaich Measurement Period. The “
Shares Earne(” for each Measurement Period is equal to the amdetermined by multiplying the Target Shares fer Measurement Period
by the Payout Percentage, rounding up to the neatede share. The Target Shares for each Measurement Period is a number of shafres
Stock equal to 50% of the Number of PerformancelStnits specified in the Grant Notice. For purmeéthis Section 2.2, the following
additional definitions apply:

(a) “ Beginning Period Average Prickmeans the average official closing price per stadrthe issuer over
the 20-consecutivieading days ending with and including the firsy @d the Measurement Period (if the applicable idayot a tradin
day, the immediately preceding trading day).

(b) “ Ending Period Average Pric& means the average official closing price per sbéthe issuer over tr
20-consecutive-trading days ending with and ingigdhe last day of the Measurement Period (if fhrieable day is not a trading
day, the immediately preceding trading day).

(c) “ Measurement Period means each period specified in the Grant Notice.

(d) “ Nasdag-100 Compani€smeans the companies that are included in the NAQELOO Index
(published by The NASDAQ Stock Market, or its suggm) continuously from the beginning through the ef the relevant
Measurement Period. The Committee shall have thiegty to make appropriate adjustments to thergxtecessary to account for
extraordinary, unusual and infrequently occurrimgrégs and transactions involving that company.




(e) “Payout Percentagé means the percentage that corresponds to thePEB€entile Rank specified
below:

TSR Percentile Rank Payout Percentage
90th percentile and above 200%
75th percentile 150%
60th percentile 100% (Target)
50th percentile 75%
33rd percentile 33%
Below 33rd percentile 0%

Between the levels specified above, the Payoutedhtage is interpolated linearly at a ratio of thaee-one-third (3-1/3) percentage
points for each percentile that the TSR PerceRi#ek is greater than the 60th percentile, and ma-ene-half (2-1/2) percentage
points for each percentile that the TSR PerceRt#ek is less than the 60th percentile, in each kaseled up to the nearest decimal
point.

) “ Performance Period means the period specified in the Grant Notickiclv begins on the first day of
the first Measurement Period and ends on the sbfithe last Measurement Period.

(9) “ TSR” means total shareholder return as determined\aglidg (i) the sum of (A) the Ending Period
Average Price minus the Beginning Period AverageeRslus (B) all dividends and other distributigpgeed on the issuer’s shares
during the Measurement Period by (ii) the Beginrifegiod Average Price. In calculating TSR, all dands are assumed to have beel
reinvested in shares when paid. The Committee bhaak the authority to make appropriate equitaijesaments to account for
extraordinary items affecting a company’s TSR fa televant Measurement Period.

(h) “ TSR Percentile Rank means the Company'’s percentile ranking relatovéhe Nasdaqg-100
Companies, based on TSR. TSR Percentile Rankésndigted by ordering the Nasdaqg-100 Companies (plri€ompany if the
Company is not one of the Nasdd@0 Companies) from highest to lowest based on fb8ke relevant Measurement Period and
counting down from the company with the highest T&Rked first) to the Company’s position on ttet. lif two companies are
ranked equally, the ranking of the next companyi sttaount for the tie, so that if one companyaisked first, and two companies are
tied for second, the next company is ranked foukfter this ranking, the TSR Percentile Rank wi#l talculated using the following
formula, rounded to the nearest whole percentilagplication of regular rounding:

TSR Percentile Rank

N -R
#* 100
N

“ N represents the number of Nasdag-100 Companigbéorelevant Measurement Period (plus the Comffahg Company is not
one of the Nasdag-100 Companies for that MeasureRezind).

“ R” represents the Company'’s ranking among the Nad@@gCompanies (plus the Company if the Compampine of the
Nasdaqg-100 Companies for the relevant Measurenesigd).

For example, if there are 100 Nasdaqg-100 Compdimelsiding the Company), and the Company ranked,46e TSR Percentile
Rank would be at the 60th percentile:

60 = (100 - 40)/100 * 100.

2.3 Limitation on Amount of Payment.Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to tloatrary, if the Compang' TSF
is negative for the Performance Period, then theimmam number of shares of Stock that shall be id$ae/ou by the Company on the date
specified in Section 2.1 will be equal to the NumbiePerformance Stock Units specified in the Gifdatice. Likewise, if your Service
terminates in the first Measurement Period undercttcumstances specified in Section 2.4 and thagaoy’s TSR is negative for that
Measurement Period, then the maximum number oeshafrStock




that shall be issued to you by the Company pursieaBection 2.4 will be equal to the number of Edig§hares for that Measurement Period.

2.4 Effect of Termination of ServiceExcept as otherwise expressly set forth in thidiSe&.4, in the event of the
termination of your Service for any reason, whetr@untary or involuntary, all unvested Performasteck Units shall be immediately
forfeited without consideration.

(a) Disability. If your Service with the Employer terminates beeaofyour Disability, the vesting of your
Performance Stock Units shall be accelerated Ireftéctive as of the date on which your Serviagenieates due to your Disability, t
the number of shares of Stock that shall be issmgdu by the Company under this Agreement shafirbeated and paid as follows.
The Company shall issue to you, within 30 daysrafte end of the Measurement Period during whialr y8ervice terminates due to
your Disability, the number of shares (roundedaithe nearest whole Share) equal to the sum tfdiShares Earned for any
Measurement Period prior to the Measurement Peltivitig which your Service terminates due to yowsdbility, plus (ii) the Target
Shares for the Measurement Period during which $auvice terminates.

(b) Death. If your Service with the Employer terminates beeaofyour death, the vesting of the
Performance Stock Units shall be accelerated Ireftéctive upon your death, but the number of ekaf Stock that shall be issued to
you by the Company under this Agreement shall beaped as follows. The Company shall issue to ysteate, personal
representative, or beneficiary to whom the PerfarteaStock Units may be transferred by will or by tws of descent and
distribution, within 30 days after the end of the&durement Period during which your death occhesntimber of shares (rounded up
to the nearest whole Share) equal to the sum tigiShares Earned for any Measurement Period foribe Measurement Period
during which your death occurs, plus (ii) the Tar§bares for the Measurement Period during whiclr geath occurs. If your Servi
with the Employer terminates because of your Diggband you are entitled to payment under Secfigi{a), and you later die in a
subsequent Measurement Period covered by this Agneg your estate, personal representative, orficeary to whom the
Performance Stock Units may be transferred byaribly the laws of descent and distribution shaleiee within 30 days of the end
the Measurement Period during which your death is¢eounded up, equal to the Target Shares foMiesurement Period during
which your death occurs.

(c) Normal Retirement Age.If your Service with the Employer terminates aaéier Normal Retirement
Age, the vesting of your Performance Stock Unitlldie accelerated in full effective as of the datiewhich your Service terminates,
but the number of shares of Stock that shall beeigso you by the Company under this Agreement begbrorated and paid as
follows. The Company shall issue to you, withind#ys after the end of the Measurement Period dwvhiigh your Service terminat
at or after Normal Retirement Age, the number @freb (rounded up to the nearest whole Share) émtia¢ sum of (i) the Shares
Earned for any Measurement Period prior to the Mesasent Period during which your Service terminatesr after Normal
Retirement Age, plus (ii) the Shares Earned folMleasurement Period during which your Service teata@s multiplied by a fraction
the numerator of which is the number of whole aadial months (rounded up) from the beginning et thlleasurement Period until
the date your Service terminates, and the denoorioétwhich is the number of months in that Measueat Period.

(d) Termination After Change in Control. If your Service with the Employer terminates agsuit of
Termination After Change in Control (as definedowél, the vesting of any Performance Stock Unit$ temained outstanding after
the Change in Control shall be accelerated indffiictive as of the date on which your Service teates, but the number of shares of
Stock that shall be issued to you by the Compamleuthis Agreement shall be prorated and paid lbsafs. The Company shall issue
to you, within 30 days after the end of the Measwaet Period during which your Service terminates,iumber of shares (roundec
to the nearest whole Share) equal to the sum tidishares Earned for any Measurement Period torible Measurement Period
during which your Service terminates, plus (ii) Bteares Earned for the Measurement Period duringhwlour Service terminates
multiplied by a fraction the numerator of whichti® number of whole and partial months (roundedfrgm the beginning of that
Measurement Period until the date your Serviceiteatas, and the denominator of which is the nunobenonths in that Measureme
Period.

(e) Certain Definitions.
0] “ Cause” shall mean any of the following: (1) your theft dishonesty with respect to, or

falsification of any Participating Company docunseot records; (2) your improper use or disclosdra Barticipating
Company’s confidential or proprietary informatidB) any action by you which




has a detrimental effect on a Participating Comfsargputation or business; (4) your failure or iiigbto perform any
reasonable assigned duties after written notioma fidParticipating Company of, and a reasonable ity to cure, such
failure or inability; (5) any material breach bywof any employment or service agreement betweerapd a Participating
Company, which breach is not cured pursuant taemas of such agreement; (6) your conviction (idoig any plea of guilt
or nolo contenderg of any criminal act which impairs your ability perform your duties with a Participating Compaowy(7)
violation of a material Company or Participatingn@many policy.

(i) “ Good Reasofi shall mean any one or more of the following:

a) without your express written consent, the assint to you of any duties, or any
limitation of your responsibilities, substantiaibyconsistent with your positions, duties, respoififds and status
with the Participating Company Group immediatelyppto the date of a Change in Control;

b) without your express written consent, the reioceof the principal place of your
employment or service to a location that is moemntfifty (50) miles from your principal place of ployment or
service immediately prior to the date of a Chamg€antrol, or the imposition of travel requiremesitbstantially
more demanding of you than such travel requiremexitting immediately prior to the date of the Cépaum Control

C) any failure by the Participating Company Group &g,por any material reduction by t
Participating Company Group of, (A) your base salareffect immediately prior to the date of a Cparn Control
(unless reductions comparable in amount and duratie concurrently made for all other employeethef
Participating Company Group with responsibilitiesganizational level and title comparable to youos)B) your
bonus compensation, if any, in effect immediatelpmto the date of a Change in Control (subjecpplicable
performance requirements with respect to the aemalunt of bonus compensation earned by you);

d) any failure by the Participating Company GroupAd ¢ontinue to provide you with tr
opportunity to participate, on terms no less fabteahan those in effect for the benefit of any &mpe or service
provider group which customarily includes a perbofting the employment or service provider positom
comparable position with the Participating Comp@mgup then held by you, in any benefit or compdosgtlans
and programs, including, but not limited to, thetiegating Company Group'’s life, disability, hdaldental,
medical, savings, profit sharing, stock purchagkratirement plans, if any, in which you were papiating
immediately prior to the date of the Change in @alnor their equivalent, or (B) provide you with ather fringe
benefits (or their equivalent) from time to timedfiect for the benefit of any employee group whicistomarily
includes a person holding the employment or sempiogider position or a comparable position with farticipatin
Company Group then held by you;

e) any breach by the Participating Company Group gfraaterial agreement between
and a Participating Company concerning your empéytnor

f) any failure by the Company to obtain the assumpticeny material agreement betw
you and the Company concerning your employment s&iycaessor or assign of the Company.

(iii) “ Termination After Change in Controf shall mean either of the following events occogri
within twenty-four (24) months after a Change im@ol:

a) termination by the Participating Company Grotigaur Service with the Participating
Company Group for any reason other than for Camrse;

b) your resignation for Good Reason from all cagiegin which you are then rendering
Service to the Participating Company Group withie@sonable period of time following the event ¢ibuing Good
Reason.




Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrarermination After Change in Control shall notlide any termination of your
Service with the Participating Company Group whithis for Cause; (2) is a result of your deattDaability; (3) is a result of your voluntary
termination of Service other than for Good Reaswor{a) occurs prior to the effectiveness of a CleimgControl.

2.5 Tax Withholding. You acknowledge that the Company and/or the Ppatirig Company that employs you (the “
Employer”) may be subject to withholding tax obligationssarg by reason of the vesting and/or payment isf Bterformance Stock Unit
Award. You authorize your Employer to satisfy thigholding tax obligations by one or a combinatadrihe following methods, as selectec
the Company in its sole discretion: (a) withholdfrgm your pay and any other amounts payable tgq guwithholding of Stock and/or cash
from the payment of the Performance Stock Unifsafcanging for the sale of shares of Stock payebt®nnection with the Performance
Stock Units (on your behalf and at your directioniet you authorize by accepting this PerformancelsStnit Award); or (d) any other
method allowed by the Plan or applicable law. IfiyEmployer satisfies the withholding obligationsvithholding a number of whole shares
of Stock as described in subsection (b) herein,witilbe deemed to have been issued the full nurobshares of Stock subject to this
Performance Stock Unit Award, notwithstanding #atumber of shares is held back in order to satiefywithholding obligations. TheFair
Market Value” of any Stock withheld pursuant to this Sectioh 2hall be equal to the closing price of a shargtotk as quoted on any
national or regional securities exchange or masistem constituting the primary market for the &too the date of determination (or, if there
is no closing price on that day, the last tradiag drior to that day) or, if the Stock is not lidten a national or regional securities exchange ot
market system, the value of a share of Stock asméted by the Committee in good faith without meb any restriction other than a
restriction which, by its terms, will never lap3ée Company shall not be required to issue anyeshairStock pursuant to this Agreement
unless and until the withholding obligations argssied.

3. Tax Advice. You represent, warrant and acknowledge that theg@dosnand, if different, your Employer, has made no
warranties or representations to you with respette income tax consequences of the transactmrtemplated by this Agreement, and you
are in no manner relying on the Company, your Eggri@r their representatives for an assessmentabf tax consequences. YOU
UNDERSTAND THAT THE TAX LAWS AND REGULATIONS ARE SBJECT TO CHANGE. YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN
TAX ADVISOR REGARDING THE TAX TREATMENT OF ANY PERPRMANCE STOCK UNITS. NOTHING STATED HEREIN IS
INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USEBOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING TAXPAYER PENALTIES.

4. Dividend Equivalents.If the Board declares a cash dividend on the Coripatock, you will be entitled to Dividend
Equivalents on the dividend payment date estalditlyethe Company equal to the cash dividends payabthe same number of shares of
Stock as the number of Shares Earned and the nwhbay Target Shares to which you are entitlechupomination of Service due to deatt
Disability (* Target Shares Earned) subject to this Performance Stock Unit Awardtba dividend record date established by the Company
Any such Dividend Equivalents will be in the forrhaalditional Shares Earned and/or Target Sharaseawill be subject to the same terms
and vesting dates as the underlying Shares Eant¥drararget Shares Earned, and will be paid asdimee time and in the same manner as th
underlying Shares Earned and/or Target Shares &anginally subject to this Performance Stock Uxitard, except that any fractional
shares attributable to Dividend Equivalents willdzéd in cash within thirty (30) days following thlate of payment of the Shares Earned
and/or Target Shares Earned based on the Fair Mdahee (as specified in Section 2.5, above) ondie of payment of the Shares Earned
and/or Target Shares Earned. The number of addltiinares Earned and/or Target Shares EarnedextexiitDividend Equivalents on the
dividend payment date will be determined by divif{ii) the product of (a) the number of your Sh&ashed and/or Target Shares Earned
the corresponding dividend record date (including anvested Shares Earned and/or Target SharesdEpraviously credited as a result of
prior payments of Dividend Equivalents) and (b) plee-share cash dividend paid on the dividend paymate, by (2) the peshare Fair Mark«
Value (as specified in Section 2.5, above) of Swtkhe dividend payment date. The Dividend Eqeintd will accrue on Shares Earned an
Target Shares Earned calculated from the Date afiGr

5. Securities Law Compliance Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, no shares of Stock will be issued
to you upon vesting of this Performance Stock Wmitard unless the Stock is then registered undeStwirities Act or, if such Stock is not
then so registered, the Company has determineduichtvesting and issuance would be exempt frometfistration requirements of the
Securities Act. By accepting this Performance Stdok Award, you agree not to sell any of the skarEStock received under this
Performance Stock Unit Award at a time when appliedaws or Company policies prohibit a sale.

6. Change in Control.In the event of a Change in Control, the survivitantinuing, successor, or purchasing corporation o
other business entity or parent thereof, as the oas/ be (the Acquiring Corporation”), may, without your




consent, either assume the Company’s rights andatiains under this Performance Stock Unit Awardwrstitute for this Performance Stock
Unit Award a substantially equivalent award for fkequiring Corporation’s stock.

6.1 Payout Pursuant to a Change in Controln the event the Acquiring Corporation elects moa$sume or substitute for
this Performance Stock Unit Award in connectionhwdtChange in Control, the vesting of this PerfarogaStock Unit Award, so long as your
Service has not terminated prior to the date oGhange in Control, shall be accelerated, effecwef the date ten (10) days prior to the date
of the Change in Control, and the number of shaf&ock that shall be issued to you by the Comparger this Agreement shall be
determined and paid as follows. The Company shsillé to you, within 30 days after the Change int@brthe number of shares (rounded up
to the nearest whole Share) equal to the sum dhéyhares Earned for any Measurement Period foribie Measurement Period during wt
the Change in Control occurs, plus (b) the Shaseadsl for any subsequent Measurement Period las Payout Percentage were 100% an
last day of each Measurement Period were the lsshéss day before the date of the Change in dontro

6.2 Vesting Contingent Upon ConsummationThe vesting of any Performance Stock Units andsdrayes of Stock
acquired upon the settlement thereof that was sibié solely by reason of this Section 6 shakkdrditioned upon the consummation of the
Change in Control.

6.3 Applicability of Agreement.Notwithstanding the foregoing, shares of Stock &eglupon settlement of this
Performance Stock Unit Award prior to the Chang€amtrol and any consideration received pursuattiédChange in Control with respect to
such shares shall continue to be subject to aliGgipe provisions of this Agreement except as atlige provided in this Agreement.

6.4 Continuation of Award. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the corporatitee tstock of which is subject to this
Performance Stock Unit Award immediately prior to@wnership Change Event constituting a Changeomti@| is the surviving or continuil
corporation and immediately after such Ownershiprgfe Event, less than fifty percent (50%) of thaltcombined voting power of its voting
stock is held by another corporation or by othepomations that are members of an affiliated graithin the meaning of Section 1504(a) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended @nele”), without regard to the provisions of Section 48f) of the Code, this
Performance Stock Unit Award shall not terminatkess the Committee otherwise provides in its dismne

7. Transferability. Prior to the issuance of shares of Stock in se#tdrof a Performance Stock Unit Award, the Awardlish
not be subject in any manner to anticipation, aliem, sale, exchange, transfer, assignment, pledgeimbrance, or garnishment by your
creditors or by your beneficiary (if any), exceptiiansfer by will or by the laws of descent arnstiibution or (ii) to the extent permitted by the
Company, transfer by written designation of a bieragly, in a form acceptable to the Company, withtsdesignation taking effect upon your
death. All rights with respect to the Performanteck Units shall be exercisable during your lifetionly by you or your guardian or legal
representative. Prior to actual payment of anyateBterformance Stock Units, such Performance Stodts will represent an unsecured
obligation of the Company, payable (if at all) oflgm the general assets of the Company.

8. Performance Stock Units Not a Service ContracfThis Performance Stock Unit Award is not an emplegiror service
contract and nothing in this Agreement, the Gramtti¢¢ or the Plan shall be deemed to create innayywhatsoever any obligation on your
part to continue in the Service of a Participat@@mpany, or of a Participating Company to contiyoer Service with the Participating
Company. In addition, nothing in your Performantec® Unit Award shall obligate the Company, itscétioolders, Board, Officers or
Employees to continue any relationship which yoghthhave as a Director or Consultant for the Corgpan

9. Restrictive Legend.Stock issued pursuant to the vesting of the Peidane Stock Units may be subject to such restris
upon the sale, pledge or other transfer of thekSasahe Company and the Compangbunsel deem necessary under applicable lawrsugn
to this Agreement.

10. Representations, Warranties, Covenants, and Acknowtigments.You hereby agree that in the event the Company ar
the Company’s counsel deem it necessary or adeisalthe exercise of their discretion, the transfeissuance of the shares of Stock issued
pursuant to the vesting of the Performance StodksUmay be conditioned upon you making certaingegentations, warranties, and
acknowledgments relating to compliance with apjblieasecurities laws.

11. Voting and Other Rights. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, you shatlllvave any voting rights or any other rights
and privileges of a shareholder of the Companyaséad until shares of Stock are issued upon payofiidgine Performance Stock Units.




12. Code Section 409Alt is the intent that the vesting or the paymenthef Performance Stock Units as set forth in this
Agreement shall qualify for exemption from the riggments of Section 409A of the Code, and any anitigg herein will be interpreted to so
comply. The Company reserves the right, to thergttee Company deems necessary or advisable solgsdiscretion, to unilaterally amend or
modify this Agreement as may be necessary to erisatall vesting or payments provided for undés fkgreement are made in a manner tha
qualifies for exemption from Section 409A of thedepprovided, however, that the Company makes piesentation that the vesting or
payments of Performance Stock Units provided fataurihis Agreement will be exempt from Section 4084he Code and makes no
undertaking to preclude Section 409A of the Codenfapplying to the vesting or payments of Perforcea®tock Units provided for under this
Agreement.

13. Notices.Any notices provided for in this Agreement, the @rslotice or the Plan shall be given in writing asidhll be
deemed effectively given upon receipt or, in theecaf notices delivered by the Company to you, fd)edays after deposit in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to you at thathisess you provided to the Company.

14. Nature of Grant. In accepting the Performance Stock Unit Award, goknowledge and agree that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by tle@any, it is discretionary in nature and it maynadified, amended,
suspended or terminated by the Company at any {subject to any limitations set forth in the Ptan)

(b) the award of Performance Stock Units is mtdny and occasional and does not create any atnélaor other right to
receive future awards of Performance Stock Unit§emefits in lieu of Performance Stock Units, eifdPerformance Stock Units or other
Awards have been awarded repeatedly in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future Awaridigny, will be at the sole discretion of the Camny;
(d) your participation in the Plan is voluntary;

(e) the Performance Stock Unit Award and theeshaf Stock subject to the Performance Stock Bwiard are
extraordinary items that do not constitute compeaisaf any kind for Services of any kind rendetedhe Company or the Employer, and
which are outside the scope of your employmentorise contract, if any;

(f) the Performance Stock Unit Award and therebaf Stock subject to the Performance Stock Bwiard are not intende
to replace any pension rights or compensation;

(g) the Performance Stock Unit Award and theehaf Stock subject to the Performance Stock Bwird are not part of
normal or expected compensation or salary for ampgses, including, but not limited to, calculatangy severance, resignation, termination,
redundancy, dismissal, end of service paymentgdes) longservice awards, pension or retirement or welfareefis or similar payments a
in no event should be considered as compensatipprfoelating in any way to, past services for @mmpany, the Employer or any
Participating Company;

(h) the future value of the underlying shareStfck is unknown and cannot be predicted withadety; further, neither the
Company, the Employer nor any Participating Comgariable for any foreign exchange fluctuationveeén your Employer’s local currency
and the United States Dollar that may affect tHeevaf this Performance Stock Unit Award;

(i) no claim or entitlement to compensation am@ges shall arise from forfeiture of your PerfanoeaStock Units resulting
from termination of your Service (for any reasoratgoever and whether or not in breach of localr#des or later found invalid), and in
consideration of the grant of the Performance Stdwits to which you are otherwise not entitled, ywavocably agree never to institute any
claim against the Company, waive your ability,nfyato bring any such claim, and release the Comfram any such claim; if,
notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim isvaéd by a court of competent jurisdiction, thep participating in the Plan, you shall be
deemed irrevocably to have agreed not to pursue dagm and agree to execute any and all docunmeasssary to request dismissal or
withdrawal of such claim;

() the Performance Stock Unit Award and theddits evidenced by this Agreement do not createeantiflement, not
otherwise specifically provided for in the Planppovided by the Company in its discretion, to hthePerformance Stock Unit Award or any
such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, anotimpany, nor to be exchanged, cashed out orisubstfor, in connection with any
corporate transaction affecting the Company’s Staok




(k) the Company is not providing any tax, legafinancial advice, nor is the Company making eegommendations
regarding your participation in the Plan, or yooguaisition or sale of the underlying shares of Bfgou are hereby advised to consult with
your own personal tax, legal and financial advisegarding your participation in the Plan befolldrig any action related to the Pl:

15. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws oState of California as if the Agreement were
between California residents and as if it were reténto and to be performed entirely within that8tof California.

16. Arbitration. Any dispute or claim concerning any PerformancelStdnits granted (or not granted) pursuant to taa P
and any other disputes or claims relating to aimgi out of the Plan shall be fully, finally andcissively resolved by binding arbitration
conducted by the American Arbitration Associatiamguant to the commercial arbitration rules in Bégo, California. By accepting this
Performance Stock Unit Award, you and the Compaaiy&your respective rights to have any such despat claims tried by a judge or jury.

17. Amendment. Your Performance Stock Unit Award may be amendegragided in the Plan at any time, provided no <
amendment may adversely affect this PerformancekSinit Award without your consent unless such admeent is necessary to comply with
any applicable law or government regulation, arastemplated in Section 12 hereof. No amendmeatldition to this Agreement shall be
effective unless in writing or in such electronicrh as may be designated by the Company.

18. Governing Plan Document.Your Performance Stock Unit Award is subject t@thgreement, the Grant Notice and all
the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which hereby made a part of this Agreement, anaribdr subject to all interpretations,
amendments, rules and regulations which may from to time be promulgated and adopted pursuahget®lan. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Agreement, the Giwiice and those of the Plan, the provisions efRkan shall control.

19. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to besnforceable for any reason, it shall be adjustdterahan
voided, if possible, in order to achieve the intefthe parties to the extent possible. In any gv@hother provisions of this Agreement shall
deemed valid and enforceable to the full extensitdes.

20. Description of Electronic Delivery. The Plan documents, which may include but do noésegarily include: the Plan, t
Grant Notice, this Agreement, and any reports ef@ompany provided generally to the Company’s $iwders, may be delivered to you
electronically. In addition, if permitted by the @pany, you may deliver electronically the Grantisketo the Company or to such third party
involved in administering the Plan as the Compaiy mesignate from time to time. Such means of elait delivery may include but do not
necessarily include the delivery of a link to a Qamy intranet or the internet site of a third pamgolved in administering the Plan, the
delivery of the document via electronic mail (“edffjeor such other means of electronic delivery gfied by the Company.

21. Waiver. The waiver by the Company with respect to yourafoy other Participant’s) compliance of any provisid this
Agreement shall not operate or be construed as\emaf any other provision of this Agreement, daay subsequent breach of such party
provision of this Agreement.

22. Repayment/Forfeiture. Any benefits you may receive hereunder shall bgestbo repayment or forfeiture as may be
required to comply with (a) any applicable listisigndards of a national securities exchange adaptctordance with Section 954 of the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiadiict (regarding recovery of erroneously awardemhpgensation) and any
implementing rules and regulations of the U.S. 8&ea and Exchange Commission adopted thereufidesimilar rules under the laws of any
other jurisdiction and (c) any policies adoptediiyy Company to implement such requirements, dhécextent determined by the Company in
its discretion to be applicable to you.



EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

Subsidiaries of Qualcomm Incorporated State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation
Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. Delaware
Qualcomm Global Trading Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Qualcomm CDMA Technologies Asia-Pacific Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Qualcomm Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Qualcomm Atheros, Inc. Delaware

The names of other subsidiaries are omitted. Subkidiaries would not, if considered in the aggte@e a single subsidiary, constitute a
significant subsidiary within the meaning of Ite®16b)(21)(ii) of Regulation S-K.



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-B31448, No. 333-131157, No.
333-137693, No. 333-150423, No. 333-148177, No-B&3341, No. 333-148556, No. 333-166246, No. 333184, No. 333-174649, No.
333-188104, and No. 333-197445) of QUALCOMM Incagdted of our report dated November 5, 2014 relatntpe consolidated financial
statements, the financial statement schedule andftactiveness of internal control over financeggorting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Diego, California
November 5, 201



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven M. Mollenkopf, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkQUALCOMM Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or eméttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nlatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in theggnt's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdatanmnmittee of registrant's Board of Directors parsons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registraability to record, process, summarize and rtefraincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 5, 2014
/sl Steven M. Mollenkopf

Steven M. Mollenkopf,
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, George S. Davis, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16flkQUALCOMM Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdataumnmittee of registrant's Board of Directors parsons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registraability to record, process, summarize and rtefraincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 5, 2014
/s] George S. Davis

George S. Davis,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repd®UYALCOMM Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form XOfor the fiscal year ended
September 28, 2014 (the “Report”), I, Steven M. lgtkopf, Chief Executive Officer of the Companyrtifg, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as
adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act384; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: November 5, 2014

/s/ Steven M. Mollenkopf
Steven M. Mollenkopf,
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repd®UYALCOMM Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form XOfor the fiscal year ended
September 28, 2014 (the “Report”), |, George S.iRavhief Financial Officer of the Company, certipursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as
adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act384; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: November 5, 2014

/s/ George S. Davis
George S. Davis,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




